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Background to the Company

The below details are in summary form only and must be read in conjunction with the detailed information contained in the
Prospectus of the Company.

Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC (the "Company") is an open-ended investment company, with variable capital and limited
liability organised under the laws of Ireland. The Company was incorporated in Ireland on 27 September 2004. The Company is
authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the "Central Bank") as a Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities ("UCITS") within the meaning of the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the "UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act
2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (as amended) (the
"Central Bank UCITS Regulations").

The Companyis structured as an umbrella Fund in that different sub-funds (each a "Fund”, collectively the "Funds") thereof may
be established with the prior approval of the Central Bank. In addition, each Fund may have more than one share class. The
shares of each class in a Fund will rank pari passu with each other in all respects except as to all or any of the following:

— currency denomination of the class;

— dividend policy;

— thelevel of fees and expenses to be charged;

— the minimum subscription, minimum holdings and minimum redemption applicable; and
— thehedging strategy of the class.

The net assets of each Fund will be separate from one another and will be invested in accordance with the investment
objectives and policies applicable to each such Fund.

Shares are issued as Class A shares, Class B shares, Class | shares, Class M shares and Class Z shares. The Class A, Class B,
Class |, Class M and Class Z shares are available as accumulation and distribution shares for all Funds in US dollars, British pound
and Euro, and for the GlobalAccess Japan Fund, also in Japanese yen.

The Sub-distributors (stated on page 2 "Organisation”) are acting as paying agents. The Prospectus, the annual and semi-
annual reports, and a list of all fund transactions of the portfolios can be obtained free-of-charge from your local distributor.

When a reference is made to the Company in the financial statements, it refers to any of the 14 live Funds within the umbrella.

All Funds with exception of the GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund are listed on the Global Exchange Market (GEM)
of Euronext Dublin (formerly the Irish Stock Exchange).

Investment objectives

The Manager appoints the Investment manager to provide investment management and advisory services in respect of part
or all of the assets of the Funds. The Investment manager will select high quality Sub-Investment Managers and monitors their
performance and can make replacements if they feel it necessary. Details of the Sub-Investment Managers operating during
the financial year from 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2023 are outlined in the "Organisation" section on pages 2 to 3.

Any alteration to the investment objectives or any material change to the investment policies of any Fund at any time will be
subject to the prior approval in writing of a majority of Shareholders of such Fund. The individual Funds' investment objectives
and strategies are briefly outlined in the Investment manager report and detailed in the prospectus and supplements to the
Funds.
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Background to the Company (continued)

Calculation of net asset value per share in accordance with the Prospectus

The net asset value of each Fundis expressedinits base currency. The net asset value attributable to any class of shares within
a Fund willbe determined by deducting the share of liabilities of that class fromits share of the assets of the Fund. The net asset
value of each share of each class will be determined by dividing the net asset value attributable to the class by the number of
shares of that class inissue.

In determining the net asset value in accordance with the Prospectus, the value of an investment which is quoted, listed or
normally dealt in on a Regulated Market, including units or shares in an open-ended investment fund, shall be the closing mid-
market price on such Regulated Market as at the Valuation Point or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is
available. The value of any investment whichis not quoted, listed or normally dealt in on a Regulated Market shallbe the probable
realisable value estimated with care and in good faith by a competent person, firm or association making a market in such
investment (approved for the purpose by the Depositary) and/or other competent person, in accordance with the opinion of
the Directors (and approved for the purpose by the Depositary).

The value of any futures contracts and options which are dealt in on a Regulated Market shall be the settlement price as
determined by the market in question, provided that if such settlement price is not available for any reason or is
unrepresentative, same shall be valued at the probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by a competent
person (approved for the purpose by the Depositary).

The value of any over the counter ("OTC") derivatives contracts such as forward contracts shall be valued at least daily at a price
obtained from the counterparty or by an alternative valuation provided by a competent person (which may be the administrator
or the Investment Manager) appointed by the Directors and approved by the Depositary for such purpose.

Distribution policy

Itisintended that each distributing share class of each Fund will declare and pay its investment income return to Shareholders
as dividends on a quarterly basis, usually within 10 business days following the end of the relevant quarter (i.e. within 10 business
days of the end of February, May, August and November of each year).

In determining the net asset value in accordance with the Prospectus, the fees and expenses of all the "Bond Funds", as defined
below and in the Prospectus and Supplements, will be charged to the income of the Funds. The "Equity Funds", as defined below
and in the Prospectus and Supplements (with the exception of the GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund), will charge all of
their fees and expenses to available income in the first instance and where there is insufficient income, then to capital of the
Funds. Fees and expenses of the GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund will be charged to the capital of the Fund.

Single swinging prices

Shares will be issued and redeemed at a single price. The net asset value per share may be adjusted on any Dealing Day
depending on whether or not a Fund is in a net subscription position or in a net redemption position on such Dealing Day to
arrive at the price. The adjustment relates to costs which impact on the value of the Fund.

For valuation purposes the securities are valued as outlined above. When these values are compared with the actual cost of
buying or selling assets for a Fund, differences arise due to dealing charges and spreads from buying or selling of the underlying
investments. These costs have an adverse effect on the value of a Fund and are known as "dilution”.

To mitigate the effects of dilution, the Directors have determined to make a dilution adjustment to the net asset value per
share. The Directors have determined to make a dilution adjustment as, in their opinion, the existing Shareholders, in case of
subscriptions, or remaining Shareholders, in case of redemptions, are adversely affected. The dilution adjustment involves
adding to, when the Fund is in a net subscription position, and deducting from, when the Fund is in a net redemption position,
the net asset value per share such a figure as the Directors consider represents an appropriate figure to meet duties, charges
and spreads. When the dilution adjustment is made, it increases the price where the Fund is in a net subscription position and
decreases the price where the Fundis in a net redemption position.
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Single Swinging Prices (continued)

The threshold for applying the dilution adjustment on daily dealing is 1% of a Fund's net asset value. This is a daily process. The
Directors review on a periodic basis the size of the dilution adjustment.

Funds at a glance

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class laccumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating EUR shares””
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Global Government
Bond Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan)
Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares

Fund Size
31 May 2023

Fund
Currency

Investment
Management
Fee*

Launch Date

325,028,894 17 Aug 2004  GBP
1.50%
1.50%
1.25%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
2.00%
2.00%

85,849,822 18 Aug 2004  USD
1.15%
0.95%
0.60%
0.60%
0.60%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
1.15%
1.15%

70,868,807 12 Aug 2004  USD
1.50%
1.25%
0.90%
0.90%

0.90%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%

Ongoing
Charges

1.62%
1.68%
1.37%
1.02%
1.03%
1.07%
1.08%
0.82%
0.82%
0.88%
0.88%
2.12%
2.18%

1.57%
1.33%
0.98%
1.04%
1.04%
0.83%
0.83%
0.89%
0.89%
1.53%
1.59%

1.96%
1.71%
1.42%
1.36%

1.42%
1.21%
1.21%
1.27%
1.27%
1.27%
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Funds at a Glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan)

Fund (continued)

Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class laccumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Global High Yield
Bond Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class A distributing USD shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | distributing USD shares

Fund Size

31 May 2023

70,868,807

502,884,669

499,766,740

Launch Date Fund

Investment

Currency Management

12 Aug2004  USD

29 Aug2007  USD

27 Nov 2007 USD

Fee*

0.75%

2.00%
2.00%

1.50%
1.50%
1.50%
1.50%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.10%
1.10%
1.10%
1.10%

1.10%
0.95%
0.95%
0.95%
0.95%
0.95%
0.95%

2.00%
2.00%

1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05%
0.80%

Ongoing
Charges

1.21%

2.44%
2.52%

1.65%
1.71%
1.71%
1.71%
1.40%
1.46%
1.46%
1.25%
1.31%
1.32%
1.26%

1.31%
1.10%
1.10%
1.16%
1.16%
1.16%
1.10%

2.15%
2.21%

1.36%
1.38%
1.44%
1.44%
1.44%
1.44%
1.18%
1.18%
1.23%
1.24%
1.24%
1.24%
0.93%
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Funds at a Glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield
Bond Fund (continued)

Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class laccumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing EUR shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

GlobalAccess Global Corporate
Bond Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class laccumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Debt Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares

Fund Size

31 May 2023

499,766,740

466,007,323

192,451,809

Launch Date

27 Nov 2007

4 Dec 2007

4 Dec 2007

Fund

Investment

Currency Management

usD

usD

ush

Fee*

0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

1.15%
0.95%
0.95%
0.95%
0.70%
0.70%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

1.35%
1.35%
1.15%
1.15%
1.15%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%

Ongoing
Charges

0.99%
0.99%
0.99%
0.98%
0.83%
0.83%
0.88%
0.89%
0.89%
0.89%
1.77%
1.78%
1.83%
1.84%
1.84%

1.28%
1.08%
1.08%
1.14%
0.90%
0.90%
0.68%
0.68%
0.74%
0.74%
0.74%
1.78%
1.84%
1.85%

1.65%
1.65%
1.39%
1.45%
1.45%
1.03%
1.10%
1.10%
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Funds at a Glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Debt Fund (continued)

Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares””
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration
Bond Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Fund Size Launch Date
31 May 2023

192,451,809 4 Dec 2007
70,766,289 30Nov 2010
79,833,994 1Jun 2011

10

Fund

Investment

Currency Management

ush

usD

ush

Fee*

0.80%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

0.80%
0.65%
0.65%
0.65%
0.65%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.80%
0.80%

1.50%
1.50%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.05%
1.05%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
2.00%
2.00%

Ongoing
Charges

1.10%
0.93%
0.94%
1.00%
1.00%
1.00%
1.00%
1.89%
1.95%
1.95%
1.93%

1.25%
1.09%
1.16%
1.16%
1.16%
1.00%
1.00%
1.06%
1.06%
1.06%
1.06%
1.25%
1.31%

1.87%
1.93%
1.62%
1.62%
1.68%
1.48%
1.48%
1.27%
1.27%
1.33%
1.33%
1.33%
2.37%
2.43%
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Funds at a Glance (continued)

Fund Size Launch Date Fund Investment Ongoing
31 May 2023 Currency Management Charges
Fee*

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund 233,476,587 3Nov 2011 usD
Class A accumulating USD share 1.50% 1.67%
Class A accumulating EUR shares 1.50% 1.73%
Class A accumulating GBP shares 1.50% 1.73%
Class B accumulating USD shares 1.25% 1.42%
Class B accumulating GBP shares 1.25% 1.48%
Class laccumulating GBP shares 0.70% 0.93%
Class | accumulating GBP shares 0.70% 0.87%
(Unhedged)
Class | distributing GBP shares 0.70% 0.93%
Class M accumulating USD shares 0.50% 0.67%
Class M distributing USD shares 0.50% 0.67%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.50% 0.73%
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.50% 0.73%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.50% 0.73%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.50% 0.67%
(Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares 2.00% 2.16%
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 2.00% 2.23%
GlobalAccess Global Equity 58,774,600 13Dec2011 USD
Income Fund
Class A accumulating USD shares 1.50% 2.22%
Class A distributing USD shares 1.50% 2.22%
Class A accumulating EUR shares 1.50% 2.28%
Class A accumulating GBP shares 1.50% 2.28%
Class A distributing EUR shares 1.50% 2.28%
Class B accumulating USD shares 1.25% 1.96%
Class B distributing USD shares 1.25% 1.97%
Class B accumulating EUR shares”” 1.25% 2.02%
Class B accumulating GBP shares 1.25% 2.03%
Class B distributing EUR shares 1.25% 2.03%
Class B distributing GBP shares”* 1.25% 2.03%
Class | accumulating USD shares 0.90% 1.62%
Class | accumulating GBP shares 0.90% 1.68%
Class | distributing GBP shares 0.90% 1.68%
Class | distributing GBP shares 0.90% 1.62%
(Unhedged)
Class M accumulating USD shares 0.75% 1.47%
Class M distributing USD shares 0.75% 1.47%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.75% 1.53%
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.75% 1.53%
Class M distributing EUR shares 0.75% 1.53%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.75% 1.53%
Class Z accumulating USD shares 2.00% 2.72%
Class Z distributing USD shares 2.00% 2.71%
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Funds at a Glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Equity
Income Fund (continued)

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local

Currency Debt Fund

Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M distributing GBP shares

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund

Class A accumulating EUR share
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class laccumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class | Distributing GBP Shares

Fund Size
31 May 2023

58,774,600

222,036,116

87,350,234

36,834,383,984
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Launch Date

13 Dec 2011

13 Nov 2012

12 Aug 2004

17 Aug 2004

Fund

Investment

Currency  Management

usD

usD

EUR

JPY

Fee*

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%

1.15%
0.80%
0.75%
0.75%

1.50%
1.50%
1.50%
1.25%
1.25%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%

0.90%
0.90%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%

2.00%

1.50%
1.25%
0.90%
0.90%

0.90%

Ongoing
Charges

2.78%
2.78%
2.78%

1.41%
1.12%
1.01%
1.06%

1.94%
2.00%
2.00%
1.69%
1.75%
1.34%
1.40%
1.34%

1.40%
1.40%
1.17%
1.19%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.19%

2.44%

1.72%
1.47%
1.12%
1.06%

1.12%
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Background to the Company (continued)

Funds at a Glance (continued)

Fund Size LaunchDate Fund Investment Ongoing
31 May 2023 Currency  Management Charges
Fee*
GlobalAccess Japan Fund (continued) 36,834,383,984 17 Aug 2004  JPY
Class M accumulating JPY shares 0.80% 0.96%
Class M distributing JPY shares 0.80% 0.96%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.80% 1.02%
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.80% 1.02%
Class M accumulating USD shares 0.80% 1.02%
Class M distributing GBP shares”* 0.80% 1.00%
Class Z accumulating JPY shares 2.00% 2.15%
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 2.00% 2.21%

ANClass terminated during the financial year.
4The investment management fee rates shown above are the rates as at 31 May 2023.

The Investment Manager can charge rates in excess of the figures above. A full list of the investment management fee rates
that can be charged against share classes within the Funds are listed in the Prospectus of the Company.

Ongoing charges may be distorted where share classes have been in existence for less than 1 year or where the assets under
management have a very low value. Such ongoing charges have been annualised.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023

Product overview
The Funds are managed using a multi-manager approach leveraging off Barclays expertise in manager selection. We look to

select a blend of active third party managers to generate out performance against their market mandates. Different Fund
Managers have different skills and specialise in different areas. No single manager will be a leader in all areas and through all
stages of the market cycle. Within Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC, different investment managers are appointed to manage
Sub-Investment Managers within the same asset class. So, as well as giving you access to the best-of-breed institutional
investment managers, Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC also diversifies the risk from any one fund manager underperforming.

When selecting managers, the Manager and Funds Selection Team first develops a list of investment managers arranged in
peer groups. On the quantitative side, we look at managers regionally, split into peer groups according to investment style.
Then, using a proprietary multi-factor screening method, we can evaluate past risk-adjusted performance on a relative and
absolute basis. That allows us to assess each manager's ability to match our investment targets.

When awarding mandates, we aim to blend those managers ideally suited to each level of risk and performance. The next step
is to define qualitative requirements for managers, so that the team has a clear view of the sort of manager combinations it
would ideally like to appoint. The team employs a rigorous selection process, judging the managers against its multiple criteria,
including but not limited to: investment style, resources, processes for stock selection and research, portfolio construction,
risk controls, strategy assessment and investment processes. This may entail several interviews with each manager.

There have been changes to the Funds during the period under review. Please see below:

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Aresolution was passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Fund held on 15 November 2022 to update the investment
policy of the Fund to better reflect the focus of the Fund. The commitment to investing in government securities rated "A and
above" by Standard & Poor's and/or Moody's has been replaced with a commitment to invest in securities issued by
governments and their agencies of Investment Grade quality in order to provide greater flexibility and more closely align with
the Bloomberg Global Treasury Index (Total Return). The latest investment policy is set out in the fund prospectus available at
www.barclaysinvestments.com.

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

Aresolution was passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Fund held on 15 November 2022 to update the investment
objective of the Fund to better reflect the focus of the Fund. The term "superior” was removed from the investment objective
in order to improve consistency with the Barclays Wealth range of funds of which the Company forms part of and to avoid
potential investor confusion. The latest investment policy is set out in the fund prospectus available at
www.barclaysinvestments.com.

Market overview
Returns from global equity and bond markets were mixed over the period, although there were pockets of asset classes able to

deliver positive returns. Investors have remained concerned about recessionary risks against a backdrop of persistently high
inflation, central bank monetary tightening and the ongoing war in Ukraine, and so markets have continued to suffer bouts of
volatility and negativity.

Throughout much of the period, we have seen rising government bond yields, interest rates continuing to rise around much of
the world, and a backdrop of volatile energy and commodity prices. Early in 2023, the fragility of the modern banking system
was exposed again following the collapse of US regional lender SVB Financial and the forced takeover of Credit Suisse by UBS.
Despite some remaining investor uncertainty in banks, markets were relatively quick to recover as fears of market contagion
eased.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Market overview (continued)
Returns from global equities were mixed over the period. Equity markets in Japan and Europe were among the top performers,

delivering positive returns, while markets in the US also delivered positive returns. Asia and Emerging Markets equities have
been weakest, as Chinese markets have been the main source of investor pain, with more negative sentiment driven by
concerns around economic growth, zero-Covid government policy and increasing geopolitical tensions with the US.

In terms of sector performance, looking at the MSCI AC World Index, returns were also mixed. Traditionally more commodity
linked sectors such as Energy and Materials were among the weakest performers, delivering sharply negative returns, along
with a decline in the price of many commodity raw materials. Technology and Industrials delivered positive returns and
outperformed the broader market to be the top performers. Utilities, real estate and financials all delivered substantially
negative returns and lagged, despite the latter being supported by an environment of rising interest rates.

Bondreturns were mostly negative over the period as fixed income yields across the world continued to climb. The combination
of higher inflation pressure, slowing economic growth, tighter monetary conditions and geopolitical events has created a
difficult market for both government and corporate bonds. Over the period total returns from US corporate bonds were
negative while developed market government bonds also delivered negative returns, with the Bloomberg Global Aggregate
Treasuries Total Return Index Hedged GBP index delivering a negative total return over the period. Emerging market bonds
were among the better performers over the period, as were shorter dated US Treasury Bills. (Source: Barclays, Bloomberg)

Performance overview
The GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund outperformed the FTSE All-Share benchmark over the financial year.

The Fund's financial year was one in which the Fund performed strongly. Over the period, global economic conditions were
continuing to adjust to the impact of geopolitical events on energy prices. Additionally, Central Banks around the world were
raising interest rates to try to address the resurgence of inflation in the price of goods and services.

Inthe UK, further political uncertainty marked the early part of the reporting period. Three Prime Ministers in the space of a few
months led to a sharp rise in bond yields, and only an intervention by the Bank of England prevented a serious problem for the
UK's large pension fund industry.

The calendar year of 2022 saw the UK be one of the best performing of the major world stock markets. This was due to the
performance of a small number of the UK's largest companies. Performance of many other of the UK's listed shares was
lacklustre. This continued across the new year and to the end of the reporting period.

The UK has alarge number of medium and smaller sized companies. The UK's mid and small cap markets were very popular for
much of the last decade. Online retail, digital technology services, advertising and marketing were all examples of sectors that
enjoyed strong performance of earnings, valuation multiples and share prices. In recent years this has all changed, some
companies have experienced growing pains or serious missteps in their operations. Investors have been unforgiving, selling the
shares at seemingly any price. Outflows from UK equities from domestic and overseas investors show no signs of slowing.
International investors do not want to buy UK equities, large or small.

Although recent media in the UK has highlighted this '‘buyers strike’, few practical solutions have been suggested to fixit. In the
meantime, the largest buyers of company shares remain the companies themselves, buying back their shares at what they
believe are cheap valuations. Whilst rising interest rates has seen some reduction in interest, Private Equity firms continue to
look to buy UK listed companies. In spite of all of this, the Fund performed very well over the period. Each of the Fund's three
underlying Sub-Investment Managers outperformed the Fund's benchmark, the FTSE All Share.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)
Pleasingly, much of the performance came from strong stock selection by the underlying managers. At a sector level,

communication services and consumer staples were two that saw the best performance, with industrials closely behind. These
three sectors make up around half of all the Fund's investments. Investments in the consumer discretionary, financial and
technology sectors detracted from returns, but the impact was small. The Fund showed good performance in large, medium
and smaller sized companies.

Given the nature of its concentrated portfolio, what Lindsell Train doesn't own is as important to its performance compared to
its benchmark as what it does. Heineken and Mondelez both performed well for Lindsell Train. Not owning British American
Tobacco was also helpful as tobacco shares gave back some of the returns in the new year that they made in 2022. Burberry
saw strong share price performance over the period as its recovery continued, and the ongoing bid situation for Manchester
United saw its share price go up by half.

Heronbridge performance was closely behind Lindsell Train. Another concentrated portfolio, shares in Mitie, Euromoney,
Moneysupermarket and Associated British Foods were all holdings that performed well over the period. Not owning large
industry heavyweights such as Vodafone were almost as helpful to the manager's performance compared to the benchmark.
Healthcare business EMIS was another good performer. The company was subject to a takeover bid which later fell away, but in
spite of this the holding still rose strongly over the period. A small fly in the ointment was performance from Headlam and Wickes
Group, two smaller company holdings that struggled in the period under review.

JO Hambro also outperformed. It is managed with greater awareness of its benchmark than either of the other two managers.
It looks for businesses that are changing for the better, which allows it to benefit from both improving operations, earnings and
hopefully sentiment towards the company from other investors. Centrica was one of the manager's best stock picks in the
mandate, alongside 3i, Beazley and Numis, whose purchase by Deutsche Bank was announced towards the end of the Fund's
financial year. Losers included NCC, a technology company, and mining conglomerate Anglo American.

The GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund underperformed the Bloomberg Barclays Global Treasury USD Hedged
Benchmark.

The global government bond market delivered a negative return for the period with the first half of the period seeing volatility
and falling government bond prices as investors incorrectly positioned for a pause to rate hikes. The second half of the period
was generally calmer, as data in both the US and European Union began to consistently point to slowing inflation in a sign rate
hikes were beginning to have an impact.

As stated, the first half of the period was challenging for government bonds although markets did initially rise as US growth
looked to be slowing. This led investors to position for the US Federal Reserve (Fed) to pause rate increases however this
narrative faltered during the autumn months as consumer price inflation (CPI) remained sticky across most developed markets.
Centralbankers, led by the Fed, continued toraise rates inresponse to this inflation and government bond prices sold off rapidly.

While much of this sell off was caused by developments in the US, sentiment was also hurt by developments in other markets,
namely the UK and Japan. Gilt yields in the UK increased by record daily amounts to multi-decade highs in September as
investors were spooked by the new fiscal policies of the UK government. This required the Bank of England (BoE) to offer
emergency support to prevent a crisis within the UK mortgage and pension markets.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)
Then, in a surprise hawkish move, the Bank of Japan (BoJ) adjusted its yield curve control policy by widening the 10-year band

in December although monetary policy in Japan remains notably loose compared to other economies.

The turn of the year signalled an improved period for government bonds. Firstly, investor sentiment was boosted when the
Chinese government announced an end to Covid restrictions. More importantly for government bonds however was the much
awaited signal that CPlin the US was beginning to consistently slow. This was positive for mid and long dated US government
bonds with prices rising and investors beginning to see light at the end of the rate hike tunnel.

Volatility temporarily picked up in March as a number of US regional banks collapsed following large losses caused by poor
management of their interest rate risk. The resulting hit to confidence in the banking system engulfed Credit Suisse, who had
to be rescued by UBS. Government bonds rallied during this period as the US yield curve inverted to multi-decade levels as
investors priced in a recession. This episode was relatively short lived and the period ended with investor focus turned back
towards the end of the rate hiking cycle.

Overall positioning across developed market sovereign bonds was positive for performance with active positioning adding
value. Specifically, the Fund entered the period with an underweight to US rates and maintained this throughout the Fed's rate
hikes. Tactical positioning in UK rates also added value particularly during the turmoil of September whilst European rates
strategy was mixed as gains in core markets were offset by exposure to longer data European supranational debt. This was
offset positions held in high quality non-sovereign bonds, namely Danish and US Agency Mortgage bonds, throughout the
period. These positions detracted from performance as spreads widened. Currency strategies also impacted performance
negatively, particularly through an underweight position in Sterling which appreciated between October and March.

The GlobalAccess Asia Pacific ex Japan Fund outperformed the MSCI AC Asia Pacific ex-Japan benchmark.

Asian equity markets fell over the period, on continued concerns of a global economic slowdown, increasing inflation and rising
interest rates. Chinese markets were the main cause of the market drop, with sentiment driven by concerns around rising
interest rates, increasing geopolitical tensions and fears of further lockdowns as the country continued to follow a policy of
zero-Covid for the first half of the period. Russia's invasion of Ukraine, instability in the US and European banking sector and the
resulting fears of a slowdown in economic activity, also continued to weigh oninvestor sentiment. Markets in India, New Zealand
and Indonesia were among the best performers, while markets in China, Malaysia and Hong Kong were the main laggards.

The Fund outperformed the benchmark index over the period. Stock selection was the main driver of performance with no
significant contribution from sector or country allocation. At the regional level, stock selection was particularly strongin China
and Hong Kong, while at the sector level, selection was notably positive in the financials real estate and consumer discretionary
sectors. Selection in materials and consumer staples detracted over the period.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)
Among the underlying managers, Schroders outperformed the benchmark index over the period. Stock selection in China,

Hong Kong, South Korea and India was notably positive to performance, while sector-wise, stock selection was strongest in
financials, consumer discretionary and real estate. In India, the ongoing recovery in domestic activities supported the share
price of retail mall operator Phoenix Mills, which saw continuous recovery in rentals and tenant mix, and was among the largest
positive contributors. Hong Kong-based travel suitcase maker Samsonite was also among the main positives as the stock
traded higher on the back of optimism that an easing of Covid restrictions and gradual resumption of travel activities would
provide some tailwinds to the sector. An overweight position in solar panel maker, Longi Green Energy Technology, was among
the main detractors.

Hermes also outperformed the benchmark index, with performance particularly strongin the second half of the period. Strong
stock selectionin China was the main positive, while an underweight position in India was the main detractor. At the sector level,
stock selection in technology and consumer discretionary was notably positive. Selection in health care and financials was also
positive, while selection in materials detracted. At the stock level, an overweight to PetroChina was among the key positives as
the company announced consensus beating earnings and a share buyback plan during the period. An overweight position in
Chinese pharmaceutical giant, Sinopharm, was also among the main positives. Overweight positions in Baidu, China's leading
search company, and Weibo, a leading Chinese social media platform were among the largest detractors.

Fidelity underperformed the benchmark MSCI AC Asia Pacific ex-Japan index, and lagged the MSCI Australia index, driven by
stock selection. At the sector level, stock selection was strong in financials and industrials, but this was more than offset by
selection in materials and energy. Sector allocation was a positive, with overweight positions in communication services and an
underweight position in materials the main positive contributors. At the stock level, an overweight positionin cloud-based end-
to-end logistics software provider WiseTech Global, was among the largest positives as the stock price advanced with the
company delivering promising results and robust guidance. An underweight position in Westpac Banking was also among the
largest positive contributors over the period. An overweight position in nickel producer, Nickel Industries, was among the main
detractors, as the share price declined on concerns over profit margin compression amid resilience in thermal coal prices. An
overweight position in specialist business lender, Judo Capital, was also among the largest detractors.

The GlobalAccess Emerging Markets Equity Fund outperformed versus the MSCI Emerging Markets USD benchmark over the
financial year.

Emerging markets equities fell over the period, on continued concerns of a global economic slowdown, increasing inflation and
rising interest rates. Chinese markets were the main cause of the market drop, with sentiment driven by concerns around rising
interest rates, increasing geopolitical tensions and fears of further lockdowns as the country continued to follow a policy of
zero-Covid for the first half of the period. Russia's ongoing invasion of Ukraine, instability in the US and European banking sector
and the resulting fears of a slowdown in economic activity, also continued to weigh on investor sentiment. The Russian market
remained closed to foreign investors at the end of the period. As such, the difference between the best and worst performing
countries and sectors was extremely large this period. Markets in Turkey, Hungary and Mexico were among the best
performers, while markets in Colombia, South Africa and Qatar were among the main laggards.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)
The Fund outperformed the benchmark index over the period, driven primarily by positive stock selection. Stock selection in

China and India was the largest positive, while strong stock selection in Turkey and South Korea was also among the main
positives. An overweight position in Turkey and an underweight position in Saudi Arabia also contributed positively, while the
contribution from sector allocation was muted over the period. Stock selection was strongest within financials, energy and real
estate.

Among the underlying managers, ArrowStreet, Pzena and Schroders outperformed the benchmark index, while NS Partners
underperformed. ARX was the worst performing manager as Brazilian equities lagged over the period.

Among the key individual contributors, an overweight position in Indian Pepsi Co. bottler, Varun Beverages, was the single
largest positive over the period. Overweight positions in Turkish Airlines and Sinopec were also among the top contributors.
Hong Kong-based travel suitcase maker Samsonite was also among the largest positives as the stock traded higher on the
back of optimism that an easing of Covid restrictions and gradual resumption of travel activities would provide some tailwinds
to the sector. Again in India, the ongoing recovery in domestic activities supported the share price of retail mall operator
Phoenix Mills, which saw continuous recovery in rentals and tenant mix, and was also among the main positive contributors.
Overweight positions in solar panel maker, Longi Green Energy Technology, Hong Kong based power tool maker, Techtronic
Industries, and e-commerce solutions provider, Baozun Inc, were among the main detractors.

During the period, NS Partners added new positions in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing, Zhejiang Supcon Technology,
Yageo Corporation, Parade Technologies and East Money Information. They exited positions in CTBC Financial Holding Co,
Shenzhou International Group, ICICI Bank and Bank Rakyat Indonesia. Pzena added new positions in Weichai Power, a leading
Chinese diesel engine maker with a dominant position in the heavy-duty truck market. They also added Brazilian lender, Banco
do Brasil, energy company Petroleo Brasileiro, and Korea's Wonik, a leading supplier of equipment for memory and
semiconductor manufacturing. They exited Korea Shipbuilding and Offshore Engineering Co and VTech Holdings. Schroders
added a new position in Toly Bread Group, while also adding to the position in Alibaba. They trimmed the position in Phoenix
Mills and exited positions in SK Hynix and Naver. ARX added a new position in Aliansce Sonae Shopping Centers and exited
positions in BR Malls, Banco do Brasil and Americanas.

The GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund underperformed the ICE BofA Merrill Lynch US High Yield Constrained index
over the financial year.

2022 was a difficult year for fixed income assets in general as interest rates rose dramatically to combat inflationary pressures.
Despite the challenging market environment, US high yield ended the year with a strong fourth quarter rally, spurred by Federal
Reserve (Fed) speakers starting to acknowledge some reasons to slow down the pace of tightening, which raised prospects of
a slower pace in rate hikes as the economy shifted towards a slow growth phase. YTD (to end May 2023), market sentiment
shifted to a more bearish stance in Q1 as inflation data came in hotter than expected and central bankers reiterated a hawkish
stance. Banking crises in the US and with Credit Suisse in Europe, led to a sharp decline in US Treasury rates, but fast action by
the Fed and other central banks eased the emerging crisis of confidence. By May, stubborn inflation data and mixed Fed
commentary raised the view that the FOMC (Federal Open Market Committee) may not be finished with its tightening policy.

Nomura performed well over the period. The key sector contributors included recreation and travel, oil field equipment and
services, and specialty retail.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)
Within recreation and travel, the exposure to cruise lines benefitted after the CDC dropped its voluntary Covid-19 guidelines,

which has led operators like Carnival to have increased booking activity back to pre-Covid levels, and a strong outlook for
demand. Qil field services companies also performed well. The main detractors included negative credit selection in wireless
telecom and in air transportation and chemicals. More recently, the underweight to speciality retail, in particular the troubled
online car company, Carvana, which came out with better than expected Q1 earnings, hurt performance.

Oaktree benefited from credit selection in a number of sectors, including software/services, health services, and cable and
satellite TV. From an individual issuer perspective, not holding Diamond Sports and Ligado Networks added value, as both
issuers became stressed. The avoidance of the banking names and an overweight to the rail sector also enhanced
performance. In addition, the underweight to longer duration bonds also helped, as these securities lagged during the period.
More recently, the underweight to speciality retail, in particular the troubled online car company, Carvana, hurt performance,
as the company reported better than expected earnings in Q1.

Portfolio activity over the period, included Nomura shifting to a defensive posture in the portfolio. The team increased the
exposure to discount BB rated bonds, which had sold off in 2022 and selectively reduced CCC exposure, gradually tilting up in
credit quality. This was on concerns that some of the issuers might become vulnerable if the economy slows down. At the
sector level, the weighting in consumer products and housing-related sectors was trimmed. The portfolio was rotated into
more defensive sectors like healthcare and telecoms. Profits were also taken in energy, which performed well during the rally in
Q4 2022. The team also took profits in names that been upgraded to investment grade. Oaktree reduced exposure to the
more cyclical areas of the market including metals and mining and chemicals names. Exposure to services, broadcast/outdoor
credits were also trimmed. In addition, the team switched from unsecured bonds into secured bonds of the same issuer in
certain sectors, on the view that this would offer a cushion in a more challenging or volatile environment. Select names were
added to within cable, secondary oil and gas and broadband. The team also added to select BBs in Europe, which had sold offin
Q32022.

The GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund underperformed the Bloomberg Barclays Global Corporate USD Hedged
Benchmark.

The global corporate bond market delivered a negative return in US Dollar hedged terms during the period which consisted
roughly of two periods of rising returns punctuated by a deep sell off in the Autumn months. Over the period, corporate bonds
marginally underperformed equivalent government bonds.

The period began with a strong summer earnings season aligning with investors mistakenly expecting an end to hawkish central
bankers. This dynamic led to corporate bonds generally increasing in price, untila mix of strong inflation data, continuedinterest
rate hikes and policy missteps turned sentiment toward risk assets negative.

This negative sentiment led the spread on the corporate bond index to reach post Covid highs in October. This marked the
bottom of the market with corporate bond prices rising strongly in November as the central bank community began to sound
more dovish tones.

Performance during the second half of the period was generally less volatile and characterised by gradually tightening credit
spreads as headline inflation in the US and Europe began to slow from cycle highs. This allowed the US Federal Reserve (Fed),
European Central Bank (ECB) and Bank of England (BoE) to slow the pace of rate hikes.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)
Risk assets, including corporate bonds, were also boosted by the reopening of the Chinese economy following months of

stringent Covid restrictions.

The notable exception in this better period for corporate bonds was March where spreads widened sharply following the
emergence of a regional banking crisis in the US which saw the collapse of three lenders who had mismanaged their interest
rate risk. The episode spread to European markets where Credit Suisse faced a crisis of confidence and deposit outflow
resulting in a hastily arranged rescue plan which led to the bank being acquired by their Swiss rival, UBS.

In a positive sign, the market largely shrugged off these banking issues with spreads tightening in the aftermath and investors
looking towards a mix of the attractive yield on offer from the market and the potential for price appreciation with many bonds
trading below par.

Overall, the Fund benefitted from an underweight to interest rate risk which added value as interest rates rose over the period.
Pimco drove this outperformance with an underweight to US rates during most of the period. Within credit, Wellington's
defensive positioning, achieved via positions in government related debt, was additive during the first half of the period where
the market sold off however this reversed later in the period as risk assets rallied. Pimco faced a number of challenges, in the
first half of the period exposure to Chinese real estate names, such as Country Gardens and Kaisa, hurt performance. In the
second part of the period the mandate's positions in financials, specifically banks, came under pressure while an underweight
to consumer related names detracted as the sector remained surprisingly resilient. The Pimco mandate can also take small
positionsin currencies. During the period the Fund had long positions in a basket of developed market currencies relative to the
US Dollar, this marginally hurt performance especially during the first half of the period when the Dollar benefited from risk off
sentiment.

The GlobalAccess Emerging Markets Debt Fund underperformed the JPMorgan Emerging Market Bond Global Diversified
benchmark over the financial year.

2022 was a difficult year for fixed income assets in general as interest rates rose dramatically to combat inflationary pressures.
For emerging market debt, both rising US Treasury rates and spread widening had a negative impact on returns. The Middle
East was the best-performing region in the index, while Africa lagged. From a country perspective El Salvador, Tajikistan, and
Ethiopia were the best performers in the index during the period, while Ukraine, Ecuador, and Lebanon lagged. Non-
investment-grade issuers underperformed investment-grade issuers over the period in question.

Wellington was the better performing manager over the review period. The main contributors included the underweight to
Ecuador and Ghana and overweights in Oman and Saudi Arabia. The out of benchmark allocation to Russia also added value.
Detractors over the period included the overweight to Ukraine and underweight positions in Turkey, El Salvador and Nigeria. In
addition, negative security selection in China, particularly in off index positions in corporate debt, largely real estate names, also
hurt returns.

The main detractor for Lazard was the overweight duration position in the long end of certain investment grade credits such as
Indonesia, Uruguay, UAE and the Philippines. The team had initially viewed these as an attractive trades, given the steep yield
curves in these markets. This detracted as long-term yields rose and prices fell. The underweight to Nigeria also hurt, as the
bonds rebounded. The other main detractor was the underweight to Turkey, as the bonds outperformed during the period.
These losses were partly offset by the portfolio’s exposure to select off-index corporate bonds, as corporates outperformed
sovereigns by nearly 2% during the period.
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Portfolio activity over the period saw Lazard continue to add to duration, by adding to select investment grade countries such
as Colombia and Chile, as well as adding to higher quality BB rated sovereigns such as Jordan. Profits were taken in Hungary,
Indonesia, Mongolia, Bahrain and the off index position in Israel. The overweight to high yield issuers remained, albeit much
lower than the start of 2022, with an emphasis on short dated BB and B rated credits. Within off index corporates, the skew
remains in favour of idiosyncratic stories in select financials, utilities and oil and gas names. Wellington took profits in Croatia
and redeployed assets into other CEE countries such as Bulgaria, Macedonia, Romania and Hungary. Exposure was reduced in
Azerbaijan and the positions in Bahrain were exited. The team also trimmed weightings in Indonesia, Senegal and Egypt and
added to Bermuda, Dominican Republic and South Africa. The off index position in local debt and FX was played
opportunistically over the period, with all exposure cut in Q3 2022 and added back more recently as the team have become
more constructive in that space.

The GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund underperformed the Bloomberg Global Treasuries 1-3 Years Index USD
Hedged benchmark over the financial year.
The period was challenging for global fixed income markets. The low duration government bond market delivered a modest

positive return whilst longer maturity developed government bonds, investment grade corporate bonds and US Dollar
denominated emerging market bonds delivered a negative return during the period. By contrast sub-investment grade
corporate bonds and emerging market sovereign bonds denominated in local currency weathered the period better.

The first half of the period was challenging for government bonds although markets did initially rise as US growth looked to be
slowing. This led investors to position for the US Federal Reserve (Fed) to pause rate increases however this narrative faltered
during the autumn months as consumer price inflation (CPI) remained sticky across most developed markets. Central bankers,
led by the Fed, continued to raise rates in response to this inflation and government bond prices sold off rapidly.

While much of this sell off was caused by developments in the US, sentiment was also hurt by developments in other markets,
namely the UK and Japan. Gilt yields in the UK increased by record daily amounts to multi-decade highs in September as
investors were spooked by the new fiscal policies of the UK government. This required the Bank of England (BoE) to offer
emergency support to prevent a crisis within the UK mortgage and pension markets. Then, in a surprise hawkish move, the Bank
of Japan (BoJ) adjusted its yield curve control policy by widening the 10-year band in December although monetary policy in
Japan remains notably loose compared to other economies.

The turn of the year signalled an improved period for government bonds. Firstly, investor sentiment was boosted when the
Chinese government announced an end to Covid restrictions. More importantly for government bonds however was the much
awaited signal that CPlin the US was beginning to consistently slow. This was positive for mid and long dated US government
bonds with prices rising and investors beginning to see light at the end of the rate hike tunnel.

Volatility temporarily picked up in March as a number of US regional banks collapsed following large losses caused by poor
management of their interest rate risk. The resulting hit to confidence in the banking system engulfed Credit Suisse, who had
to be rescued by UBS. Government bonds rallied during this period as the US yield curve inverted to multi-decade levels as
investors priced in a recession. This episode was relatively short lived and the period ended with investor focus turned back
towards the end of the rate hiking cycle.
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In November 2022 the benchmark for the Fund was changed from the Barclays Global Treasury 1-3 year USD Hedged total
return index to a new reference index. For the USD share classes, the Fund is assessed relative to the Secured Overnight
Financing Rate + 1%. The change in reference index has not change the way the strategy was is managed.

During the period the Fund underperformed the original Bloomberg Global Treasuries 1-3 Years Index USD Hedged benchmark
during the first part of the reporting period and more recently lagged the new reference index. The Fund benefitted most
notably from the allocation to sub-investment grade credit combined with selection decisions within developed and emerging
market sovereign bonds whilst interest rate position combined with currency, primarily through the Japanese Yen, detracted
from performance.

The GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund outperformed the Russell 2500 benchmark over the financial year.

The start of the period saw US stocks falling. Fears that the Federal Reserve's fight against inflation would push the economy
into recessionled to more steep losses. During the summer, US equities continued to fall. Risk sentiment deteriorated on fears
that aggressive interest rate hikes and tighter financial conditions would constrict economic growth and drive the US to
recession.

Stocks suffered steep losses in September after a larger-than-expected rise in core consumer prices showed that inflation
continued to mount across broad areas of the economy. Fed Chair Jerome Powell acknowledged that while there was
considerable uncertainty about the trajectory of inflation and a greater possibility of recession, the central bank was committed
toraising interest rates and keeping them elevated for longer until there was clear evidence that price pressures were abating.
As expected, the Fed raised interest rates for the third consecutive time. However, markets were surprised by the bank's more
hawkish policy forecast that signalled rates would continue to rise rapidly to a higher level than previously anticipated. President
Joe Biden signed into law legislation to lower prescription drug prices, boost renewable energy, and impose new taxes on
corporations.

The end of 2022 saw US equities rally following three straight quarterly declines. Greater optimism that the US Federal Reserve
(Fed) would begin to scale back its aggressive pace of interest rate hikes helped to fuel a sharp rebound in stocks in October
and November before risk sentiment waned in December amid recession fears, macroeconomic headwinds, and downside
earnings risks in the coming quarters. In December, the Fed raised interest rates by 50 bps, after four consecutive hikes of 75
bps. However, the Fed's Summary of Economic Projections in December indicated a more hawkish outlook compared to its
September forecast. Third-quarter earnings lagged expectations with some large technology companies reporting
disappointing results and weaker forecasts. The end of the year also saw Democrats retaining control of the Senate, and
Republicans secured a narrow majority in the House of Representatives, likely deepening the legislative gridlock and diminishing
the potential for significant government policy changes during President Joe Biden's next two years in office.

The start of 2023 saw US equities surge higher. Shares of large technology companies surged, helping growth stocks to
significantly outperform their value counterparts. A modest decline in consumer price growth during the quarter and a sharp
dropinthe Producer Price Indexin March offered greater assurances that price pressures are easing. However, prices remained
highly elevated, and the Fed's task of curbing inflation was further complicated by a robust job market, resilient consumer
spending, and tumult in the banking industry.

The sudden collapse of two US regional banks prompted swift policy actions by federal regulators, which helped stabilize

liquidity and stem the potential for broader contagion. The turmoil generated more uncertainty about the US economic
outlook, as investors grappled to assess the impact of tightening credit conditions and the path of interest rates and inflation.

23



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

Performance overview (continued)

April saw US equities end higher. Despite a greater risk of recession in 2023, markets were supported by better-than-
expected earnings from banks and large technology companies, resilient consumer spending, modest softening in the labour
market, and cooling inflation.

The end of the period saw this rally continue which was driven by a narrow group of mega-cap technology companies, which
benefited from investor optimism about their earnings potential and growth prospects, and exuberance surrounding
generative artificial intelligence. Markets were relieved after the US House of Representatives passed a bill to suspend the US
debt ceiling until January 2025 and limit government spending, advancing the legislation to the Senate just days before the US
default deadline on June 5th.

During the period, small and mid-cap stocks (as measured by the Russell 2500 Index) continued to trail large cap US stocks (as
measured by the S&P500). Over the period, The London Company was the strongest performer. Kennedy Capital struggled
over more recent months due to its bias to value. Stock selection in consumer discretionary and consumer staples drove the
positive returns alongside an underweight to energy. Selection in financials and communication services hurt, as did an
underweight to healthcare.

The GlobalAccess US Equity Fund underperformed its S&P 500 benchmark over the financial year.

The start of the period saw US stocks falling. Fears that the Federal Reserve's fight against inflation would push the economy
into recession led to more steep losses. During the summer, US equities continued to fall. Risk sentiment deteriorated on fears
that aggressive interest rate hikes and tighter financial conditions would constrict economic growth and drive the US to
recession.

Stocks suffered steep losses in September after a larger-than-expected rise in core consumer prices showed that inflation
continued to mount across broad areas of the economy. Fed Chair Jerome Powell acknowledged that while there was
considerable uncertainty about the trajectory of inflation and a greater possibility of recession, the central bank was committed
toraising interest rates and keeping them elevated for longer until there was clear evidence that price pressures were abating.
As expected, the Fed raised interest rates by for the third consecutive time. However, markets were surprised by the bank's
more hawkish policy forecast that signalled rates would continue to rise rapidly to a higher level than previously anticipated.
President Joe Biden signed into law legislation to lower prescription drug prices, boost renewable energy, and impose new taxes
on corporations.

The end of 2022 saw US equities rally following three straight quarterly declines. Greater optimism that the US Federal Reserve
(Fed) would begin to scale back its aggressive pace of interest rate hikes helped to fuel a sharp rebound in stocks in October
and November before risk sentiment waned in December amid recession fears, macroeconomic headwinds, and downside
earnings risks in the coming quarters. In December, the Fed raised interest rates by 50 bps, after four consecutive hikes of 75
bps. However, the Fed's Summary of Economic Projections in December indicated a more hawkish outlook compared to its
September forecast. Third-quarter earnings lagged expectations with some large technology companies reporting
disappointing results and weaker forecasts. The end of the year also saw Democrats retaining control of the Senate, and
Republicans secured a narrow majority in the House of Representatives, likely deepening the legislative gridlock and diminishing
the potential for significant government policy changes during President Joe Biden's next two years in office.

The start of 2023 saw US equities surge higher. Shares of large technology companies surged, helping growth stocks to
significantly outperform their value counterparts. A modest decline in consumer price growth during the quarter and a sharp
dropinthe Producer Price Indexin March offered greater assurances that price pressures are easing. However, prices remained
highly elevated, and the Fed's task of curbing inflation was further complicated by a robust job market, resilient consumer
spending, and tumult in the banking industry.
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The sudden collapse of two US regional banks prompted swift policy actions by federal regulators, which helped stabilise
liquidity and stem the potential for broader contagion. The turmoil generated more uncertainty about the US economic
outlook, as investors grappled to assess the impact of tightening credit conditions and the path of interest rates and inflation.

April saw US equities end higher. Despite a greater risk of recession in 2023, markets were supported by better-than-expected
earnings from banks and large technology companies, resilient consumer spending, modest softeningin the labour market, and
coolinginflation.

The end of the period saw this rally continue which was driven by a narrow group of mega-cap technology companies, which
benefited from investor optimism about their earnings potential and growth prospects, and exuberance surrounding
generative artificial intelligence. Markets were relieved after the US House of Representatives passed a bill to suspend the US
debt ceiling until January 2025 and limit government spending, advancing the legislation to the Senate just days before the US
default deadline on June 5th.

During the period, small and mid-cap stocks (as measured by the Russell 2500 Index) continued to trail large cap US stocks (as
measured by the S&P500). AB was the best performing manager as has a growth bias and was helped by the noticeable
performance of growth stocks during the period. Overall, the Fund's relative underperformance was driven by stock selection
and being underweight to IT and communication services. Being underweight to the mega-cap technology names which drove
market performance was a significant detractor. Stock selection in consumer discretionary and consumer staples alongside
an underweight to energy were positive contributors to performance.

The GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund underperformed its MSCI World benchmark over the financial year.

Equity markets fell sharply in June as investors became increasingly concerned about rising recessionary risks against a
backdrop of persistently high inflation, central bank monetary tightening and the ongoing war in Ukraine. The US Federal
Reserve had raised interest rates in May before surprising the market with another hike in June.

In August, central bankers around the world re-affirmed their commitment to hiking rates as aggressively as required to bring
inflation back under control. That triggered a sell-off that carried over into the end of the quarter, when losses were led by the
most rate-sensitive areas of the equity market. This period saw value underperform growth and lag especially in North America.
High yield was also a notable under performer, while small cap outperformed across the market cap spectrum.

Global markets rallied in October and November after a difficult September. Developed markets outperformed Emerging
markets, which were dragged lower by particularly weak Chinese equities. The positive tailwind of dimming inflation fears
outplayed the growing fear of recession.

This brief market rally came to an end in December as further commitments were made by the Federal Reserve to stay the
course with respect to rate rises. Despite some potential signs of cooling, the US labour market remained tight. The Bank of
Japan surprisedinvestors by looseningits yield curve controls. Some saw this as the beginning of Japan's pivot away from ultra-
loose monetary policy.

The start to 2023, proved to be quite volatile. The strong gains of January were followed by the competing forces of higher
interest rates and generally positive earnings before the fragility of the modern banking system was exposed again. Surprisingly,
the turmoil we saw in the banking sector and a hardening of recession expectations, the MSCI World Index finished the quarter
positively. Importantly, we saw dramatic style differences with growth outperforming value, especially in North America. Small
cap lagged across the market cap spectrum.
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Markets were significantly less volatile in April than in the previous month, helped by generally robust corporate earnings and an

injection of liquidity following March's banking turmoil. Investors began to consider whether the Federal Reserve may bein a
position to at least pause its interest rate hikes given lingering concerns around the US banking system and an anticipation of
tighter credit conditions.

However, volatility returned to equity markets towards the end of the reporting period as investors balanced concerns about
high inflation, rising interest rates, and persistent geopolitical instability against depressed valuations and resilient economic
data. There was a marked difference between the performance of individual sectors, as investor enthusiasm over Al boosted
the performance of technology stocks. In economic news, survey data indicated further weakness in manufacturing sectors,
with services still proving robust. Worries over the US debt ceiling made headlines although a deal was reached shortly after
month-end.

Towards the end of the period, performance of the Fund was dragged down by an underweight to IT as well as stock selection
within technology, where overweight positions in HP Inc and General Digital, or more significantly underweight positions in
Apple and NVIDIA, detracted from performance. An overweight position in financials and selection in materials, particularly an
overweight position in Newmont Corp also hurt. The Fund benefitted from positive stock selection in healthcare (Novo
Nordisk), real estate and Sweden (Atlas Copco). An overweight to industrials and Denmark was also a main contributor.

The GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund comfortably outperformed the JP Morgan GBI-EM Global
Diversified benchmark over the financial year, with both managers ahead of the index.

Over the 12 month period to end May 2023 Most emerging Markets (EM) currencies depreciated, driving negative
performance, while EM rates movement had a positive impact. Latin America was the best-performing region in the index,
while Middle East/Africa lagged. From a country perspective, Mexico, Dominican Republic, and Uruguay were the best
performers in the index, while South Africa, Colombia, and China lagged.

Colchester was the better performer over the review period, with both bond and currency selection adding to relative
performance. The main bond contributors were positions in Russia, as the securities continued to reprice higher over demand
from investors not subject to the sanctions, as well as the underweight position in Hungary and the overweight position in
Indonesia.

Within FX, the key contributors included the overweight positions in the Mexican peso, Chilean peso and the Hungarian forint.
Detractors over the period came from underweight positions in Thailand and China on the bond side and from the overweight
positions in the in the Korean won (off index allocation) and the Malaysian ringgit.

BlackRock benefitted from both positive bond and currency selection, with the majority of the outperformance coming from
the FX component over the period. The main contributors included the overweight positioning in the Colombian peso,
particularly in Q4 2022 and in Q1 2023, as well as exposure to the Brazilian real and in the Russian rouble. The bond segment
also added value, with the overweight to Colombia, Brazil and Russia the key drivers. The team'’s tactical positioning within
other high yielding currencies such as the Mexican peso and Hungarian forint also supported returns, as did adding to bonds
across a number of markets as the global disinflation story developed over the period and interest rate hiking cycles were seen
as nearing their end in many global central banks.

Portfolio activity over the period saw Colchester heavily reduce exposure to the Chinese renminbi, along with anincrease in the
underweight to the Indonesian rupiah during the second half of 2022. At the beginning of this year, the exposure to the
Colombian peso was increased, while profits were taken in the Chilean peso on the back of strong performance. More recently,
the team reversed the position in the Polish zloty from an active overweight to an underweight and used that to fund some
purchases in the Indonesian rupiah, Thai baht, Romanian leu, Peruvian sol.
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Exposure to the South African rand was raised as valuations became more attractive there. Within bonds, the team fully

divested out of all Russian exposure. Exposure was also reduced in Malaysia, while the overweight in Brazil and Colombia was
added to. BlackRock continued to add to bonds across most markets, with a strong focus on Central Eastern European
markets. Exposure to Russian bonds was reduced as liquidity improved and the bonds benefited from positive repricing in
September and October 2022. The team also played the US dollar tactically over the period, starting with a neutral position in
early part of the review period, as part of the defensive view. Since Q4 2022, the USD became a short position, also there was
a rotation from lower yielding currencies into mid and higher yielding EMFX including the Brazilian real, Colombian peso and
Mexican peso. More recently, a new investment theme 'short term funding challenges’ was initiated. This reflects the team'’s
view that any tightening in the US dollar is likely to be short term rather than structural. This is played by having an overweight
to the dollar and the Euro against an underweight in Asian currencies.

The GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund underperformed the MSCI Europe ex-UK benchmark over the financial year.

European equity market returns over the period were split into roughly two halves over the year. European equities hit an all-
time high just before the end of April and then edged off slightly in the last few weeks. That culmination of the strong upward
trend which started in October was preceded by declines of around 10%.

Investors were somewhat fearful in the Summer and Autumn of 2022 — there was an ongoing war in the far East of Europe,
concerns about a global recession, little sign of a peak in inflation and worries over energy prices given the sanctions on Russia
and yet, many of the concerns did not come to pass. For example, the war in Ukraine did not escalate further — at least not by
the end of the period —and many commentators began to talk of the peak in inflation, and therefore interest rates, being near.
With regards to technicals, European equities had been under-owned for some time but, in stark contrast to US equities for
example had actually seen net inflows in the Spring of 2023. The reaching of an all-time high perhaps reflects the fact that the
European market was perceived as being better able to cope with rising interest rates than other regions — due to its
comparatively heavy weightings in the likes of Commodities and Banks and indeed, that those European Banks are more strictly
regulated and in better shape (Credit Suisse notwithstanding of course) than mid-tier banks elsewhere.

There-emergence of Chinese growth was a positive too because a number of large European stocks are firms that make luxury
goods and export considerable volumes there. Also, we thinkit's really important to remember that the European Winter turned
out to be milder than expected which was also positive for the European economy and companies as the oil and gas prices did
not remain as elevated as feared.

Growth names once again strongly outperformed value names over the 12 months. The MSCI Europe ex UK Value (NR) index
returned 3.8% whilst the MSCI Europe ex UK Growth (NR) index rose by 11.7%. This Fund is designed to be balanced in terms
of style and provide an all-weather return. The combination of managers within the GlobalAccess Fund remained unchanged
with Invesco Perpetual providing a defined value style, Allianz providing a defined quality growth style and Blackrock having a
focus onincome and returns from dividend yield. These styles are complementary and we expect all three to outperform over
the long-term with manager specific stock outperformance, driven by stock selection, layered on top.

Pleasingly, despite the torrid environment, all three of the managers out-performed, gross of fees, over the 12-month period.
As expected, Allianz's growth style led to it being the strongest outperformer.
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The sector positioning of this mandate was hugely helpful with, to give one example, a large overweight to IT. Finally, Blackrock

and Invesco both slightly outperformed. This was due to their over-weights to Financials (primarily Insurers in Blackrock's case
and Banks in Invesco's case).

The GlobalAccess Japan Fund underperformed the TOPIX benchmark during the financial year.

Japanese equities delivered a positive return during the period, recovering from early losses despite market volatility remaining
elevated. Earlyin the period, market events were overshadowed by the shocking assassination of former Prime Minister Shinzo
Abe in July 2022, while other news flow continued to be dominated by a weaker Japanese Yen, rising inflation and the growing
possibility of a global recession. Japanese equities climbed despite all this during the first half the period.

The turmoil created by the collapse of Silicon Valley Bank and the bailout of Credit Suisse by UBS created more volatility in the
second half of the period, and fears of contagion briefly dragged down the performance of Japanese financial stocks. While this
reversed some of their gains from earlier in the period, the sector remained the top performer over the period. Markets rallied
strongly toward the end of the period as investors started to anticipate a slowing of US interest rate rises and foreign investors
continued to add to Japanese equities. Sector performance was mixed as consumer staples and technology stocks were
among the top performers, while energy was the biggest loser.

The GlobalAccess Japan Fund underperformed during the period. Stock selection was the main driver of the
underperformance for the Fund, while contribution from sector allocation was a modest positive over the period. Stock
selectionwas strongintechnology, but this was offset by negative contribution from stock selectionin consumer discretionary,
communication services and materials. At the sector level, an overweight position in technology and an underweight position
in consumer discretionary were the main positives, while an underweight position in energy was also positive. Among the
underlying managers, both Schroders and Baillie Gifford underperformed the TOPIX benchmark index over the period.

Schroders slightly underperformed, driven by stock selection, particularly in consumer discretionary and materials, although
this was somewhat offset by positive selection in industrials and financials. An underweight to communication services and
overweight positions in technology and financials also contributed positively. The largest individual positive contributions came
from WingArc 1st, a small cap provider of corporate data services and software. The share price rallied sharply as the company
announced quarter results which showed strong sales and lower investment spending than expected. There was also a strong
performance from Ibiden, a ceramics maker specialized in packaging for semiconductors and circuit boards. The stock price
jumped throughout the period after the company released several quarterly results that were ahead of expectations. Among
the largest negative contributors was an overweight position in Kohoku Kogyo, a maker of precision electrical components,
while an overweight position in Kureha, a chemical product manufacturer also detracted.

Baillie Gifford underperformed the index over the period. The underperformance was driven largely by stock selection,
particularly within industrials and communication services. At the sector level, an underweight position in materials and
overweight position in technology were among the largest positives, although this was largely offset by an overweight position
in communication services, which detracted over the period. At the stock level, and overweight position in industrial and farm
machinery maker, Kubota Industries, was among the single largest detractors.
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Also among the main detractors was poor performance from overweight positions in internet platforms and content operators

CyberAgent and Rakuten Group as a number of rapidly growing internet related stocks continued to fall out of favour with
investors. An overweight position in Disco, a maker of specialist cutting equipment used in the semiconductor industry was
among the largest positive contributors, while an overweight in Keyence, a maker of sensors, was also a key positive.

Over the period, Baillie Gifford exited the position in Inpex, Japan's leading oil and gas exploration and production business, as
the shares have risen significantly and looking further into the future, questions around the long-term sustainability of
extracting hydrocarbon resources and capital allocation are becoming more important. They also exited the position in Mazda
motor. Schroders added a new position in Miura, a small cap maker of boilers and related equipment, with a strong domestic
boiler business, rising maintenance revenues, and growing overseas demand where energy efficiency has become a hot topic.

A new positionin Intage, a leading marketing research company in Japan that has strong competitiveness in a consumer panel
research, was also added to the portfolio. New positions in Tazmo, a small cap machinery company engaged in the production
of semiconductor manufacturing equipment, and Mitsui Chemicals, a mid cap diversified chemical company aiming to
transform their business model to improve the profitability, were also added to the portfolio. A position in Yamaha Motor was
sold from the portfolio following a period of solid share price performance, while the position in Nitto Denko, a specialist in
industrial tapes, polarising film and medical products, was also sold.
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Investment Performance Net vs. Benchmark
Published Price

GAF Ccy Benchmark Name 1Year 3Years
(01/06/22-31/05/23) (01/06/20-31/05/23)
Fund BM RR Fund BM RR

Ireland

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP FTSE All Share 7.19 0.44 6.75 12.71 10.23 2.48
GlobalAccess US Smalland Mid Cap Equity Fund USD  |Russell2500 Index -3.94 -5.78 1.84 11.67 9.89 1.78
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund UsSD |SP 500 0.95 2.39 -1.44 10.28 12.39 -2.11
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR MSCI Europe ex-UK 6.26 6.78 -0.52 11.70 11.58 0.12
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund USD  |MSCIAC Asia Pacex Japan -6.40 -7.84 1.44 7.36 4.16 3.20
GlobalAccess Emerging Markets Equity Fund USD  |MSCIEmerging Markets -5.26 -8.49 3.23 6.16 3.48 2.68
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY TOPIX 10.74 14.47 -3.73 11.41 13.57 -2.16
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund Usb  |MSCIWorld -2.81 2.07 -4.88 10.54 10.97 -0.43
GlobalAccess Government Bond Fund USD  [Bloomberg Global Treasury (USD hedged) -1.46 -0.98 -0.48 -2.86 -3.05 0.19
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund USD  |SOFR+1% -0.50 2.26 -2.76 0.83 0.21 0.62
GlobalAccess Emerging Markets Debt Fund USD  |JP Morgan EMBI Global Diversified -3.56 -1.48 -2.08 -3.61 -2.70 -0.91
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt USD  |JP Morgan GBI-EM Global Diversified 5.51 3.06 2.45 -0.51 -2.31 1.80
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund USD  [BofAML USHY Master Il Constrained (USD hedged) -0.33 -0.17 -0.16 4.18 2.97 1.21
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund USD  |Bloomberg Global Aggregate Corporate (USD hedged) -2.02 -1.14 -0.88 -2.54 -2.22 -0.32

GAF returns represent "M" dist class returns ; US Equity- M Acc
Benchmark for GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund changed from Bloomberg Global Treasury 1-3 Yrto SOFR+1% effective 18/11/22.

The benchmark datais gross of fees.
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The following managers are responsible for managing assets as of 31 May 2023.

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Heronbridge Investment Management LLP
J O Hambro Capital Management Limited
Lindsell Train Limited

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

PIMCO Europe Ltd

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

Fidelity International Ltd
Hermes Investment Management Limited
Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd

GlobalAccess Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Arrowstreet Capital, L.P.

BNY Mellon ARX Investimentos

NS Partners Ltd

Pzena Investment Management LLC

Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund

Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management, Inc.
Oaktree Capital Management LP

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

PIMCO Europe Ltd
Wellington Management Company LLP

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund
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Depositary’s report to the Shareholders for the financial year ended 31 May 2023

We, Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited, appointed Depositary to Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC (the
"Company"), provide this report solely in favour of the Shareholders of the Company for the financial year ended 31 May 2023
(the "Annual Accounting Period"). This report is provided in accordance with the UCITS Regulations — European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011(SI No 352 of 2011) (as amended) which
implemented Directive 2009/65/EU into Irish Law ("the Regulations"). We do not, in the provision of this report, accept nor
assume responsibility for any other purpose or person to whom this report is shown.

In accordance with our Depositary obligation as provided for under the Regulations, we have enquired into the conduct of the
Company for this period and we hereby report thereon to the Shareholders of the Company as follows;

We are of the opinion that the Company has been managed during the Annual Accounting Period, in all material respects:

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Company by the
constitutional documents and by the Regulations; and

(ii.) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional document and the Regulations.

Il'l.,'.;;:__\ .u_t i 'h't(}lc( \\‘_{J:J

For and on behalf of Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited

18 September 2023
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Directors' report

The Board of Directors (the "Board") present herewith the annual report and audited financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 May 2023.

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union ("IFRS") and those parts of the Companies Act 2014 (as
amended) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the "UCITS Regulations") and the Central Bank
(Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2019 (as amended) (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations").

The Companies Act 2014 (as amended) requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company for that financial year.

In preparing each of the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

e selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
identify the standards in question, subject to any material departures from those standards being disclosed and explained
in the notes to the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to:

e correctly record and explain the transactions of the Company;

e enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company to be determined with
reasonable accuracy; and

e enable the Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) and
enable those financial statements to be audited.

The Directors and the Manager are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and thereby for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The measures taken by the Directors to ensure compliance with the Company's obligation to keep accounting records are the
appointment of an experienced administrator Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the
"Administrator”) and through such appointment, the use of appropriate systems and procedures to maintain proper
accounting records. The accounting records are held at the office of the Administrator. The address at which this business is
conducted is as follows:

Georges Court

54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2

Ireland
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Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of Directors' responsibilities (continued)

Audited annual reports and unaudited interim reports are available on www.barclaysinvestments.com. The Directors are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial statements published on this website. Information published on
the internet is accessible in many countries with different legal requirements. Legislation in Ireland governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. The work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that
may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Statement of relevant audit information
Each of the persons who are Directors at the time when this Directors' report is approved has confirmed that in the context of
Section 330 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended):

(i) so far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware;
and

(ii.) that the Directors have taken all reasonable steps that ought to have been taken as Directors in order to be aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ compliance statement
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the Company's compliance with the relevant obligations as
set outin section 225 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

The Directors confirm that:

(i.) a compliance policy document has been drawn up that sets out policies, that in our opinion are appropriate to the
Company, respecting compliance by the Company with its relevant obligations;
(ii.) appropriate arrangements or structures are in place that are, in our opinion, designed to secure material compliance
with the Company's relevant obligations; and
(iii.) during the financial year, the arrangements or structures referred to in (i) have been reviewed.

Audit committee

The Directors acknowledge that they are required, under Section 167 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), to consider
the establishment of an audit committee. The Directors have decided not to establish an audit committee because in the
Directors' opinion, at this time, the responsibilities of an audit committee, under Section 167 (i.e. the monitoring of internal
control, internal audit, risk management, the financial reporting process, statutory audit and statutory financial statements, the
review and monitoring of the independence of the auditors and the provision by the auditors of additional services to the
Company) are already being fulfilled by the Board by virtue of the Board's corporate governance regime and the existing
arrangements and structures in place designed to secure compliance with the extensive legal and regulatory obligations
imposed on UCITS investment companies in connection with the Company's management.

Remuneration policy
The UCITS V Directive requires the financial statements of the Company to include certain remuneration information, for
details refer to Appendix 1.

Corporate governance report
Although there is no specific statutory corporate governance code applicable to Irish collective investment undertakings, the

Company is subject to corporate governance practices imposed by:

(i) The Companies Act 2014 (as amended) which is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company (6%
Floor, 2 Grand Canal Place, Dublin 2, Ireland) and may also be obtained at: www.irishstatutebook.ie;
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Directors’ report (continued)

Corporate governance report (continued)
(ii.) The Articles of Association of the Company which are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company
and at the Companies Registration Office in Ireland;
(iii.) The Central Bank of Ireland in its Central Bank UCITS Regulations, which can be obtained from the website at:
www.centralbank.ie and are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company;
(iv.) The Euronext Dublin continuing obligations requirements for open ended funds which can be obtained from the
Euronext Dublin website at: www.ise.ie.

A voluntary corporate governance code for Irish-domiciled collective investment undertakings, was published by Irish Funds
("IF") the industry association for investment funds in Ireland in December 2011 (the "Code"). The Code is available from the IF
website (www.irishfunds.ie). The Directors adopted the Code in November 2012. The Company does not apply additional
corporate governance requirements beyond those required by the above.

The Company currently has no direct employees. Consistent with the regulatory framework applicable to investment fund
companies such as the Company (and in contrast to normal operating companies with a full time executive management and
employees), the Company operates under a model whereby, the Directors have appointed the Manager to provide
management services. The Manager in turn, has delegated certain of its duties to the Administrator, the Investment manager
and the Distributor. The Directors and the Manager have in place mechanisms for monitoring the exercise of such delegated
functions, which are always subject to the supervision and direction of the Manager and the Directors. The Company has also
appointed Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Depositary") as depositary of its assets. This entity has
responsibility for the safekeeping of such assets in accordance with the UCITS Regulations and for exercising independent
oversight over how the Company is managed. The depositary is regulated by and under the supervision of the Central Bank.

The Directors receive reports on a regular (and at least quarterly) basis from each of the delegate service providers and the
depositary which enable them to assess the performance of the delegate service providers and the depositary (as the case
may be).

Diversity report

In accordance with Regulation 6 of the European Union (Disclosure of Non-Financial and Diversity Information by certain large
undertakings and groups) Regulations 2017, the Board has adopted a diversity policy which sets out the approach to diversity
on the Board ("Diversity Policy"). The Diversity Policy acknowledges that the Board recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board and that a truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in skills, industry experience,
background, race, age, gender, education, professional backgrounds and other distinctions between directors.

The objective of the Diversity Policy is to ensure that diversity is considered in determining the optimum composition of the
Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately. The Board has considered the diversity of the Board and, whilst
acknowledging the importance of diversity and its many aspects has not set specific targets in respect of diversity.

The Diversity Policy states that all Board appointments will be made on merit, in the context of the skills, experience,
independence and knowledge which the Board as a whole requires to be effective. In identifying suitable candidates, the Board
will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity including but not limited to, those described above, in order to enable it to
discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively.

Internal control and risk management systems

The Boardisresponsible for overseeing the establishment and maintenance of adequate internal control and risk management
systems of the Company in relation to the financial reporting process. The Board is comprised of two independent Directors
and one appointed by the promoter, Barclays Investment Solutions Limited. The Board meets on a quarterly basis, or more
frequently as required. The Company has no employees and all Directors with the exception of Kishor Mandalia serve in a non-
executive capacity.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Internal control and risk management systems (continued)
As a result all functions relating to the Company's financial reporting process, including the preparation of the Company's
financial statements, have been outsourced.

Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (the "Manager") has appointed the administrator (consistent with the regulatory
framework applicable to investment fund companies such as the Company) to maintain the accounting records of the
Company independently of the investment manager and the depositary. Through this appointment the Directors have
procedures in place to ensure that all relevant accounting records are properly maintained and are readily available, including
production of annual and half yearly financial statements. The Administrator has functional responsibility for the preparation of
the Company's annual and semi-annual financial statements and the maintenance of its books and records. The Board noted
that the Administrator is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland and, in the Board's opinion, has significant experience as an
administrator.

The Board has delegated the day to day responsibility for monitoring the controls applied by the administrator to Carne Global
Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, acting as Manager for the Company, which performs day to day monitoring activities and
formally reports to the Board on a quarterly basis (or more frequently as required). The Board also noted the independence of
the administrator from the Company's Investment manager and Manager. The Board has satisfied itself that the administrator
has sufficient knowledge, skills and resources to produce the financial statements in accordance with the relevant rules and
regulations. The appointment of the administrator is intended to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
Company's financial reporting objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The annual and semi-annual financial statements of the Company are required to be approved by the Board and filed with the
Central Bank of Ireland and Euronext Dublin within the relevant respective time periods. The statutory financial statements are
required to be audited by independent auditors who report annually to the Board on their findings.

The Board evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises, these are documented in
minutes of meetings of the Board. The Board reviews the financial statements prior to their approval, though it should be noted
that such review does not include verification of information in the financial statements to underlying documents. The annual
financial statements are subject to independent audit by PricewaterhouseCoopers (the "auditors") who report annually to the
Board on their findings and on the audit process.

This report includes observations as to the extent to which the annual financial statements provide a true and fair view. The
auditors present this report at the Board meeting at which the financial statements are presented to the Board for approval.
The Board also invites the auditors to attend the Board meeting prior to the commencement of the audit, at which the auditors
present the audit plan to the Board. The Directors evaluate and discuss significant accounting and reportingissues as the need
arises.

The Directors have no power to amend the financial statements, with the exception of the provisions set out in Sections 366
to 379 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

Shareholders’ meetings

The convening and conduct of Shareholders’ meetings are governed by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company and the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company at any time, the Directors are required to convene an annual general meeting of the Company within eighteen
months of incorporation and at least within fifteen months of the date of the previous annual general meeting thereafter.
Annual general meetings are held once in each year, generally within six months of the end of the financial year.
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Shareholders’ meetings (continued)

Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company may also request the Directors
to convene a Shareholders’ meeting. Not less than twenty one clear days' notice of every annual general meeting and any
meeting convened for the passing of a special resolution must be given to Shareholders and fourteen clear days' notice must
be givenin the case of any other general meeting unless the auditors of the Company and all the Shareholders of the Company
entitled to attend and vote agree to shorter notice.

Two Shareholders present either in person or by proxy constitutes a quorum at a general meeting. Every holder of shares
presentin person or by proxy who votes on a show of hands is entitled to one vote and the holders of participating shares shall
have one vote in respect of all of the subscriber shares inissue. On a poll, every holder of shares present in person or by proxy
is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by them.

The Chairman of a general meeting of the Company or at least three Shareholders present in person or by proxy, or any
Shareholders present representing at least one tenth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholder concerned having the right
to vote at the meeting or Shareholder(s) holding shares conferring the right to vote at the meeting, being shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than ten per cent of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring the
right to vote at such meeting may demand a poll.

Shareholders may resolve to pass an ordinary resolution or special resolution at a Shareholders' meeting. An ordinary resolution
of the Company or of the Shareholders of a particular fund or class requires a simple majority of the votes cast by the
Shareholders voting in person or by proxy at the meeting at which the resolution is proposed. A special resolution of the
Company or of the Shareholders of a particular fund or class requires a majority of not less than 75% of the Shareholders
presentin person or by proxy and voting in general meeting in order to pass a special resolution including a resolution to amend
the Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Connected persons' transactions

Regulation 43(1) of the UCITS Regulations "Restrictions on transactions with connected persons” states that "A responsible
person shall ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a connected person is conducted a) at arm's length; and b) in
the best interest of the unit-holders of the UCITS".

As required under UCITS Regulation 81.4, the Directors of the Manager (the Responsible Person) are satisfied that there are in
place arrangements, evidenced by written procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 43(1)
are applied to all transactions with a connected persons; and all transactions with a connected persons that were entered into
during the financial period to which the report relates complied with the obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 43(1).

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company are market price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and credit risk, which are outlined in note 2.

Risk management objectives and policies

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Manager. The Risk Management department of the
Management Company had procedures, processes and policies in place for covering risk management and in particular
regulatory risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and use of FDI's. A detailed review of the risk exposure is detailed in note 2, on pages
76 to 85 of the financial statements.

Principal activities

The Company has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland as a UCITS (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) within the meaning of the UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. It is structured
as an umbrella fund consisting of different Funds each comprising one or more Share Classes. The assets of each Fund are
invested separately on behalf of each Fund in accordance with the investment objective and policies of each Fund. At 31 May
2023, the Company had 14 Funds in operation.
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Review of business and future developments
The movement of net asset values per share during the financial year is detailed in note 12 on pages 122 to 135 of the financial
statements.

The assets under managementin the Company decreased to GBP 2,616,040,865 from GBP 2,834,099,483 during the financial
year. The investment manager's report contains a review of the factors that contributed to the performance for the financial
year. The Directors do not anticipate any change in the structure or investment objectives of the Company.

Results
Theresults for the financial year and the appropriation thereof are set outin the Statement of comprehensive income on pages
47to 51.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of quarterly dividends out of each Fund's investment income attributable to the
distributing share class Shareholders. These distributions are usually declared and paid within 10 business days following the
end of therelevant quarter, i.e. within 10 business days of the end of February, May, August and November each year. Dividends
paid during the financial year are detailed in note 13, on pages 136 to 138.

Directors
The Directors of the Company, who all served for the full financial year except where noted, are shown below

David Kingston (Irish) (Independent non-executive Director)*
Hugh Paul Shovlin (Irish) (Independent non-executive Director)***
Kishor Mandalia (British) (Non-executive Director)

Damian Neylin (Irish) (Independent non-executive Director)**
Eimear Cowhey (Irish) (Independent non-executive Director)**

*Resigned 22 September 2022
**Appointed 22 September 2022
***Resigned 16 February 2023

Directors’ and secretary's interests
None of the Directors, secretary or their connected persons had any interest in the share capital of the Company during the
financial years ended 31 May 2023 or 31 May 2022.

Transactions involving Directors and company secretary

There are no contracts or arrangements of any significance in relation to the business of the Company in which the Directors,
Secretary or their connected persons had any interest as defined in the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), at any time during
financial years ended 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2022.

Details of transactions with related entities are disclosed in note 18 "Related Party Transactions" on pages 157 to 158 of the
financial statements.

Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (“SFDR") Periodic Disclosures

The periodic disclosures that have been prepared for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of
Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 are included within the Unaudited
Appendix.

The production of these periodic disclosures utilises third party data. Where applicable, Third-party data forms the basis of
calculations used within the Unaudited Appendix. Third party data is utilised under licence and with the data providers' legal
permission. Whilst all reasonable endeavours are taken to ensure the data provided is accurate, it is important to note that the
third-party data providers assume no responsibility for errors or omissions and cannot be held liable for damage arising from
the use of their data within the calculations and any reliance you place on the calculations. The availability of data continues to
be challenging and regulatory guidance in respect of the content of the disclosures may continue to evolve. The disclosures
included in the Unaudited Appendix should therefore be read and understood with consideration to these factors.
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Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (“SFDR") Periodic Disclosures (continued)

For any financial products included within this report that do not meet the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation criteria
for Article 8 or 9 funds, the investments underlying these financial products do not take into account the EU criteria for
environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Significant events during the financial year
A number of share class terminations occurred within the Funds during the financial year. Please refer to 'Funds at a glance
section within 'Background to the Company' on pages 5 to 13 for details.

Dividends declared during the financial year are disclosed in Note 21.

On 22 September 2022 David Kingston resigned as Director of the Company and Damian Neylin and Eimear Cowhey were
appointed as Directors.

Eimear Cowhey was appointed as Chairperson of the Company on 1 January 2023.
Hugh Paul Shovlin resigned as Director of the Company on 16 February 2023.

An updated prospectus was issued on 18 November 2022. The main changes were to revise the SFDR provisions for nine of
the Funds of the Company, which were reclassified as Article 8 of the SFDR, and to update the investment objective/
investment policy of the GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund and the GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund
following the successful passing of the shareholder resolutions mentioned above. A general update to the prospectus was also
performed, including clarifications to the investment objectives and policies of certain relevant funds of the Company. There
were also changes to the Directors of the Company.

The First Addendum to the Prospectus was issued on 1 December 2022. The addendum was for the inclusion of the SFDR
Annex Il disclosures.

The Second Addendum to the Prospectus was issued on 23 February 2023. This addendum was for change in the SFDR Annex
to the Prospectus in respect of the asset allocation planned for the GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (Ex-Japan) Fund.

Events arising in Ukraine, as a result of military action being undertaken by Russia in Ukraine, may impact on securities related
to companies domiciled in Russia and/or listed on exchanges located in Russia, including the Moscow Exchange ("Russian
Securities"). The Directors are monitoring developments related to this military action, including current and potential future
interventions of foreign governments and economic sanctions against Russia, in order to assess their impact on any Russian
Securities held by the Funds, including their potential impact on the liquidity of Russian Securities.

As at 31 May 2023, the below Funds had the following exposure to securities of companies domiciled in Russia:

Fund Name % of NAV
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 0.16%
GlobalAccess Corporate Bond Fund 0.01%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 0.51%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund | 0.15%

As at 31 May 2022, the below Funds had the following exposure to securities of companies domiciled in Russia:

Fund Name % of NAV
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 0.19%
GlobalAccess Corporate Bond Fund 0.01%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 0.28%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund | 0.69%

Other than noted above, there have been no significant events during the financial year, which, in the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Barclays Multi-
Manager Fund PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC’s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the Company’s and Funds’ assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 May 2023
and of their results and cash flows for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as
adopted by the European Union; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 and the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which
comprise:

the Statement of financial position as at 31 May 2023;

the Statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares for the year then
ended;

the Schedule of investments for each of the Funds as at 31 May 2023; and

the notes to the financial statements for the Company and for each of its Funds, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”) and
applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard as applicable to listed entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
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Our audit approach

Overview

Materiality

Overall materiality: 100 basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis points (equity
funds) (2022: 100 basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis points (equity
funds)) of Net Assets Value ("NAV") at 31 May 2023 (2022: 31 May 2022) for each of
the Company’s Funds.

Performance materiality: 75% of overall materiality.

Materiality

Audit scope

Audit scope - The Company is an open-ended investment Company with variable capital and
engages Barclays Investment Solutions Limited acting through its Wealth Management
Division (the “Investment Manager”), other sub-investment managers (the "Sub-
Investment Managers") and Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (the
“Manager”) to provide investment management and advisory services with regards to
part or all of the assets of the Funds. The Investment Manager monitors the
performance of the Sub-Investment Managers. We tailored the scope of our audit
taking into account the types of investments within the Funds, the involvement of the
third parties referred to overleaf, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which the Company operates. We look at each of the Funds at an individual
level.

Key audit matters

Key audit
maiters

Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example the selection of
pricing sources to value the investment portfolio. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair [We obtained independent confirmation from the Depositary
value through profit or loss and relevant counterparties, agreeing the amounts held to

’ the accounting records.

For financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss held with counterparties, we obtained
an independent confirmation from each broker or performed
alternative procedures to evidence the existence of certain
[positions.

[No material misstatements were identified as a result of the
procedures we performed.

Refer to the Schedule of investments for each of the Funds,
the significant accounting policies set out in note 1 and note
15 for further details. The financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss included in the
Statement of financial position of each Fund are held in the
Fund's name at 31 May 2023. This is considered a key audit
matter as it represents a principal element of the financial

statements.
Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at We tested the valuation of the level 1 and level 2 financial
fair value through profit or loss assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss by independently obtaining price quotations from third
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Refer to the Schedule of investments for each of the Funds, [party vendor sources where available.
the significant accounting policies set out in note 1 and note
15 for further details. The financial assets and financial [No material misstatements were identified as a result of the
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss included in the [procedures we performed.

Statement of financial position of each Fund at 31 May
2023 are valued at fair value in line with IFRS. These
financial assets and financial liabilities are comprised
primarily of level 1 and level 2 investments at 31 May
2023.We focused on the valuation of these level 1 and level
2 financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss as it represents a principal element of
the net assets value (“NAV”) of the funds within the audited
financial statements.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which it operates.

As at 31 May 2023 there are 14 Funds operating. The Company's Statement of financial position, Statement of
comprehensive income, Statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares are an aggregation of the positions and results of the Funds.

The directors control the affairs of the Company and are responsible for the overall investment policy which is determined
by them. The directors have delegated certain responsibilities to the Investment Manager, the Manager and to Northern
Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator") . The financial statements,
which remain the responsibility of the directors, are prepared on their behalf by the Administrator. The Company has
appointed Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited(the “Depositary”) to act as Depositary of the Company’s
assets. In establishing the overall approach to our audit we assessed the risk of material misstatement at a Fund level,
taking into account the nature, likelihood and potential magnitude of any misstatement. As part of our risk assessment, we
considered the Company’s interaction with the Administrator, and we assessed the control environment in place at the
Administrator.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements of each of the Company’s
Funds as follows:

Overall materiality and how | 100 basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis points (equity funds) (2022: 100

we determined it basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis points (equity funds)) of Net Assets
Value ("NAV") at 31 May 2023 (2022: 31 May 2022) for each of the Company’s
Funds.

Rationale for benchmark We have applied this benchmark because the main objective of the Company is to

applied provide investors with a total return at a Fund level.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for
example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above 5
basis points for NAV per share impacting differences (2022: 10 basis points (fixed income funds) and 5 basis points (equity
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funds), for NAV per share impacting differences) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Company’s and Funds’ ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

Obtaining an understanding of the key indicators that are monitored with respect to the going concern
assumption and management’s future plans for the Company and Funds over the going concern period (being 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements) through review of Going Concern memo provided
by management;

We reviewed available board minutes during the period under audit and those available up to the date of this
report;

Considering post year end movements in net asset values as recorded in the underlying accounting records;
Making enquiries of management with respect to any planned significant redemptions of which they have been
informed of;

Considering the liquidity risk management techniques which are available to the Company and Funds.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s and Funds’ ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
Company’s and Funds’ ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other than
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors’ report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act 2014 have
been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (Ireland) and the
Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described below:

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors’
report for the year ended 31 May 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ report.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s and Funds’ ability to
continue as going concerns, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to the Companies Act 2014, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might
have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2014. We evaluated management’s incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to Management Override of Controls. Audit procedures performed by the
engagement team included:

Enquiry of management to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations;

Identifying and testing year end journal entries that met our specific risk based criteria;

Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing and extent of our testing;
Reviewing relevant minutes of the meetings of the board of directors; and

Reviewing financial statement disclosures and agreeing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at:

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1¢f6-458b-9b81-
a98202dcoc3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
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Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be
readily and properly audited.
The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Companies Act 2014 exception reporting
Directors’ remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no exceptions to
report arising from this responsibility.

/mf O o—

Mary Ruane

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

22 September 2023



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Statement of comprehensive income

Income
Operating income
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total net income/(expense)

Operating expenses 5
Net operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating
shares

Interest expense

Profit/(loss) for the financial year before tax

1(e), 13

Capital gains tax
Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year after tax

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-

Fund Bond Fund Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP usbD UsD UsD usD
11,549,222 12,799,029 88,004 19,046 2,643,762 2,481,488
12,694,465 5,631,950 (786,709) (8,848,812) (6,571,161) (18,627,700)
24,243,687 18,430,979 (698,705) (8,829,766) (3,927,399) (16,146,212)
(2,598,605) (3,030,451) (835,982) (950,352) (910,678) (1,080,651)
21,645,082 15,400,528 (1,534,687) (9,780,118) (4,838,077) (17,226,863)
(8,671,970) (8,754,783) (302,909) (470,542) (1,126,846) (1,103,998)
(5,306) (1,600) (86,204) (19,108) (7,502) (1,744)
12,967,806 6,644,145 (1,923,800) (10,269,768) (5,982,425) (18,332,605)
- - - - 11,283 (159,663)
(100,005) (67,343) (16,104) (10,806) (400,409) (376,361)
12,867,801 6,576,802 (1,939,904) (10,280,574) (6,371,551) (18,868,629)
12,867,801 6,576,802 (1,939,904) (10,280,574) (6,371,551) (18,868,629)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of the

Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, allamounts above relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market GlobalAccess Global High Yield GlobalAccess Global Corporate

Equity Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
Notes usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD
Income
Operatingincome 1(c), 3 19,111,184 20,681,421 2,051,569 376,052 242,347 (104,850)
Net losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 4 (40,178,717) (154,213,792) (15,738,955) (55,579,939) (20,074,158) (110,475,037)
Total net expense (21,067,533) (133,532,371) (13,687,386) (55,203,887) (19,831,811) (110,579,887)
Operating expenses 5 (5,817,185) (7,392,299) (4,530,011) (3,913,636) (3,493,637) (4,241,596)
Net operatingloss (26,884,718) (140,924,670) (18,217,397) (59,117,523) (23,325,448) (114,821,483)
Finance costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares ~ 1(e), 13 (11,285,623) (8,740,221) (27,163,085) (13,915,688) (10,713,151) (9,700,716)
Interest expense (21,020) (17,186) (66,089) (17,170) (70,082) (47,308)
Loss for the financial year before tax (38,191,361) (149,682,077) (45,446,571) (73,050,381) (34,108,681) (124,569,507)
Capital gains tax (14,597) (2,056,505) - - - -
Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q) (2,356,935) (2,374,486) (103,921) (87,168) (1,438) 14,284
Loss for the financial year after tax (40,562,893) (154,113,068) (45,550,492) (73,137,549) (34,110,119) (124,555,223)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
(40,562,893) (154,113,068) (45,550,492) (73,137,549) (34,110,119) (124,555,223)

participating shares

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of the Company. In
arriving at the results for the financial year, allamounts above relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

48



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC
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Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

Income
Operating income 1(c), 3
Net losses on financial assets and financial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total net (expense)/income

Operating expenses 5
Net operating loss

Finance costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating

shares 1(e), 13
Interest expense

Loss for the financial year before tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)

Loss for the financial year after tax

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global Short

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Debt Fund Duration Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Usb usD Usb usD usD uUsD
519,245 308,720 72,139 18,624 1,210,707 1,434,804
(12,828,402) (70,675,357) (30,780) (3,544,780) (4,023,812) (9,919,837)
(12,309,157) (70,366,637) 41,359 (3,526,156) (2,813,105) (8,485,033)
(1,925,796) (2,647,565) (746,190) (946,097) (1,137,903) (1,480,037)
(14,234,953) (73,014,202) (704,831) (4,472,253) (3,951,008) (9,965,070)
(8,264,212) (10,086,762) (1,275,663) (2,356,755) - -
(28,338) (12,484) (30,416) (23,762) (3,242) (1,802)
(22,527,503) (83,113,448) (2,010,910) (6,852,770) (3,954,250) (9,966,872)
18,810 (18,810) (8,764) (31,009) (298,229) (384,574)
(22,508,693) (83,132,258) (2,019,674) (6,883,779) (4,252,479) (10,351,446)
(22,508,693) (83,132,258) (2,019,674) (6,883,779) (4,252,479) (10,351,446)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of the Company. In
arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

Income
Operatingincome
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total net income/(expense)

Operating expenses 5
Net operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating
shares

Interest expense

Profit/(loss) for the financial year before tax

1(e), 13

Capital gains tax
Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year after tax

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess US

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Equity Fund Fund Local Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Usb usD Usb uUsD usD uUsD
3,511,919 3,710,696 2,259,003 2,974,978 205,947 415,408
283,382 (14,092,495) (4,341,090) (10,599,959) 14,595,759 (42,623,356)
3,795,301 (10,381,799) (2,082,087) (7,624,981) 14,801,706 (42,207,948)
(1,749,994) (2,331,254) (1,039,100) (1,349,444) (2,211,546) (2,985,405)
2,045,307 (12,713,053) (3,121,187) (8,974,425) 12,590,160 (45,193,353)
(788,268) (563,329) (1,548,075) (1,867,713) (11,416,317) (15,692,792)
(43,572) (1,168) (5,684) (3,017) (70,467) (7,476)
1,213,467 (13,277,550) (4,674,946) (10,845,155) 1,103,376 (60,893,621)
- - (4,896) (6,598) (346,284) (8,674)
(919,105) (1,001,106) (370,357) (462,353) (612,311) (812,550)
294,362 (14,278,656) (5,050,199) (11,314,106) 144,781 (61,714,845)
294,362 (14,278,656) (5,050,199) (11,314,106) 144,781 (61,714,845)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of the

Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, allamounts above relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

Income
Operatingincome
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total net income/(expense)

Operating expenses 5
Net operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating
shares

Interest expense

Profit/(loss) for the financial year before tax

1(e), 13

Capital gains tax

Withholding tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year after tax

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
2,893,113 3,384,763 833,915,335 639,736,644 45,706,987 43,816,333
3,465,428 (2,921,748) 3,255,728,733  (1,010,577,367) (39,101,304) (374,453,984)
6,358,541 463,015 4,089,644,068 (370,840,723) 6,605,683 (330,637,651)
(1,277,331) (1,595,934) (331,143,177) (296,145,091) (26,031,554) (28,087,229)
5,081,210 (1,132,919) 3,758,500,891 (666,985,814) (19,425,871) (358,724,880)
(1,137,012) (929,431) (339,046,004) (153,251,386) (73,223,020) (58,477,068)
(12,253) (11,913) (9,604,208) (10,385,696) (434,513) (191,850)
3,931,945 (2,074,263) 3,409,850,679 (830,622,896) (93,083,404) (417,393,798)
- - - - (295,019) (1,658,788)
3,453 - - - 3,002 -
(209,194) (420,453) (124,727,195) (95,771,467) (5,260,219) (5,163,287)
3,726,204 (2,494,716) 3,285,123,484 (926,394,363) (98,635,640) (424,215,873)
3,726,204 (2,494,716) 3,285,123,484 (926,394,363) (98,635,640) (424,215,873)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of the

Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, allamounts above relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

12

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-

Fund Bond Fund Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP usbD uUsbD usbD usbD
319,650,712 294,935,466 102,372,308 109,706,416 68,822,428 82,269,291
4,686,017 9,403,516 2,105,864 1,977,137 2,049,341 2,496,389
1,621,038 1,157,716 209,215 4,172 221,993 138,955
- - - 140,000 - -
1,946,027 1,993,082 33,443,836 8,802,884 373,160 459,362
327,903,794 307,489,780 128,131,223 120,630,609 71,466,922 85,363,997
(35,335) (24,459) (933,084) (1,596,547) (85,872) (2,421)
(3,179) (1,141) (5911,772) (1,022) - -
- - (48,982) (397,437) - -
- - (2,010,000) (60,000) - -
(2,836,386) (1,654,097) (43,377,563) (18,792,519) (512,243) (581,825)
(2,874,900) (1,679,697) (52,281,401) (20,847,525) (598,115) (584,246)
325,028,894 305,810,083 85,849,822 99,783,084 70,868,807 84,779,751

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield

GlobalAccess Global Corporate

Equity Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Notes usbD usbD usbD uUsbD usbD usbD
Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1(b), 2 483,454,458 558,366,982 491,669,115 566,624,623 480,570,641 525,131,681
Cash and cash equivalents 1(f), 2,6 20,778,742 14,639,304 16,320,504 8,633,113 13,527,532 5,340,936
Margin cash due from broker 1(g), 2,6 1,324,358 572,930 - - 2,259,083 1,023,687
Cash held as collateral 1(h), 6 - - - - - 340,000
Other receivables 1(1),2,7 3,869,919 6,107,226 1,755,829 877,039 9,918,199 427,905
Total current assets 509,427,477 579,686,442 509,745,448 576,134,775 506,275,455 532,264,209
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  1(b), 2 (434,748) (1,109) (4,638,055) (451,966) (5,284,909) (2,114,584)
Bank overdraft 1(), (854,339) (2,277) (7,120) (1,401) - -
Margin cash due to broker 1(g), 2,8 - - - - (442,266) (597,787)
Cash pledged as collateral 1(h), 8 - - - - (1,580,000) (80,000)
Other payables 1(k), 2,9 (5,253,721) (6,914,890) (5,333,533) (3,828,374) (32,960,957) (6,563,102)
Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) (6,542,808) (6,918,276) (9,978,708) (4,281,741) (40,268,132) (9,355,473)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 12 502,884,669 572,768,166 499,766,740 571,853,034 466,007,323 522,908,736

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global Short

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Debt Fund Duration Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Notes usb usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD
Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1(b), 2 184,461,600 211,529,064 71,773,319 87,454,184 77,009,704 89,835,112
Cash and cash equivalents 1(f), 2,6 10,565,727 14,380,624 1,639,909 5,686,813 3,049,710 2,375,073
Margin cash due from broker 1(g), 2,6 724,967 672,973 1,472,557 1,007,396 273,621 328,197
Cash held as collateral 1(h), 6 10,000 70,000 260,000 50,000 - -
Other receivables 1(1),2,7 813,750 1,083,785 1,417,673 2,013,671 178,671 143,993
Total current assets 196,576,044 227,736,446 76,563,458 96,212,064 80,511,706 92,682,375
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  1(b), 2 (1,892,786) (480,091) (529,714) (752,985) (174,768) (67,642)
Bank overdraft 1(f), (198,982) (1,438) (6,303) (1,442) (4,127) (1,438)
Margin cash due to broker 1(g), 2,8 - (1,005,669) (621,895) (1,193,228) - -
Cash pledged as collateral 1(h), 8 - - (320,000) (25,000) - -
Other payables 1(k), 2,9 (2,032,467) (2,155,031) (4,319,257) (8,674,825) (498,817) (507,411)
Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) (4,124,235) (3,642,229) (5,797,169) (10,647,480) (677,712) (576,491)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 12 192,451,809 224,094,217 70,766,289 85,564,584 79,833,994 92,105,884

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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GlobalAccess US GlobalAccess Global Equity Income GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Equity Fund Fund Local Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Notes usb usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD
Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1(b), 2 225,093,721 251,173,916 56,581,262 71,603,534 220,754,177 218,730,587
Cash and cash equivalents 1(f), 2,6 9,307,770 13,459,975 2,813,566 1,457,829 6,019,337 15,006,454
Margin cash due from broker 1(g), 2,6 563,417 1,028,549 133,673 153,635 2 -
Cash held as collateral 1(h), 6 - - - - 420,060 610,060
Other receivables 1(),2,7 1,115,146 733,619 486,368 330,110 931,605 2,884,396
Total current assets 236,080,054 266,396,059 60,014,869 73,545,108 228,125,181 237,231,497
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  1(b), 2 (213,482) (27,769) (445,858) (11,625) (3,538,074) (2,891,836)
Bank overdraft 1(), (4,127) (1,438) (2,499) (1,438) - -
Margin cash due to broker 1(g), 2,8 - - - - - (146,042)
Cash pledged as collateral 1(h), 8 - - - - (330,000) (150,000)
Other payables 1(k), 2,9 (2,385,858) (614,952) (791,912) (841,098) (2,220,991) (4,649,362)
Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) (2,603,467) (644,159) (1,240,269) (854,161) (6,089,065) (7,837,240)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 12 233,476,587 265,751,900 58,774,600 72,690,947 222,036,116 229,394,257

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Currentassets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker
Cashheldascollateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total currentliabilities (excludingnetassets
attributableto holders ofredeemable
participatingshares)

Netassets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Notes

1 (b), 2
1(f), 2,6
1(g), 2,6
I(h), 6
1G), 2,7

1(b), 2
(), 8
1(g), 2,8
I(h), 8
1(k), 2,9

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

12

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May2023 31 May2022 31 May2023 31 May2022 31 May2023 31 May2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
86,071,028 97,844,572 34,936,059,418 31,905,899,155 2,582,338,572 2,774,704,665
1,524,769 1,180,242 1,477,194,052 894,012,478 85,673,967 83,724,974
929 929 260,029,493 407,867,551 8,918,939 7,586,320
- - - - 556,769 960,135
359,289 420,600 589,036,734 487,769,660 49,471,589 24,294,218
87,956,015 99,446,343 37,262,319,697 33,695,548,844 2,726,959,836 2,891,270,312
(7,849) (40,003) (57,094) (164,959) (14,703,825) (6,723,421)
(6,257) - (550,449) (185,016) (5,650,976) (11,720)
- - - - (898,131) (2,650,289)
- - - - (3,421,010) (249,940)
(591,675) (975,299) (427,328,170) (341,702,425) (86.245,029) (47,535,459)
(605.781) (1.015,302) (427,935.713) (342.052,400) (110,918,971) (57.170,829)
87,350,234 98.431,041 36,834,383,984 33,353,496,444 2,616,040.865 2,834,099.483

Theaccompanyingnotesforman integral part of the financial statements.

A

R T

Damian Neylin
Dated: 18 September2023

Eishor Mandalia
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-

Fund Bond Fund Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Notes GBP GBP usbD uUsbD usbD usbD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the
financial year 305,810,083 426,328,746 99,783,084 123,784,737 84,779,751 106,127,939
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares 12,867,801 6,576,802 (1,939,904) (10,280,574) (6,371,551) (18,868,629)
Share transactions
Proceeds fromissue of redeemable participating shares 51,980,368 36,696,304 5911,399 17,154,688 2,674,621 4,708,587
Payments on redemptions of redeemable
participating shares (45,629,358) (163,791,769) (17,904,757) (30,875,767) (10,214,014) (7,188,146)
Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions 6,351,010 (127,095,465) (11,993,358) (13,721,079) (7,539,393) (2,479,559)
Net increase/(decrease) in shareholders' funds 19,218,811 (120,518,663) (13,933,262) (24,001,653) (13,910,944) (21,348,188)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial
year 12 325,028,894 305,810,083 85,849,822 99,783,084 70,868,807 84,779,751

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the
financial year

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Share transactions

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable

participating shares

Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions

Net (decrease)/increase in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial
year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield

GlobalAccess Global Corporate

Equity Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsbD UsD usbD UsD UsD UsD
572,768,166 725,096,800 571,853,034 375,828,537 522,908,736 582,544,737
(40,562,893) (154,113,068) (45,550,492) (73,137,549) (34,110,119) (124,555,223)
46,594,785 82,590,524 56,559,736 325,178,364 34,936,443 126,217,893
(75,915,389) (80,806,090) (83,095,538) (56,016,318) (57,727,737) (61,298,671)
(29,320,604) 1,784,434 (26,535,802) 269,162,046 (22,791,294) 64,919,222
(69,883,497) (152,328,634) (72,086,294) 196,024,497 (56,901,413) (59,636,001)
502,884,669 572,768,166 499,766,740 571,853,034 466,007,323 522,908,736

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net assets attributable to holders ofredeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial year

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Share transactions
Proceeds fromissue of redeemable participating shares

Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating

shares
Net changesin net assets resulting from share

transactions

Net decrease in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes

12

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Debt Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

Bond Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsD UsD
224,094,217 309,420,044 85,564,584 120,732,252 92,105,884 126,058,549
(22,508,693) (83,132,258) (2,019,674) (6,883,779) (4,252,479) (10,351,446)
17,029,206 31,864,176 2,943,143 5,295,230 193,099 2,719,821
(26,162,921) (34,057,745) (15,721,764) (33,579,119) (8,212,510) (26,321,040)
(9,133,715) (2,193,569) (12,778,621) (28,283,889) (8,019,411) (23,601,219)
(31,642,408) (85,325,827) (14,798,295) (35,167,668) (12,271,890) (33,952,665)
192,451,809 224,094,217 70,766,289 85,564,584 79,833,994 92,105,884
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Notes

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the
financial year

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares

Share transactions

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable

participating shares

Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions

Net decrease in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial
year 12

GlobalAccess US

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Equity Fund Fund Local Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD usb
265,751,900 349,018,165 72,690,947 100,122,393 229,394,257 404,552,276
294,362 (14,278,656) (5,050,199) (11,314,106) 144,781 (61,714,845)
13,269,613 10,887,258 1,029,928 2,635,231 18,847,066 40,983,471
(45,839,288) (79,874,867) (9,896,076) (18,752,571) (26,349,988) (154,426,645)
(32,569,675) (68,987,609) (8,866,148) (16,117,340) (7,502,922) (113,443,174)
(32,275,313) (83,266,265) (13,916,347) (27,431,446) (7,358,141) (175,158,019)
233,476,587 265,751,900 58,774,600 72,690,947 222,036,116 229,394,257

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Notes EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the
financial year 98,431,041 118,106,815 33,353,496,444  28,729,167,212 2,834,099,483 3,050,533,612
Notional foreign exchange adjustment 33,253,997 263,788,540
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares 3,726,204 (2,494,716) 3,285,123,484 (926,394,363) (98,635,640) (424,215,873)
Share transactions
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 2,295,987 6,542,158 4,614,477,821 8,503,371,586 248,528,944 580,460,420
Payments on redemptions of redeemable
participating shares (17,102,998) (23,723,216) (4,418,713,765) (2,952,647,991) (401,205,919) (636,467,216)
Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions (14,807,011) (17,181,058) 195,764,056 5,550,723,595 (152,676,975) (56,006,796)
Net (decrease)/increase in shareholders' funds (11,080,807) (19,675,774) 3,480,887,540 4,624,329,232 (251,312,615) (480,222,669)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial
year 12 87,350,234 98,431,041 36,834,383,984  33,353,496,444 2,616,040,865 2,834,099,483

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating profits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Other (expense)/income

Margin cash due (to)/from broker

Operating expenses paid

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable
Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received fromissue of redeemable
participating shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable
participating shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
beginning of the financial year

Exchange on cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
end of the financial year

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Government
Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan)

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP usD uUsD uUsD uUsD
90,973,250 219,613,829 815,504,518 671,935,137 111,825,516 30,626,645
(102,545,445) (90,521,567) (805,668,528) (659,786,428) (104,751,076) (26,923,070)
94,371 1,229 1,260,306 1,854,258 54,900 600
11,413,449 13,091,353 - - 2,179,418 2,330,019
(13,106) 2,312 (5,861,343 299,111 6,720 7,035
(463,322) (163,645) (553,498) 207,018 (83,038) (57,707)
(2,495,405) (3,257,625) (839,775) (772,103) (886,985) (1,149,639)
(3,036,208) 138,765,886 3,841,680 13,736,993 8,345,455 4,833,883
(8,671,970) (8,754,783) (302,909) (470,542) (1,136,846) (1,103,998)
(5,307) (1,634) (86,247) (19,201) (7,497) (1,755)
52,277,458 36,913,164 5,938,462 17,146,144 2,674,548 4,740,151
(45,295,731) (164,712,139) (17,826,274) (30,636,294) (10,167,669) (7,178,698)
(1,695,550) (136,555,392) (12,276,968) (13,979,893) (8,637,464) (3,544,300)
(4,731,758) 2,210,494 (8,435,288) (242,900) (292,009) 1,289,583
9,402,375 7,190,609 2,056,115 2,590,263 2,496,389 2,460,513
12,221 1,272 563,265 (291,248) (155,039) (1,253,707)
4,682,838 9,402,375 (5,815,908) 2,056,115 2,049,341 2,496,389

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating profits
Proceeds from sale of financial assets
Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received
Otherincome/(expense)

Margin cash due (to)/from broker
Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable
Interest paid

Share transactions
Amounts received fromissue of redeemable

participating shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable
participating shares

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
beginning of the financial year

Exchange on cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Equity Fund Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usD UsD usD UsD usD UsD
224,857,677 390,768,934 393,138,407 280,311,846 1,031,318,285 721,461,975
(190,265,903) (411,035,336) (338,186,390) (523,501,527) (994,258,982) (775,633,754)
312,147 13,396 200,174 11,702 217,691 (112,754)
17,407,770 17,175,314 1,693,598 270,102 295 803
6,237 10,446 681,221 (3,474,637) (34,531) 276,554
(751,428) 1,196,864 - - (1,390,917) 453,389
(6,121,330) (7,984,508) (4,583,495) (3,606,662) (3,415,638) (3,979,967)
45,445,170 (9,854,890) 52,943,515 (249,989,176) 32,436,203 (57,533,754)
(11,285,623) (8,740,221) (27,163,085) (13,915,688) (10,713,151) (9,700,716)
(21,028) (17,241) (67,983) (15,646) (71,793) (45,905)
46,859,078 84,046,525 56,520,049 325,288,617 34,720,719 127,613,532
(75,103,242) (81,097,826) (82,243,937) (55,734,120) (57,090,305) (61,519,867)
(39,550,815) (5,808,763) (52,954,956) 255,623,163 (33,154,530) 56,347,044
5,894,355 (15,663,653) (11,441) 5,633,987 (718,327) (1,186,710)
14,637,027 36,086,903 8,631,712 6,036,130 5,600,936 7,331,396
(606,979) (5,786,223) 7,693,113 (3,038,405) 7,064,923 (543,750)
19,924,403 14,637,027 16,313,384 8,631,712 11,947,532 5,600,936

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating profits
Proceeds from sale of financial assets
Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Otherincome

Margin cash due (to)/from broker
Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable
Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received fromissue of redeemable

participating shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable
participating shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
beginning of the financial year
Exchange on cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usD UsD usbD UsD usD UsD
256,633,481 232,070,139 251,544,022 405,509,355 (43,693,463) 72,447,855
(244,286,570) (218,462,676) (241,191,904) (381,458,744) 52,755,156 (46,372,841)
171,684 5,781 1,981,307 3,156,397 74,620 949
322,230 295,699 15,752 4,506 809,409 1,046,544
353,967 656,874 49,065 480,953 6,675 7,080
(1,057,663) 1,101,396 (1,036,494) 246,383 54,576 (173,894)
(1,973,049) (2,808,104) (733,509) (1,016,902) (1,146,249) (1,568,063)
10,164,080 12,859,109 10,628,239 26,921,948 8,860,724 25,387,630
(8,264,212) (10,086,762) (1,275,663) (2,356,755) - -
(28,755) (12,378) (30,617) (23,469) (3,250) (1,804)
16,959,672 32,759,705 2,239,233 5,297,777 193,099 3,046,226
(25,909,633) (34,079,823) (15,723,317) (33,596,759) (8,199,976) (26,840,465)
(17,242,928) (11,419,258) (14,790,364) (30,679,206) (8,010,127) (23,796,043)
(7,078,848) 1,439,851 (4,162,125) (3,757,258) 850,597 1,591,587
14,449,186 12,701,196 5,710,371 9,254,850 2,373,635 3,629,630
3,006,407 308,139 25,360 212,779 (178,649) (2,847,582)
10,376,745 14,449,186 1,573,606 5,710,371 3,045,583 2,373,635

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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GlobalAccess US GlobalAccess Global Equity Income  GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Equity Fund Fund Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsD usD uUsD UsD usD UsD
Cash flows from operating profits
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 200,447,049 364,027,194 51,649,187 84,970,330 114,918,152 207,327,776
Purchases of financial assets (173,771,473) (296,571,196) (41,202,958) (68,939,536) (103,306,206) (80,374,401)
Interest received 203,599 175 46,967 1,328 100,772 4225
Net dividends received 2,309,494 2,777,237 1,844,034 2,551,532 87,417 404,108
Otherincome 6,557 7,080 5,638 7,531 115,087 2,139,527
Margin cash due from/(to) broker 465,132 (235,935) 19,962 6,331 (146,044) 187,369
Operating expenses paid (1,758,897) (2,496,766) (1,033,372) (1,465,106) (2,267,736) (3,443,913)
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,901,461 67,507,789 11,329,458 17,132,410 9,501,442 126,244,691
Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable (788,268) (563,329) (1,548,075) (1,867,713) (11,416,317) (15,692,792)
Interest paid (43,574) (1,220) (5,719) (3,070) (70,506) (7,565)
Share transactions
Amounts received from issue of redeemable
participating shares 13,311,079 10,852,189 1,041,322 2,621,809 18,719,268 42,171,986
Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable
participating shares (44,718,915) (81,943,012) (10,001,797) (19,521,087) (25,513,125) (154,607,246)
Net cash used in financing activities (32,239,678) (71,655,372) (10,514,269) (18,770,061) (18,280,680) (128,135,617)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,338,217) (4,147,583) 815,189 (1,637,651) (8,779,238) (1,890,926)
Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
beginning of the financial year 13,458,537 17,308,731 1,456,391 2,747,752 15,466,514 18,282,811
Exchange on cash and cash equivalents 183,323 297,389 539,487 346,290 (577,879) (925,371)
Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
end of the financial year 9,303,643 13,458,537 2,811,067 1,456,391 6,109,397 15,466,514

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating profits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Otherincome/(expense)

Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable

Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received from issue of redeemable
participating shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable
participating shares

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
beginning of the financial year

Exchange on cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral at the
end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
62,618,207 80,421,638 6,3200,656,115 4,380,375,259 3,020,153,186 2,888,719,092
(47,529,220) (65,139,917) (6,044,907,917)  (9,835,487,931) (2,830,622,267)  (2,802,392,090)
16,518 4,825 1,867,897 438,104 3,968,465 3,677,464
2,635,518 2,885,733 630,701,167 482,287,332 39,742,850 38,611,011
5979 6,302 (2,824,645) 857,546 (3,907,208) 323,580
- - 147,838,058 (305,407,461) (3,290,420) 45,114
(1,278,588) (1,656,600) (303,266,825) (285,887,790) (26,060,872) (29,023,217)
16,468,414 16,521,981 730,063,850  (5,562,824,941) 199,983,734 99,960,954
(1,137,012) (929,431) (339,046,004) (153,251,386) (73,223,020 (58,477,068)
(13,067) (12,070) (10,289,146) (9,392,232) (443,018) (183,400)
2,294,150 6,546,527 4,485,286,585 8,553,057,277 247,361,077 584,978,111
(17,263,952) (24,013,416) (4,332,063,496)  (2,940,090,347) (396,704,478) (640,197,478)
(16,119,881) (18,408,390) (196,112,061) 5,450,323,312 (223,009,439) (113,879,835)
348,533 (1,886,409) 533,951,789 (112,501,629) (23,025,705) (13,918,881)
1,180,242 2,358,091 893,827,462 1,003,562,211 84,423,449 99,045,798
(10,263) 708,560 48,864,352 2,766,880 15,761,006 (703,468)
1,518,512 1,180,242 1,476,643,603 893,827,462 77,158,750 84,423,449

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Company information

Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC ("the Company") is an open-ended investment company, with variable capital and with
segregated liability between its Funds, organised under the laws of Ireland. The Company was incorporated in Ireland on 27
September 2004. The Company is structured as an umbrella Fund in that different Funds thereof may be established with the
prior approval of the Central Bank of Ireland. The Company has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland as an Undertaking
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities ("UCITS"). Please refer to the section on "Background to the Company" on
pages 5 to 13 for additional details.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 September 2023.

1. Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards interpretations
adopted by the European Union ("EU") ("IFRS") and with those parts of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS and the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the "UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act
2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the "Central Bank
UCITS Regulations"). The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss.

The format and certain wordings of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in IFRS and the
Companies Act 2014 (as amended) so that, in the opinion of the Directors, they more appropriately reflect the nature of the
Company's business as an investment fund.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Directors are of the view that the Company can
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Please refer to note 2(d) for the liquidity profile and risks of the
Company.

The Company consists of 14 live Funds, comprising of GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, GlobalAccess Global Government
Bond Fund, GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global High
Yield Bond Fund, GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund, GlobalAccess Global
Short Duration Bond Fund, GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global
Equity Income Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund, GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund and
GlobalAccess Japan Fund, which were trading as at 31 May 2023.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of
the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Standards and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

There are no standards or amendments to existing standards below that are not yet effective that would be expected to have
a significantimpact on the Company.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Classification

Assets

The Fund classifies its investments based on both the Fund's business model for managing those financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the
assets' performance and to make decisions. The Fund has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any equity securities
as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash flows of the Fund's debt securities are solely principal
and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for
collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund's
business model's objective. Consequently, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Liabilities

In accordance with the Central Bank requirements, the Fund may, though the use of futures or forwards, achieve synthetic net
short positions. Short positions are held for trading and are consequently classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities as fair value through profit or loss. The
Fund's policy requires the investment manager and the Board of Directors to evaluate the information about these financial
assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other related financial information.

Derivatives
Derivatives are categorised as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL"), as the Funds do not designate any derivatives as
hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS 9.

(i) Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

When the Fund purchases an option, an amount equal to fair value which is based on the premium paid is recorded as an asset.
When the Fund writes an option, an amount equal to fair value which is based on the premium received by the Fund is recorded
as a liability. When options are closed, the difference between the premium and the amount paid or received, net of brokerage
commissions, or the fullamount of the premium if the option expires worthless, is recognised as a gain or loss and is presented
in the statement of comprehensive income within net (losses)/gains on financial assets and financial labilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss' category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within net (losses)/gains on financial assets
and financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss in the financial year in which they arise.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(ii) Recognition, derecognition and measurement (continued)

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income within dividend income when the Fund's right to receive payments is established. Interest on debt securities at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within interest income based on the effective
interestrate. Dividend expenseisincluded within net (losses)/gains on financial assets and financial labilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

(iii) Fair value estimation

Fair valueis the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The
Fund utilises the last traded market price for both financial assets and financial liabilities where the last traded price falls within
the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Directors will determine
the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value.

If a significant movement in fair value occurs subsequent to the close of trading up to midnight in Dublin on the year-end date,
valuation techniques will be applied to determine the fair value.

A significant event is any event that occurs after the last market price for a security, close of market or close of the foreign
exchange, but before the Fund's valuation time that materially affects the integrity of the closing prices for any security,
instrument, currency or securities affected by that event so that they cannot be considered 'readily available' market
quotations.

Thefair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined using valuation techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques engaged by the Fund include the use of comparable
recent ordinary transactions between market participants, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants
making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

(iv) Fair value measurement principles
The Funds may from time to time invest in financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example in over-
the-counter derivatives such as forward contracts). The fair value is determined by using valuation techniques.

For open futures contracts, changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised fair value gains or losses in the
statement of comprehensive income by "marking to market" the contract at the year-end date using quoted daily settlement
prices established by the exchange on which they trade. The unrealised gain on open futures contracts is shown in the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of financial position. The unrealised loss on open futures contracts is
shown in the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of financial position. When the contract is
closed, the difference between the proceeds from (or cost of) the closing transactions and the original transaction is recorded
as arealised gain or loss. Realised gains or losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(iv) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

For open forward contracts, the unrealised gain or loss is calculated by reference to the difference between the contract rate
and the rate to close out the contract as at the year-end date. Realised gains or losses, which are recognised on the maturity
of a contract, include net gains on contracts which have been settled or offset by other contracts. Realised gains or losses and
changes in unrealised gains or losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses
are included in the statement of financial position. Foreign currency contracts that are held for up to five business days are
treated as spot forward currency contracts and are presented gross within other receivables and other payables in the
statement of financial position. Forward foreign currency contracts are positions held for greater than five business days, these
are disclosed on the statement of financial position under financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of any Investment which is a unit of or participation in an open-ended investment fund/mutual fund shall be the
latest available net asset value of such unit/participation or where such Investment is quoted, listed or dealt in on a Regulated
Market, it shall be the closing mid-market price on such Regulated Market as at the valuation point.

(v) Specificinstruments
To be announced ("TBA") contracts
These are forward contracts on mortgage backed securities.

TBA purchase commitments

Certain Funds may enter into TBA purchase commitments to purchase securities for a fixed unit price at a future date beyond
customary settlement time. Although the unit price has been established, the principal value has not been finalised. The Fund
holds and maintains until settlement date, cash or high grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase
price, or the Funds may enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities that they own. Income on the
securities will not be earned until settlement date.

Unsettled TBA purchase commitments are valued at the current fair value of the underlying securities according to the
procedures described previously in the accounting policies. The contract is marked-to-market daily and the change in the fair
value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealised gain or loss. Although the Funds may enter into TBA purchase commitments
with the intention of acquiring for their portfolios or for delivery pursuant to options contracts they have enteredinto, the Funds
may dispose of a commitment prior to settlement if the Sub-Investment Manager considers it appropriate to do so.

TBA sale commitments

Certain Funds may enter into TBA sale commitments to hedge their portfolio positions or to sell mortgage backed securities
they own under delayed delivery arrangements. Proceeds of TBA sales commitments are not received until the contractual
settlement date.

During the time a TBA sale commitment is outstanding, equivalent deliverable securities or an offsetting TBA purchase
commitment deliverable on or before the sale commitment date, are held as "cover” for the transaction. Unsettled TBA sale
commitments are valued at the current fair value of the underlying securities, generally according to the procedures described
previously in the accounting policies. The contractis marked-to-market daily and the change in the fair value is recorded by the
Fund as an unrealised gain or loss. If the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition of an offsetting purchase
commitment, the Funds realise a gain or loss from the sale of the securities based on the unit price established at the date the
commitment was entered into.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(v) Specific Instruments (continued)

Participatory notes ("P-Notes")

P-Notes are financial instruments usually issued by a broker such as an investment bank which provides an investor with an
indirect exposure to an organisation's financial instrument that they would otherwise not have been able to invest in directly.
The value of a P-Note is generally based on the value of the underlying security to which it is linked. Certain Funds may investin
P-Notes which may be listed or unlisted and will be used to gain exposure to certain countries. These investments are measured
at fair value based on the closing mid-market price as at the Valuation Point on the year end date or the last traded price when
no closing mid-market price is available for the underlying security with any changes in their values recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Warrants

The Funds may invest in warrants. Warrants which are fully paid up and have a zero strike price exhibit the identical risk and
return characteristics as in the case where the Fund had acquired the underlying equity directly. Such warrants are valued at the
Official Close/Last Trade price for the underlying equity quoted on the stock exchange or principal market on which it is listed
or, if the Official Close/Last Trade price is unavailable or unrepresentative, the last available mid-price on such stock exchange
or market. Warrants detailed in the schedule of investments at 31 May 2023 are fully paid and have a zero strike price.

(vi) Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting period.

(vii) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Financial instruments at fair value are either priced with reference to a quoted market price for that instrument or by using a
valuation model or recognised broker. Where the fair value is calculated using a valuation model, the methodology is to calculate
the expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract and then discount these values back to a present value. The
expected cash flows for each contract are determined either directly by reference to actual cash flows implicit in observable
market prices or through modelling cash flows using appropriate financial markets pricing models. Wherever possible these
models use as their basis observable market prices and rates including, for example, interest rate yield curves, equities and
commodities prices, option volatilities and currency rates.

The process of calculating fair value on liquid instruments or from a valuation model may require estimation of certain pricing
parameters, assumptions or model characteristics. These estimates are calibrated against industry standards, economic
models and observed transaction prices. Changes to assumptions or estimated levels can potentially impact the fair value of
aninstrument as reported.

Securities valued using stale prices are noted as such in the Funds' schedule of investments on pages 162 to 409.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(vii) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

Single broker price:

Management make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below.

Barclays Investments Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management division (the "investment manager") and
Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator”) have an agreed documented
pricing policy in place which sets out the policies, sources and approach to the pricing methodologies.

For certain assets, the lead broker, normally the counterparty the relevant Fund has transacted with, has supplied indicative
quotes as atthe year-end date. Based onin-depth knowledge of the markets, the investment manager believes that, for certain
assets, using prices from a single broker source provides a more accurate price than that available from third-party pricing
providers.

Where unquoted or thinly traded securities are included in the portfolio of investments, the price will not be available from a
vendor. In these circumstances, the investment manager management nominates a reputable pricing source to provide the
primary price, possibly a market maker, broker or other competent party, who is independent of the investment manager.

Prices calculated by the investment manager on behalf of the Directors:

The prices used at the year-end which have been valued by the Directors are the best estimate of fair value as at the year-end
date. However, there is a degree of uncertainty in respect of these prices. It may not always be possible to close out the
positions at the stated mark of the given counterparty. The Directors believe that the values arrived at are reasonable and
prudent, however actual results may differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.

c) Income

i) Dividendincome

Dividend income arising on the underlying investments of the Funds is recognised as income when the entity's right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income is reported gross of non-reclaimable withholding tax in the statement of
comprehensive income. Further analysis of the dividend income is contained in note 3 of these financial statements.

ii) Depositinterest
Deposit interest is recognised as income of the Company on an effective interest basis in the statement of comprehensive
income.

iii) Bondincome

Bondincome arising on fixed interest securities and liquidity instrumentsis recognised as a component of the operatingincome
in the statement of comprehensive income under the heading "operating income". Further analysis of the operatingincome is
contained in note 3 of these financial statements.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Equalisation

The Company operates an equalisation account in respect of each of the Funds in order that dividends may be paid to all
Shareholders in a Fund at the same rate. If redeemable participating shares are acquired when the equalisation account is in
operation, otherwise than at the beginning of a distribution period, the first distribution after acquisition will include a refund of
capital, referred to as an equalisation payment. When a Shareholder subscribes during a distribution year the return of capital is
reflected as equalisation income in the financial statements. Where a Shareholder redeems shares during a distribution year
the return of capital is reflected as equalisation expense in the financial statements.

Net equalisation is included in distributions under finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income. A further
breakdown of the equalisation figures is included in note 13 of these financial statements.

e) Distributions

As outlined in the background to the Company each distributing share classes within the Funds will distribute quarterly at the
end of February, May, August and November each year. Proposed distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when they are appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the Fund. Distributions are classified as finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income. See note 13 of
these financial statements for distributions declared during the financial year and note 22 for proposed distributions
recognisable subsequent to financial year end.

f) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Cash and bank overdrafts are valued at amortised cost,
which approximates fair value and are reported in the statement of financial position. All Company cash and cash equivalents
are held with The Northern Trust Company (acting as global-custodian to Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited)
(31 May 2022: same), other than bank balances held as security by counterparties to derivatives contracts (see notes 6 and 8).
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

g) Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Margin cash due from/(to) broker consists of cash collateral held as security by/for counterparties to futures. Cash collateral is
valued at amortised cost which approximates fair value and are reported in the statement of financial position. Counterparty
balances are held with Barclays Bank PLC, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank plc, JP Morgan Chase Bank and Morgan
Stanley & Co. International Plc (31 May 2022: Barclays Bank PLC, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank plc, JP Morgan
Chase Bank and Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc) (see notes 6 and 8). While margin cash due from/(to) broker is also
subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

h) Cash/securities held/pledged as collateral

Cash received as collateral is recorded as an asset on the statement of financial position and is valued at its fair value. A related
liability to repay the collateral is recorded as a liability on the statement of financial position and is also valued at its fair value in
line with the requirement of IAS 39. Cash pledged as collateralis recorded as an asset on the statement of financial position and
is valued at its fair value. Securities pledged as collateral to counterparties are disclosed in the statement of financial position
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged as collateral. Securities received as collateral from counterparties
are disclosed by way of note in the financial statements. There were no securities received as collateral from counterparties at
the financial year end.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Cash/securities held/pledged as collateral (continued)

As part of their investing in futures, the Funds may receive or pledge collateral either in the form of cash and cash equivalents
or securities. At 31 May 2023, cash and cash equivalents received and pledged as collateral by the Funds to counterparties are
disclosed within notes 6 and 8. At 31 May 2023, no security was received as collateral on any of the Funds (31 May 2022: None).

i) Otherreceivables

Other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition
origination. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

j) Impairment
The Funds recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Funds measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-

month ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Funds consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. Thisincludes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Funds' historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information. The Funds assume that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Funds consider a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Sub-Funds in full, without recourse by the Sub-Fundsto  actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Funds consider afinancial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of 'investment grade'. The Funds consider this to be Baa3 or higher per Moodys or BBB or higher per
Standard and Poor's. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Funds are exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of creditlosses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Funds
expect to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

j) Impairment (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Funds assess whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when a Fund has no reasonable expectations of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

k) Other payables
Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. The difference between the
proceeds and the amount payable is recognised over the year of the payable using the effective interest method.

) Redeemable participating shares

Redeemable participating shares in the Company are redeemable at the option of the Shareholders, and are classified as a
financial liability in the statement of financial position. The shares are valued at the redemption amount that would be payable if
the Shareholder exercised the right to redeem shares in the Company and are classified as financial liabilities.

Shares are issued and redeemed at a single price (the "Price"), which is based on the net asset value per share plus or minus
dilution adjustments.

Dilution adjustments are levied, as in the opinion of the Directors, the existing shareholders, in the case of subscriptions, or the
remaining shareholders, in the case of redemptions, might otherwise be adversely affected. The dilution adjustment involves
adding to, when the Company is in a net subscription position, and deducting from when the Company is in a net redemption
position, the net asset value per share, such figure as the Directors consider appropriate to meet duties and charges and
spreads between buying and selling prices of the underlying investments.

The dilution levy is included in Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares in the Statement of changes in net
assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares when the Company is in a net subscription position, and is
included in Payments on redemption of redeemable participating shares in the Statement of changes in net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares when the Company is in a net redemption position.

m) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty. At 31 May 2023 (31 May 2022: same), no financial assets or financial liabilities were offset in the statement of
financial position. Spot currency contracts which are open for five business days or less are presented gross within other
receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Sale and purchase of securities awaiting settlement

Sale and Purchase of securities awaiting settlement represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered respectively as at the reporting date. These are
recorded initially at amortized cost and subsequently measured at fair value.

o) Subscriptions and redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

Subscriptions and redemptions of shares awaiting settlement relate to receivables on share subscriptions and payables on
share redemptions that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the reporting date, respectively. These
are recorded initially at amortized cost and subsequently measured at fair value.

p) Fair value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

In accordance with the provisions of the Prospectus and Supplements, listed investments are stated at the closing mid-market
price at the valuation point or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is available on the valuation day for the
purpose of determining the net asset value per share for subscriptions and redemptions and for various fee calculations.

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders represent a liability on the statement of financial position,
carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the statement of financial position date if the Shareholder exercised
the right to redeem shares in the Company.

q) Taxation

Under current law and practice, the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains. The Company will
not be liable for tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a chargeable event. A chargeable event
includes any distribution or any redemption or transfer of shares.

However, some dividend and interest income received by the Company may be subject to withholding tax imposed in the
country of origin. Investmentincome is recorded gross of such taxes in the statement of comprehensive income.

r) Foreign exchange

The Company has adopted British pound as its functional and presentation currency, as the majority of the Company's
investors are based in the UK. A foreign currency transaction is recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the actual exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

The functional and presentation currency of each Fundis:

Fund Currency
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund British pound
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Euro
GlobalAccess Japan Fund Japanese yen
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

s) Translation to presentation currency

Forthe purpose of combining the financial statements of the Funds to arrive at Company figures (required under Irish Company
Law), the amounts in the financial statements have been translated into the presentation currency which is British pound, at
the exchange rate ruling at 31 May 2023. The translation has no effect on the net asset value per share attributable to the
individual Funds.

The average exchange rates were used to convert balances in the statement of comprehensive income. The resulting
transaction gain GBP 33,253,997 (31 May 2022: Gain GBP 263,788,540) is due to the movement in exchange rates between 1
June 2022 and 31 May 2023. This is a notional gain which has no impact on the net asset value per share attributable to the
individual share class of the individual Funds.

Proceeds from subscriptions and amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating shares are translated at average
rates, which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equities, held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income and as exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

t) Transaction costs

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire or dispose of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. They include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are expensed when
incurred and are included as part of the cost of such purchases or sales.

u) Valuation point
The valuation point used to value the securities for the purpose of the financial statements is that of 10 p.m. (GMT) on 31 May
2023 (31 May 2022: 10 p.m. (GMT)) per the Prospectus.

2. Financial risk management

a) Strategy in using financial instruments

The Company is an umbrella Fund and consists of a series of 14 Funds at financial year end. Each Fund has its own investment
objectives and the Company appoints Sub-Investment managers to provide investment management and advisory servicesin
respect of the assets of the Funds. The investment manager monitors the performance of the Sub-Investment managers.
Each Fund's investment objectives are set out in the Prospectus to the Fund.

The Company trades in financial instruments, taking positions in traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short and long term market movements in the equity and bond markets. Investments held at
year end are representative of the type of investments held during the financial year.

In pursuing its investment objectives, each Fundis exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price risk,
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk that could result in a reduction in a Fund's net assets or a
reduction of the profits available for distribution. The Funds devote considerable resources to maintaining effective controls to
manage, measure and mitigate each of these risks, and regularly reviews its risk management procedures and systems to
ensure that they continue to meet the needs of the business. The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Funds' financial performance.

As part of the overall risk management process, the Company had appointed Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) limited to
provide risk calculations for the Company. These risk calculations were sourced from Bloomberg by the investment manager.

Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) limited provided independent, third-party monitoring of the relevant regulatory limits and

provided certain information that assists the Directors in understanding the risk positions of the securities held individually and
how they behaved at the Fund Level.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

a) Strategy in using financial instruments (continued)

Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) limited undertook daily reporting directly to the risk management function of the
investment manager. The data used for reporting purposes was taken directly from the administrator, to ensure that reporting
is atarm'’s length from the investment manager. Immediate escalation of items identified in daily reports was to be provided to
the Board, Depositary and Regulator by the risk manager within the risk management function of the investment manager.

Where a Fund has more than one Sub-Investment manager, the investment manager will prepare 'Objectives, Guidelines and
Reporting Requirements' which set maximum exposure limits per Sub-Investment manager which seek to ensure that the Fund
as a whole does not breach any quantitative limits set out in the Prospectus. The Sub-Investment managers provide the
investment manager with regular updates on their risk monitoring activities and makes available all necessary information for
the investment manager to assess the functioning of the control processes in place. At a minimum, the investment manager
reports quarterly to the Board.

The Sub-Investment managers are chosen by the investment manager/Funds research team from a global market of around
10,000 different fund-management companies. When selecting managers, the investment manager/Funds research team
first develops a list of investment managers arranged in peer groups according to regions and investment style.

Then, to assess each manager's ability to match the investment targets, the investment manager/Funds research team uses
a proprietary multi-factor screening method to evaluate past risk-adjusted performance on a relative and absolute basis. The
performance and risk of the selected Sub-Investment managers are monitored closely and regularly by the investment
manager/Funds research team.

The investment manager ensures that each Sub-Investment manager is aware of, and agrees to, applicable concentration
limits and risk diversification rules for the Fund or portion of a Fund it manages. It ensures that controls are established to
monitor the inherent risks, examine the level and effectiveness of these controls, procure statements and reports on the risk
control activities, evaluate the findings and actively manage risk diversification breaches and corrective actions.

The Funds make use of the following financial derivatives instruments:
(i) Futures (Involving debt and equity indices, currencies, interest rates and other asset categories and combinations
of these);
(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts; or,
(i) Combinations of (i) and (ii) above.

The commercial purpose behind the use of all these financial derivatives instruments is:
(i) forthe purposes of efficient portfolio management;
(i) toincreaseinvestmentreturns;
(i) to hedge away unwanted investment risk; or,
(iv) exposure to new asset types.

The Funds are subject to a number of investment restrictions imposed by external regulators or self-imposed by the
Prospectus and Memorandum and Articles of Association. These restrictions are intended to reduce the risks associated with
the Funds' financial instruments. Compliance by the Funds with the investment restrictions imposed by the UCITS Regulations
is monitored weekly and reported to the Board monthly by the Depositary. The investment manager also reports quarterly to
the Board onwhether the Funds have been operatedin accordance with the investment guidelines as defined in the Prospectus
as well as any self-imposed limitations. These policies for managing risk have been applied throughout the financial year.

The funds invest in securities exempt from registration under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. These
securities may only be resold, in transactions exempt from registration, to qualified institutional buyers.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

b) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to movements in market factors. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: market price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

The Sub-Investment managers mitigate market risk through asset allocation, security selection and hedging within specified
limits. Risk exposures are monitored on a daily basis by the Company's investment manager and are reviewed on a quarterly
basis by the Board.

At 31 May 2023, each Fund's market risk is affected by three main components:
() changesinactual market prices,
(i) foreign currency movements, and,
(i) interestrate movements

(i) Market price risk

Market price is defined as the prevailing price at which the financial instruments held by the Funds may be sold within a public
arena. It is the estimated amount for which an investment should exchange between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arms-length transaction wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently, and without compulsion. Market price
risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from movements in market prices.

The Board manage the market price risks inherent in the investment portfolios by ensuring full and timely access to relevant
information from the investment manager. The Board meets regularly and at each meeting reviews investment performance
and overall market positions. They monitor the investment manager’'s compliance with the Funds' objectives. There were no
material changes to the Company's policies and processes for managing market price risk and the methods and assumptions
used to measure risk during the financial year.

Value at risk

A key metric used to measure market risk is Value-at-Risk ("VaR") which encompasses currency, interest rate and price risk.
VaR is a statistical risk measure that estimates the potential portfolio loss from adverse market movements in an ordinary
market environment. VaR analysis reflects the interdependencies between risk variables, unlike a traditional sensitivity analysis.

VaR is calculated in the fund currency using Historical methodology with a 250D look back, 1 decay, 20D time horizon and 99%
confidence interval. The ratio of VaR to official NAV is provided. For example, 9% means that the fund stands to lose 9% of the
NAV in one month at 99% confidence interval. The UCITS IV alert level is 20%. Standalone VaR of derivatives and non-
derivatives are broken down as % of NAV as an indicator value only. If an instrument is not explicitly marked as a derivatives or
non-derivative then allembedded derivatives are treated as non-derivatives. For example, a callable bond or a convertible bond
appears under non-derivative while an equity option or CDS is a derivative. In addition, stand-alone VaR of OTC securities are
broken down as % of NAV. OTC securities are examined in the counterparty credit exposure test.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)
b) Marketrisk (continued)

(i) Market price risk (continued)

Value at risk (continued)

Value-at-Risk asat Value-at-Risk asat

31May 2023 31 May 2022

PortfolioName Portfolio VaR (%) Portfolio VaR (%)
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund 10.72 12.36
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund 4.03 2.53
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund 9.10 13.23
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 10.03 13.04
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund 3.48 3.46
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund 3.29 3.54
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 4.11 5.27
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund 1.87 1.32
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund 11.49 14.58
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund 9.08 12.49
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund 5.01 6.35
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund 12.46 13.57
GlobalAccess Japan Fund 10.96 14.08
GlobalAccess US Smalland Mid Cap Equity Fund 12.06 17.81

Whilst the funds' official method for the monitoring of global exposure is the commitment approach as per the funds risk
management process document, the VaR ("Value at Risk") data was provided because it's a useful indicator of market risk for
the fund rather than this being the measure of global exposure under the UCITS rules. Carne as Manager notes that the VaR
methodology implemented differs from that of the VaR methodology disclosed in the prior year's financial statements. As VaR
data was not sourced by Carne in prior years, and the funds documentation does not reference the most appropriate
methodology, there may be some discrepancies in models from one year to the next which may lead to a difference in results
if analysed in terms of relative change from one year to the next.

Some limitations of VaR analysis:

- the methodology is based on historical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price movements,
correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity in conditions of market stress may bear no relation to
historical patterns; and

- theVaRis a point-in-time calculation, and does not necessarily reflect the risk position of the Funds at any time other
than the date and time at which itis calculated.

VaR is presented for the purposes of financial reporting. The investment manager also calculates each Fund's global exposure
using the commitment approach as prescribed in the UCITS notices.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency riskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Certain of the Funds' assets, liabilities and income are denominated in currencies other than their
functional currency. They are, therefore, exposed to currency risk as the value of the securities denominated in other
currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. Income denominated in foreign currencies is converted to the
appropriate functional currency onreceipt.

Where appropriate, as defined in the Funds' investment policies and Prospectus, the Company can employ techniques and
instruments intended to hedge currency risk in the context of the management of its assets and liabilities. In this regard, the
Company utilises hedged exposure to one currency by entering into forward foreign currency transactions. The details of
forward foreign currency contracts which are open for greater than five business days are disclosed in the Funds' schedule of
investments, where applicable. Spot currency contracts which are openfor five business days or less are presented gross within
other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position. All foreign currency contracts can either be settled
netor gross at the discretion of the investment manager and where the terms of the agreement permits positions to be settled
net. During the financial year all foreign currency contracts settled gross.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

b) Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The currency hedging is executed at the Sub-Investment manager level using currency Forwards, in line with the guidelines of
the portfolio of investments. It is the responsibility of the Sub-Investment manager to execute these trades and monitor the
resulting currency exposure of their portfolio of investments.

In accordance with Company policy, the investment manager monitors the Funds' currency position on a daily basis and the
Board reviews it on a regular basis. There were no material changes to the Company's policies and processes for currency risk
and the methods used to measure risk during the financial year. The Funds' foreign currency exposure is shown in the schedule
of investment by disclosing the currency of the underlying positions. The current year exposure currencies are representative
of the prior year.

The Funds' sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates is included in the calculation of VaR disclosed earlier.

(iii) Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment's value will change due to a change in the absolute level of interest rates, in the
spread between two rates, in the shape of the yield curve or in any other interest rate relationship. The Funds' interest bearing
financial assets and financial liabilities expose them to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on their financial position and cash flows. The Funds are also exposed to interest rate risk through their
bank balances where interest is earned and interest expense of overdrafts.

Interest rate risk affects the value of bonds more directly than equities and as such, will affect different Funds based on their
constituent securities. For GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund, GlobalAccess
Emerging Market Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Equity Fund, GlobalAccess
Global Equity Income Fund, GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund and GlobalAccess Japan Fund, the majority of the
financial assets are equity shares and other investments which neither pay interest nor have a maturity date and therefore,
thereis no significant interest rate exposure.

Theinterest rate exposure for the fixed income Funds is disclosed for each holding in the Funds' schedules ofinvestments. The
Funds' sensitivity to changes in interest rates is incorporated into the calculation of VaR disclosed earlier.

c) Creditrisk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty or anissuer will be unable to pay amounts
in fullwhen due. Financial assets which potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist principally of bonds, cash balances
and deposits with and receivables from the Depositary and the counterparties to derivative contracts as well as equities. The
carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the statement of financial position
date.

All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered
minimal, as delivery of securities soldis only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.

All details of counterparties, and amounts/collateral held as security, are disclosed in the schedule of investments. There were
no securities held as collateral on the 31 May 2023 (31 May 2022: Nil).

The Sub-Investment managers assess all counterparties and brokers separately as part of their risk management process, for
credit risk before contracting with them. Counterparties for foreign exchange forwards and spot forward currency contracts
entered into by Barclays are approved internally as part of the trading and best execution policy for the Funds. At present,
counterparties are all major international banking institutions and itis not envisaged that this policy will change in the near future.
Approval is reviewed if a counterparty's credit rating deteriorates. Counterparty exposure is monitored through the daily
generation of a compliance report to test that the exposure to counterparties does not exceed limits required by legal and
Prospectus rules.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

c) Creditrisk (continued)

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating to unsettled
transactionsis considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the brokers used. The
Sub-Investment managers monitor the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate this risk.
Where the investment manager has entered into transactions with brokers directly on behalf of the Funds, the credit rating and
financial positions of the brokers used will be monitored by them.

Certain Funds invest into forward contracts which expose the Funds to counterparty risk, should they default. The maximum
credit exposure to these counterparties equals the unrealised gain on the contracts as at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2022 as
disclosed in each Fund's schedule of investments where this is settled net or the notional amount where this is settled gross.
Although the Sub-Investment managers employ appropriate procedures to ensure that the counterparties are reputable
institutions and that the credit risk to the Fund is acceptable, the Funds may incur a loss if a counterparty were to default onits
obligations. The Fund mitigates this risk through ensuring that the exposure to over-the-counter derivative counterparties
does not exceed 5% of the net asset value ("NAV") of the Fund. This limit is raised to 10% in the case of credit institutions.

Certain Funds invest in participatory notes ("P-Notes") which also exposes them to counterparty risk whereby the primary
exposure s to the issuer(s) of those notes. Although the Sub-Investment managers employ appropriate procedures to ensure
that the counterparties are reputable institutions and that the credit risk to the Fund is acceptable, the Funds may incur a loss
if a counterparty were to default on its obligations. The Fund mitigates this risk through ensuring that the exposure to such
counterparties does not exceed 10% of the NAV of each Fund.

A combination of two or more of investments in transferable securities or money market instruments, deposits, and/or
counterparty risk exposures arising from OTC derivatives transactions issued by, or made or undertaken with, the same body
may not exceed 20% of the NAV of a Fund.

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited ("NTFSIL") is the appointed Depositary of the Fund, responsible for the safe-
keeping of assets. NTFSIL has appointed The Northern Trust Company ("TNTC") as its global sub-custodian. Both NTFSIL and
TNTC are wholly owned subsidiaries of Northern Trust Corporation ("“NTC"). As at 31 May 2023, NTC had a long term credit
rating from Standard & Poor's of (A+) (31 May 2022: A+).

TNTC (as global sub-custodian of NTFSIL) does not appoint external sub-custodians within the U.S., the U.K,, Ireland, Canada,
Belgium, France, Germany, Netherlands and Saudi Arabia. However, in all other markets, TNTC appoints local external sub-
custodians.

NTFSIL, in the discharge of its depositary duties, verifies the Fund's ownership of other assets, (as defined under other assets,
Art 22(5) of UCITS V Directive 2014/91/EU ), by assessing whether the Fund holds the ownership based on information or
documents provided by the Fund or where available, on external evidence.

TNTC, in the discharge of its delegated depositary duties, holds in custody (i) all financial instruments that may be registered in
a financial instruments account opened on the books of TNTC and (i) all financial instruments that can be physically delivered
to TNTC. TNTC ensures all financial instruments (held in a financial instruments account on the books of TNTC) are held in
segregated accounts in the name of the Fund, clearly identifiable as belonging to the Fund, and distinct and separately from the
proprietary assets of TNTC, NTFSIL and NTC.

Inaddition TNTC, as banker, holds cash of the Fund on deposit. Such cashis held onthe statement of financial position of TNTC.

In the event of insolvency of TNTC, in accordance with standard banking practice, the Fund will rank as an unsecured creditor
of TNTC inrespect of any cash deposits.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

c) Creditrisk (continued)

Where relevant please note the following currencies, Jordanian Dinar, Saudi Riyal, cash in the onshore China market (principally
the currency of Chinese Yuan Renminbi, and any other currencies remitted into accounts in the onshore China market), are no
longer held onthe Balance Sheet of TNTC. For these off-book currencies, clients' cash exposure is directly to the relevant local
sub-custodian / financial institution in the market.

Insolvency of NTFSIL and or one of its agents or affiliates may cause the Fund's rights with respect to its assets to be delayed.

The Responsible Party manages risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial position of the Depositary and such risk is
further managed by the Depositary monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of sub-custodian appointments.

The counterparties and their credit ratings at 31 May 2023 are as follows: Australia and New Zealand Banking Group (AA-), Bank
of America Merrill Lynch (A-), Bank of Montreal (A+), Barclays Capital (A+), Barclays Bank PLC (A+), BNP Paribas Plc (A+),
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (A+), Citibank N.A. (A+), Deutsche Bank AG (A-), Goldman Sachs International (A+), HSBC
Bank plc (A+), J.P.Morgan Chase Bank (A+), Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc (A+), Royal Bank of Canada (AA-), Royal Bank
of Scotland (A+), Societe Generale (A), Standard Chartered Bank (A+), State Street Bank (A), Toronto-Dominion Bank (AA-),
and UBS (A+). All credit ratings are from Standard & Poor's.

The counterparties and their credit ratings at 31 May 2022 are as follows: Australia and New Zealand Banking Group (AA-), Bank
of America Merrill Lynch (A-), Bank of Montreal (A+), Barclays Capital (A), Barclays Bank PLC (A), BNP Paribas Plc (A+), Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce (A+), Citibank N.A. (A+), Commonwealth Bank of Australia, (AA-), Deutsche Bank AG (A-), Goldman
Sachs International (A+), HSBC Bank plc (A+), J.P. Morgan Chase Bank (A+), Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc (A+), Societe
Generale (A), Royal Bank of Canada (AA-), Royal Bank of Scotland (A), Standard Chartered Bank (A+), State Street Bank (A),
Toronto-Dominion Bank (AA-), UBS (A+) and Westpac Banking (AA-). All credit ratings are from Standard & Poor's.

Both Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited and The Northern Trust Company are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Northern Trust Corporation. As at 31 May 2023, Northern Trust Corporation had a long term rating from Standard & Poor's of
A+ (31 May 2022: A+).

Northern Trust acts as its own sub-custodian in the UK and Ireland. In all other markets Northern Trust appoints a local sub-
custodian. Northern Trust continually reviews its sub-custodian network to ensure clients have access to the most efficient,
creditworthy and cost-effective provider in each market.

The Prospectus limits the level of investment in bonds that are below investment grade for certain Funds. The investment
manager monitors the proportion of bonds to the assets under management on a daily basis through the generation of a daily
compliance report and ensures, through respective divestment, those restrictions are adhered to.

Portfolio by rating category

The investment manager utilises well-known rating agencies for determining credit quality of the financial assets. For unrated
securities, the relevant Sub-Investment manager assigns aninternal rating using an approach thatis consistent with the ratings
agencies. The rating limits defined in the Prospectus are monitored on a daily basis by the investment manager and Sub-
Investment managers (e.g. no more than 10% in sub-investment grade bonds for some portfolios).

For GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, GlobalAccess Pacific Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global Equity Income
Fund, GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund, and GlobalAccess Japan Fund the majority of the financial assets are non-
interest bearing equity securities. As a result, they are not subject to significant amounts of credit risk.

83



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)
c) Creditrisk (continued)
As at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2022, the remaining Funds were invested in debt securities with the following credit quality:

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond
Fund Fund Fund
Ratingasat 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
Investment Grade 70% 58% 4% 1% 89% 85%
Non-Investment Grade 0% 0% 95% 98% 3% 8%
Not rated 30% 42% 1% 1% 8% 7%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt GlobalAccess Global Short Duration GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Fund Bond Fund Currency Debt Fund
Ratingasat 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
Investment Grade 51% 41% 63% 57% 52% 50%
Non-Investment Grade 46% 57% 15% 15% 29% 31%
Not rated 3% 2% 22% 28% 19% 19%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

c) Credit risk (continued)

Inaccordance with Company policy, the investment manager monitors the Funds' credit position on a daily basis. The Directors
rely on the investment manager to keep them informed of any material event. There were no material changes to the
Company's policies and processes for managing credit risk and the methods used to measure risk during the financial year.

Unrated positions which have been acquired by the Fund(s) are assessed by the relevant investment manager as to the
creditworthiness of the position, as per the Fund Prospectus. In the event of a default, the investment manager will provide
information on the company's restructuring and any potential debt exchanges.

d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity willencounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. Liquidity
risk is controlled in the following ways:

- The investment manager and the relevant trading desk considers and monitors the liquidity of all instruments utilised.
- Procedures are in place to review liquidity requirements and to ensure that they will be met both on an ongoing basis and
in the event of extreme market movements.

The Company is exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable participating shares. The Funds generally retain a certain
portion of their assets in cash, which is available to satisfy redemptions. In order to prevent a detrimental liquidity gap,
redemption proceeds in respect of shares are paid five business days after the relevant dealing day or such other period as the
Directors may determine (not exceeding ten business days) provided that all the relevant documentation has been furnished
to and received by the administrator.

The investment manager and the administrator consider and monitor liquidity on a daily basis to ensure that the appropriate
liquidity is maintained in line with the daily redemption policy adopted by the Company. An overall liquidity risk assessment of
each Fund was performed on a daily basis by Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) limited and provided to the risk control and
governance team of the investment manager. Reports were provided to the investment manager's Risk Forum at each
meeting. The liquidity level of each Fund was assessed to confirm its ability to meet redemptions. Liquidity reports enable the
investment manager's risk control and governance team to determine the liquidity of the Fund. The liquidity assessment of the
assets within the portfolio was facilitated by Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) limited. These liquidity assessment reports
were submitted to the Risk manager and the investment manager's risk forum. Any issues identified are escalated to the Board.
The Directors rely on the investment manager to keep them informed of any material event. There were no material changes
to the Company's policies and processes for liquidity risk and the methods used to measure risk during the financial year.

The Company maintains a mixture of long term and short term committed facilities that are designed to ensure the Company
has sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansion.

The investment manager ensures at all times that the vast majority of assets in the Company are highly liquid and offer daily
liquidity. The monitoring and reporting of liquidity risk take the form of cash flow measurements and projections for the next
day, week and month as these are key periods for liquidity management. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed and daily
liquidity reporting is also carried out by the investment manager.

Duties, charges and spreads may have an adverse/dilution effect on the value of the Funds. The Directors may at their
discretion make a dilution adjustment if, in their opinion, the remaining shareholders, in case of redemptions, might otherwise
be adversely affected especially in circumstances where a Fund is in continual decline (i.e. is experiencing a net outflow of
redemptions) or a Fund is experiencing a net redemption position on any dealing day. Where a dilution adjustment is made, it
will decrease the price where the Fundis in a net redemption position.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

As disclosed within note 14, there are shareholders who own greater than 20% of the shares in issue. This exposes the Funds
to a shareholder concentration risk. Should one or more of these shareholders submit redemption requests, these could
expose the Funds torisk as a going concern. Substantial redemption requests by Shareholders in a concentrated period of time
couldrequire a Fund to liquidate certain of its investments more rapidly than might otherwise be desirable in order to raise cash
to fund the redemptions and achieve a portfolio appropriately reflecting a smaller asset base. Substantial redemption requests
may limit the ability of the Investment manager to successfully implement the investment objective of a Fund and could
negatively impact the value of the Shares being redeemed and the value of Shares that remain outstanding. The Directors of
the Company may have certain liquidity management tools available to them where permitted by the constitutional documents
and where they consider the imposition of such tools to be in the best interests of both remaining and redeeming investors.
These can include the following:

1: Increase in the existing redemption / exit fees
2: Suspension of redemptions

3: Temporary borrowing to cover redemptions
4: Swing pricing

5: Anti-dilution levy

6: Gate / activation of deferred redemptions

7: Redemptions in kind

8: Change in the dealing frequency of the Fund

Of these options the primary tool, which is actively used by the Funds, is swing pricing.

The actual cost of purchasing or selling assets and investments for a Fund may deviate from the mid-market price or last traded
price used, as appropriate, in calculating the Net Asset Value per Share due to dealing charges, taxes and other similar costs
and spreads from buying and selling prices of the underlying investments. These costs have an adverse effect on the value of a
Fund and are known as "dilution”.

To mitigate the effects of dilution, the Directors may, at their discretion, make a dilution adjustment to the Net Asset Value per
Share.

The Directors will retain the discretion in relation to the circumstances in which to make such a dilution adjustment.

The requirement to make a dilution adjustment will depend on the volume of subscriptions or redemptions of shares in the
relevant Fund. The Directors may in their discretion make a dilution adjustment if, in their opinion, the existing Shareholders, in
case of subscriptions, or remaining Shareholders, in case of redemptions, might otherwise be adversely affected.

e) Otherrisks —suspension of shares

The Company may temporarily suspend the determination of the Net Asset Value of any Fund and the issue and redemption
of shares of any class of any Fund during the whole or any part of any period when, as a result of political, economic, military or
monetary events or any other circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the Directors, any disposal or
valuation of investments of the relevant Fund is not, in the opinion of the Directors, reasonably practicable without this being
seriously detrimental to the interests of owners of shares in general or the owners of shares of the relevant Fund or if, in the
opinion of the Directors, the Net Asset Value cannot fairly be calculated or such disposal would be materially prejudicial to the
owners of shares in general or the owners of hares of the relevant Fund.
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3. Operatingincome

Interest income
Dividendincome
Sundryincome

Interestincome
Dividendincome
Sundry income

Interest income
Dividendincome
Sundry income

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

Fund Bond Fund (ex-Japan) Fund
Financial year Financialyear Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
GBP GBP usD usbD usD usD
108,503 1,598 81,329 11,966 42,644 532
11,435,272 12,792,062 - - 2,594,443 2,473,876
5,447 5,369 6,675 7,080 6,675 7,080
11,549,222 12,799,029 88,004 19,046 2,643,762 2,481,488

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Fund Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
uUsD usD UsD uUsD uUsbD uUsbD
360,815 13,424 247,375 11,702 235,377 (112,733)
18,743,694 20,660,917 1,797,519 357,270 295 803
6,675 7,080 6,675 7,080 6,675 7,080
19,111,184 20,681,421 2,051,569 376,052 242,347 (104,850)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
usD uUsD usD uUsD uUsD usb
190,340 5,783 49,712 7,035 82,759 949
322,230 295,699 15,752 4,506 1,121,273 1,426,775
6,675 7,238 6,675 7,083 6,675 7,080
519,245 308,720 72,139 18,624 1,210,707 1,434,804
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3. Operatingincome (continued)

Interestincome
Dividendincome
Sundryincome

Interest income
Dividendincome
Sundry income

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund Fund Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usbD usD usD usD usD usD
223,788 193 51,703 1,328 111,855 4,220
3,281,456 3,703,423 2,200,625 2,965,972 87,417 404,108
6,675 7,080 6,675 7,678 6,675 7,080
3,511,919 3,710,696 2,259,003 2,974,978 205,947 415,408

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total in GBP
Financial year Financialyear Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
14,3574 4,829 1,875,480 438,104 1,528,651 (32,817)
2,872,507 3,373,632 831,165,538 638,476,431 44,101,037 43,774,681
6232 6,302 874,317 822,109 77,299 74,469
2,893,113 3,384,763 833,915,335 639,736,644 45,706,987 43,816,333
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4. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Financial year

Financialyear

GlobalAccess Global Government

Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP uUsb uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD

Net fair value gains/(losses) oninvestments and
derivative contracts through profit orloss 13,133,023 5,319,462 (3,524,771) (11,508,106) (6,268,641) (18,732,929)
Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts 16,972 (14,947) 1,995,160 1,255,067 (305,796) 107,561
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures (455,530) 327,435 (360,692) 52,557 (12,350) (2,400)
Other fair value gains - - 1,103,594 1,351,670 15,626 68
12,694,465 5,631,950 (786,709) (8,848,812) (6,571,161) (18,627,700)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Fund Fund Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financialyear Financialyear Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
uUsD usD usD uUsD uUsD uUsD

Net fair value losses on investments and derivative
contracts through profit orloss (38,864,430) (154,059,268) (29,536,269) (89,367,218) (21,751,960) (134,663,769)
Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts (1,242,839) 228,243 (18,985,423) 11,186,376 (13,328,201) 10,485,339
Net fair value losses on sale of futures contracts (71,448) (382,767) - - (110,802) (61,934)
Other fair value gains - - 32,782,737 22,600,903 15,116,805 13,765,327
(40,178,717) (154,213,792) (15,738,955) (55,579,939) (20,074,158) (110,475,037)
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4. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Net fair value losses on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts
Other fair value gains

Net fair value gains/(losses) on investments and
derivative contracts through profit or loss

Net change infair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts
Other fair value gains

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usb usb usb usb usb usb
(13,395,968) (87,878,659) (2,618,743) (6,811,145) (3,396,437) (10,099,315)
(8,265,908) 4,230,008 705,816 88,164 (664,144) 217,374
(1,072,555) 796,331 (398,862) 219,292 36,769 (37,896)
9,906,029 12,176,963 2,281,009 2,958,909 - -
(12,828,402) (70,675,357) (30,780) (3,544,780) (4,023,812) (9.919,837)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund
Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
892,911 (14,210,724) (2,846,753) (11,130,230) 1,590,266 (59,310,125)
(548,638) 86,416 (1,455,099) 502,031 (449,568) (1,194,027)
(60,891) 31,813 (39,238) 28,240 (216,853) 190,370

- - - - 13,671,914 17,690,426

283,382 (14,092,495) (4,341,090) (10,599,959) 14,595,759 (42,623,356)
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4. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total in GBP

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP

Net fair value gains/(losses) on investments and
derivative contracts through profit or loss 3,377,591 (2,943,419) 3,219,494,365 (1,035,923,059) (63,948,435) (448,222,728)
Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts 87,837 21,671 2,571,466 3,843,594 (35,298,953) 20,242,359
Net fair value gains/(losses) on sale of futures contracts - - 33,862,902 21,502,098 (2,169,082) 1,085,826
Other fair value gains - - - - 62,315,166 52,440,559
3,465,428 (2,921,748) 3,255,728,733 (1,010,577,367) (39,101,304) (374,453,984)

91



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

5. Operating expenses

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors'fees

Sundry expenses

Manager fees

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors'fees

Sundry expenses

Manager fees

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

Fund Bond Fund (ex-Japan) Fund
Financialyear Financialyear Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
GBP GBP uUsD usbD usb usb
(2,209,142) (2,599,932) (436,391) (554,239) (557,817) (729,188)
(283,543) (309,281) (224,461) (231,527) (196,173) (214,762)
(14,995) (12,293) (20,113) (18,005) (13,557) (12,004)
(5,863) (4,453) (7,268) (5,905) (7,266) (5,907)
(63,246) (96,089) (128,942) (131,646) (117,057) (109,756)
(21,816) (8,403) (18,807) (9,030) (18,808) (9,034)
(2,598,605) (3,030,451) (835,982) (950,352) (910,678) (1,080,651)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Fund Fund Fund
Financialyear Financialyear Financialyear Financialyear Financialyear Financialyear
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
usbD usbD uUsD usbD usb usb
(4,977,975) (6,404,770) (3,653,540) (3,096,753) (2,585,351) (3,208,843)
(642,057) (751,151) (497,984) (479,214) (484,324) (543,425)
(17,394) (15,378) (25,825) (23,130) (25,825) (23,130)
(7,266) (5,907) (7,268) (5,905) (7,268) (5,905)
(136,753) (198,577) (310,857) (296,243) (358,769) (445,043)
(35,740) (16,516) (34,537) (12,391) (32,100) (15,250)
(5,817,185) (7,392,299) (4,530,011) (3,913,636) (3,493,637) (4,241,596)
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5. Operating expenses (continued)

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors'fees

Sundry expenses

Manager fees

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors'fees

Sundry expenses

Manager fees

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
usbD usbD usD usbD usD usD
(1,361,791) (1,979,253) (401,839) (590,865) (809,297) (1,112,964)
(342,152) (387,779) (194,548) (216,676) (190,827) (228,075)
(20,105) (18,013) (20,113) (18,005) (17,400) (15,372)
(7,266) (5,907) (7,268) (5,905) (7,268) (5,905)
(175,672) (247,581) (103,615) (105,616) (94,304) (108,691)
(18,810) (9,032) (18,807) (9,030) (18,807) (9,030)
(1,925,796) (2,647,565) (746,190) (946,097) (1,137,903) (1,480,037)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financialyear

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD
(1,340,721) (1,858,552) (563,759) (828,209) (1,641,766) (2,332,376)
(276,417) (326,971) (324,619) (342,326) (447,242) (527,303)
(13,562) (11,998) (17,361) (15,410) (20,105) (18,013)
(7,268) (5,905) (7,268) (5,905) (7,266) (5,907)
(93,147) (127,828) (107,286) (148,564) (76,357) (92,774)
(18,879) (18,807) (9,030) (18,810) (9,032)
(1,749,994) (2,331,254) (1,039,100) (1,349,444) (2,211,546) (2,985,405)
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5. Operating expenses (continued)

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors'fees

Sundry expenses

Manager fees

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total in GBP
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
(878,523) (1,134,137) (276,296,642) (243,405,476) (19,911,394) (22,002,450)
(273,519) (310,464) (37,691,081) (36,027,143) (3,930,788) (3,963,428)
(13,042) (11,587) (2,536,758) (2,198,234) (217,691) (176,384)
(6,731) (5,282) (991,209) (679,477) (84,283) (61,602)
(87,515) (134,464) (10,930,820) (12,748,469) (1,623,020) (1,788,135)
(18,001) - (2,696,667) (1,086,292) (264,378) (95,230)
(1,277,331) (1,595,934) (331,143,177) (296,145,091) (26,031,554) (28,087,229)
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6. Cash and cash equivalents, cash collateral & margin cash due from broker

Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company

Cash held as collateral

Margin cash due from broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
Goldman Sachs International

Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company
Cash held as collateral
Margin cash due from broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
Goldman Sachs International
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

Fund Bond Fund (ex-Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP uUsD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD
4,686,017 9,403,516 2,105,864 1977137 2,049,341 2,496,389
- - - 140,000 - -
- - 209,215 4172 - -
1,621,038 1,157,716 - - 221,993 138,955
6,307,055 10,561,232 2,315,079 2,121,309 2,271,334 2,635,344

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond
Fund

Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usD usD usD usD uUsD usD
20,778,742 14,639,304 16,320,504 8,633,113 13,527,532 5,340,936

- - - - - 340,000

- - - - 36,457 16,146

1,324,358 572,930 . _ ] ]

— - - - 2,222,626 1,007,541

22,103,100 15,212,234 16,320,504 8.633.113 15,786,615 6,704,623

95



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

6. Cash and cash equivalents, cash collateral & margin cash due from broker (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company

Cash held as collateral

Margin cash due from broker:
Goldman Sachs International
JP Morgan Chase Bank

Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company

Cash held as collateral

Margin cash due from broker:
Goldman Sachs International
HSBC

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsbD usbD uUsD usbD uUsD uUsbD
10,565,727 14,380,624 1,639,909 5,686,813 3.049,710 2,375,073
10,000 70,000 260,000 50,000 - -
- - - - 273,621 328,197
724,967 672,973 1,472,557 1,007,396 - -
11,300,694 15,123,597 3,372,466 6,744,209 3,323,331 2,703,270

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
UsD UsD uUsD uUsD UsD uUsD
9,307,770 13,459,975 2,813,566 1,457,829 6,019,337 15,006,454

- - - - 420,060 610,060

563,417 1,028,549 133,673 153,635 - -

- - - - 2 -

9871187 14488524 2947239 1611464 6,439,399 15616514
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6. Cashand cash equivalents, cash collateral & margin cash due from broker (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Financial year

Financial year

Aggregated total in GBP
Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
Cash and cash equivalents

The Northern Trust Company 1,524,769 1,180,242 1,477,194,052 894,012,478 85,673,967 83,724,974
Cash held as collateral - - - - 556,769 960,135

Margin cash due from broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC - - - - 198,219 16,123
Goldman Sachs International 929 929 260,029,493 407,867,551 5,154,356 5,437,446
HSBC - - - - 1 -
JP Morgan Chase Bank - - - - 1,773,055 1,333,307
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc - - - - 1,793,308 799,444
1,525,698 1,181,171 1,737,223,545 1,301,880,029 95,149,675 92,271,429
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7. Otherreceivables

Interest income receivable

Dividendincome

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

Interest income receivable

Dividendincome

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

Fund Bond Fund (ex-Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
GBP GBP usb usD usD uUsD
14,501 369 2,629 5 3,370 -
1,199,234 1,277,416 - - 292,425 277,809
295,532 - 27,492,402 8,732,771 72,418 176,708
409,442 706,532 14,324 41,387 4,834 4,761
27,318 8,765 5,934,481 28,721 113 34
1,946,027 1,993,082 33,443,836 8,802,884 373,160 459,362

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Fund Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
usb usb uUsbD usb uUsb uUsb
48,696 28 47,201 - 17,707 21
1,759,251 2,780,262 - - - -
1,556,522 2,556,586 758,217 - 9,195,028 -
501,134 765,427 916,667 876,980 634,187 418,463
4,316 4,923 33,744 59 71,277 9,421
3,869,919 6,107,226 1,755,829 877,039 9,918,199 427,905
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7. Otherreceivables (continued)

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundryincome

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsbD usbD uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD
18,658 2 3,315 - 8,139 -
- - - - 77,171 63,536
455,846 843,210 679,216 1,990,072 93,349 80,457
309,793 240,259 705,176 1,266 - -
29,453 314 29,966 22,333 12 -
813,750 1,083,785 1,417,673 2013671 178,671 143,993

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsb uUsbD

20,207 18 4,736 - 11,090 7
272,467 219,610 208,746 222,512 - -
783,673 434,178 269,589 93,880 451,951 2,592,615
38,346 79,812 2,028 13,422 384,480 256,682

453 1 1,269 296 84,084 35,092
1,115146 733619 486,368 330,110 931,605 2,884,396

99



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)
7. Otherreceivables (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total in GBP
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
Interest income receivable 1,313 4 7,583 - 165,543 437
Dividend income 185,298 157,503 357,704,014 281,966,838 5,530,238 5,978,098
Sale of securities awaiting settlement 155,206 247,679 64,119,686 171,488,071 34,531,942 15,154,182
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement 17,219 15,382 163,341,589 34,150,353 4,200,334 3,071,362
Sundryincome 253 32 3,863,862 164,398 5,043,531 90,139
359,289 420,600 589,036,734 487,769,660 49,471,588 24294218
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8. Bank overdraft, cash collateral & margin cash due to broker

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company

Cash pledged as collateral

Margin cash due to broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Government
Bond Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP UsD UsD UsD UsD

(3,179) (1,141) (5911,772) (1,022) - -

- - (2,010,000) (60,000) _ _

- - (48,982) (397,437) - -

(3.179) (1,141) (7.970.754) (458.459) - -

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond
Fund

Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
UsD uUsD UsD uUsD UsD uUsD
(854,339) (2,277) (7,120) (1,401) - -

- - - - (1,580,000) (80,000)

- - - - (148,180) (593,859)

- - - - (294,086) (3,928)

(854,339) (2,277) (7,120) (1,401) (2,022,266) (677.787)
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8. Bank overdraft, cash collateral & margin cash due to broker (continued)

Bank overdraft

The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:

JP Morgan Chase Bank

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:
HSBC

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsbD usbD uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD
(198,982) (1,438) (6,303) (1,442) (4,127) (1,438)
- - (320,000) (25,000) - -
- (1,005,669) (621,895) (1,193,228) - -
(198.982) (1,007,107) (948,198) (1,219,670) (4,127) (1,428)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD

(4,127) (1,438) (2,499) (1,438) - -

- - - - (330,000) (150,000)

- - - (146,042)

(4,127) (1,438) (2,499) (1,438) (330,000) (296,042)
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8. Bank overdraft, cash collateral & margin cash due to broker (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total in GBP
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
Bank overdraft

The Northern Trust Company (6,257) - (550,449) (185,016) (5,650,976) (11,720)
Cash pledged as collateral - - - - (3,421,010) (249,940)

Margin cash due to broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC - - - - (159,079) (786,554)
HSBC - - - - - (115,879)
JP Morgan Chase Bank - - - - (501,771) (1,744,739)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc - - - - (237,281) (3,117)
(6.257) - (550,449) (185016) (9.970,117) (2911.949)
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9. Other payables

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement
Accrued manager fee

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement
Accrued manager fee

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

Fund Bond Fund (ex-Japan) Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
GBP GBP uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD
(3) (4) (17) (60) (9) (4)
(598,678) (534,666) (104,765) (120,454) (140,262) (162,347)
(14104 ) (113,135) (380598) (361,591) (285,360) (265,341)
) (25,777) (14,231)
(1,027,32 ) (281,859) (42.568,789) (18,068,506 ) - (128,416)
(1,056,323) (722,696) (318,601) (240,118) (56,037) (9,692)
(7,018) (1,737) (4,793) (1,790) (4,798) (1,794)
(2,836,386) (1,654,097) (43,377,563) (18,792,519) (512,243) (581,825)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Equity Fund Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsD uUsbD uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
(4) (12) (5) (1,899) (79) (1,790)
(1,248,539) (1,414,502) (920,621) (1,032,585) (654,365) (760,428)
(1,954,364) (2,047,579) (324,867) (272,505) (663,582) (454,045)
(62,278) (101,054) - ~
(717,325) (2,900,040) (2,281,789 ) (1,573,819) (30,207,615) (4,555,556)
(1,260,523) (448,376) (1,796,069) (944,468) (1,425,628) (788,196)
(10,688) (3,327) (10,182) (3,098) (9.688) (3,087)
(5,253,721) (6,914,890) (5,333,533) (3,828,374) (32,960,957) (6,563,102)
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9. Other payables (continued)

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement
Accrued manager fee

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement
Accrued manager fee

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD
(12) (429) (178) (379) (3) (11)
(344,800) (414,221) (98,091) (125,532) (197,952) (238,022)
(214,447) (195,033) (172,841) (133,166) (147,678) (122,398)
. - (21,377) (17,924)
(796,701) (1,125,135) (4,041,715) (8,410,766 ) (101,936) (114,722)
(671,709) (418,421) (1,639) (3,192) (25,078) (12,544)
(4,798) (1,792) (4,793) (1,790) (4,793) (1,790)
(2,032,467) (2,155,031) (4,319,257) (8,674,825) (498,817) (507,411)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
UsSD usb UsSD usD usD usD
(3) (5) (9) (44) (3) (42)
(335,058) (396,023) (139,486) (174,248) (423,458) (436,096)
(162,981) (129,448) (224,131) (181,812) (491,918) (146,338)
(81,904) (66,058)
(659,104) - (420,854) (374,844) - (3,601,143)
(1,142,001) (21,628) (2,639) (108,360) (1,300,814) (463,951)
(4,807) (1,790) (4,793) (1,790) (4,798) (1,792)
(2,385.858) (614952) (791912) (841,098) (2,220991) (4,649.362)
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9. Other payables (continued)

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement
Accrued manager fee

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total in GBP
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
(3) (817) (748,569) (1,433,507) (4,588) (13,250)
(222,007) (11,876) (72,207,386) (60,877,980) (4,924,076) (5,105,323)
(158,180) (118,867) (19,931,048) (15,273,348) (4,450,784) (3,727,601)
(716) (15,947) (53,655,602) (42,295,026) (464,850) (432,534)
(176,514) (397,081) (164,687,879) (192,904,319) (68,126,523) (34,224,398)
(29,750) (190,704) (115,363,203) (28,712,934) (8,203,457) (3,806,429)
(4,505) (240,007) (734,483) (205,311) (70,751) (225,924)
(591,675) (975,299) (427,328,170) (341,702,425) (86,245,029) (47,535,459)
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10. Commitment disclosure

The Company and Sub-Funds have invested in TBA's which incorporate an unfunded commitment that it may be obliged to pay at a future date. The total unfunded commitments per
Sub-Fund and reflected within the other receivables/payables balance as at 31 May 2023 are:

Fund Name 31 May 2023
GlobalAccess Government Bond Fund $14,687,426
GlobalAccess Corporate Bond Fund $12,174,907
GlobalAccess Short Duration Bond Fund $3,367,443
Fund Name 31 May 2022
GlobalAccess Government Bond Fund $8,768,354
GlobalAccess Corporate Bond Fund $2,680,258
GlobalAccess Short Duration Bond Fund $6,105,113

11. Share capital

Authorised capital and subscribers shares

On incorporation, the authorised share capital of the Company was €300,000 divided into 300,000 subscriber shares of a par value of €1 each and 500,000,000,000 redeemable
participating shares of no par value. There are 300,000 subscriber shares currently in issue which are held by the investment manager and nominees of the investment manager. The
subscribers shares are disclosed by way of this note only and do not form part of the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares at the end of the financial year.

Redeemable participating shares

The issued redeemable participating share capital is at all times equal to the net asset value of the Company. Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the shareholders'
option and in accordance with the offering documents are classified as financial liabilities. The movement in the number of participating shares is shown in the following tables:
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11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class Aaccumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Classlaccumulating EUR shares
Class I accumulating USD shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2022

55,115
35,326
95,000
70,354
87,963
192
15,847
2,479,260
91,992,080
32,330
64,101
14,965
268,833

Issued during
theyear

20,624
364,434

316,558
15,338,421

58
1,408

Redeemed

during the year

(5,718)
(15,538)
(16,072)

(192)
(598,077)
(13,293,967)

(3,853)

(3,174)
(56,317)
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Balance at
31May 2023
55,115
29,608
95,000
75,440
436,325

15,847
2,197,741
94,036,534
28,477
64,101
11,849
213,924

Balance at
1June 2021
80,115
47,417
99,580
61,851
42,446

192

15,847
4,876,203
127,833,928
267,617
97,564
21,158
338,110

Issued during
theyear
11,700

1,397

36,570
65,393

399,138
10,823,861
2,382

186

3,190

Redeemed
during the year

(36,700
(13,488

(4,580
(28,067
(19,876

)
)
)
)
)

(2,796,081
(46,665,709
(235,287
(35,845
(6,379
(72,467

)
)
)
)
)
)

Balance at
31 May 2022
55,115
35,326
95,000
70,354
87,963

192

15,847
2,479,260
91,992,080
32,330
64,101
14,965
268,833
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11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Balanceat

1June 2022

Class A accumulating EUR shares 513,630
Class B distributing USD shares 463,888
Class I accumulating USD shares 5,524
Class | accumulating GBP shares 42,841
Class I distributing GBP shares 46,176
Class M accumulating USD shares 1,322,833
Class M distributing USD shares 73,355,252
Class M accumulating EUR shares 934,812
Class M accumulating GBP shares -
Class Mdistributing GBP shares 3,472,778
Class Z accumulating USD shares 587,972
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 2,840,175

Issued during
theyear

492,712

31,903
709

6,288,002

Redeemed

during the year

(954,096)

(16,925)
(29,791)
(95,384)
(9,073,500)
(740,282)

(5,779,606)

(11,758)
(320,574)

109

Balance at
31May 2023
52,246
463,888
5,524
57,819
17,094
1,227,449
64,281,752
194,530

3,981,174
576,214
2,519,601

Balanceat Issuedduring Redeemed Balance at
1June 2021 theyear duringtheyear 31May2022
- 513,630 - 513,630

463,888 - - 463,888
60,094 - (54,570) 5,524
75,511 36,791 (69,461) 42,841
68,332 7,843 (29,999) 46,176
2,913,827 212,082 (1,803,076) 1,322,833
80,175,091 9,252,220 (16,072,059) 73,355,252
954,741 - (19,929) 934,812
140,373 - (140,373) -
5,389,121 4,342,271 (6,258,614) 3,472,778
587,972 - - 587,972
3,425,738 - (585,563) 2,840,175



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class I accumulating GBP shares

Class I accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class | distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class Mdistributing USD shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2022
30,148
70,000
57,870
31,671
10,476
898,308
18,743,641
108,205
1,486,757
581,695
151,344
2,468
80,462

Issued during
theyear

12,267
21,911
2,699
626,919

201,157

1,041

Redeemed Balance at
duringthe year 31 May 2023
- 30,148

- 70,000

(21,459) 48,678
(8,404) 45,178
(3,865) 9,310
(76,162) 822,146
(2,331,445) 17,039,115
- 108,205

(259,122) 1,227,635
(128,924) 452,771
(40,261) 312,240
(1,967) 501
(34,056) 47,447
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Balance at
1June 2021
30,148
70,000
70,781
9,240
4,306
1,939,020
18,842,646
142,083
1,461,366
448,787
163,297
2,468
139,302

Issued during
theyear

9,786
28,482
7,109
126,354
610,530
161,480
132,908
119,040

754

Redeemed
during the year

(22,697)
(6,051)
(929)
(1,167,066)
)

)

)

O

(709,535
(33,878
(136,089

(130,993)

(59,594)

Balance at
31 May 2022
30,148
70,000
57,870
31,671
10,476
898,308
18,743,641
108,205
1,486,757
581,695
151,344
2,468
80,462
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11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares

Class Adistributing EUR shares

Class Adistributing GBP shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares

Class I accumulating USD shares

Class I accumulating EUR shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class I distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class M distributing USD shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class Mdistributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2022
729,452
483,557
71,204
75,643
775,314
109,678
85,284
167,269
14,976
226,486
192,636
113,985
2,099,123
460,107,335
854,747
16,091,457
7,339,555
4,673,209
48,763
7,940,052

Issued during
theyear

11,138
58,170
89,143
61,731

42,332,158

131,579

1,949,337

166,382

Redeemed

during the year

(367,106)
(46,393)
(7,400)

(36,593)
(4,333)
(13,056)
(50,672)
(2,053)
(5,844)
(64,863,096)
(128,971)
(1,833,636)
(1,110,872)
(1,173,474)
(1,123)
(1,392,046)
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Balance at
31 May 2023
362,346
437,164
63,804
75,643
775,314
109,678
85,284
141,814
10,643
271,600
231,107
173,663
2,093,279
437,576,397
725,776
14,389,400
6,228,683
5,449,072
47,640
6,714,388

Balance at
1June 2021
817,959
538,753
71,204
75,643
890,787
139,135
85,284
87,798
16,273
198,288
11,946
282,528
4,886,681
454,013,302
1,835,036
20,491,465
6,913,194
1,466,156
52,328
10,503,232

Issued during
theyear

118,356
54,862
197,584
19,374
6,336
58,436,161
481,965
776,837
4,199,604

153,087

Redeemed

during the year

(88,507)
(55,196)

(115,473)
(29,457)
(38,885)
(1,297)
(26,664)
(16,894)
(187,917)
(2,793,894)
(52,342,128)
(980,289)
(4,881,973)
(350,476)
(992,551)
(3,565)
(2,716,267)

Balance at
31 May 2022
729,452
483,557
71,204
75,643
775,314
109,678
85,284
167,269
14,976
226,486
192,636
113,985
2,099,123
460,107,335
854,747
16,091,457
7,339,555
4,673,209
48,763
7,940,052



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class A distributing USD shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class Aaccumulating GBP shares
Class Adistributing EUR shares
Class Adistributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | distributing USD shares
Class I accumulating EUR shares
Classlaccumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing EUR shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2022
831,024
1,407,822
1,324,359
302,558
2,914,762
337,890
933,923
3,154,045
760,034
1,399,860
2,752,323
1,740,238

464,135
1,369,773
225,970
823,400
475,428
3,142,816
91,994,244
5,425,271
5,732,199
983,864
511,132,373
640,424
245,602
4,062,573
2,823,155
125,695

Issued during
theyear

58,390

7,776

1,758,481
175,802
87,353
76,372,485

Redeemed

during the year

(747,023)
(204,004)

(48,543)
(381,050)

(61,140)
(360,725)
(460,114)
(103,412)
(179,619)
(248,100)

(188,248)
(7,771)
(302,858)
(326,302)
(11,178,787)
(2,252,451)
(697,653)
(81,283)
(85,296,103)
(111,733)
(1,238,070)
(217,699)

112

Balance at
31 May 2023
84,001
1,407,822
1,127,442
254,015
2,533,712
337,890
872,783
2,793,320
299,920
1,296,448
2,572,704
1,492,138

464,135
1,181,525
276,589
823,400
180,346
2,816,514
82,573,938
3,172,820
5,210,348
989,934
502,208,755
528,691
245,602
2,831,886
2,605,456
125,695

Balance at
1June 2021
912,468
1,614,822
1,513,337
302,558
3,510,879
472,743
1,409,956
3,270,894
829,655
1,520,342
2,783,111
1,772,289
153,858
880,455
1,467,409
278,803
823,400
836,569
4,326,762
65,130,234
5,747,883
7,101,901
1,002,389
217,352,081
665,829
497,915
5,210,372
2,910,568
125,695

Issued during
theyear

10,755

1,463

32,973,689
55,657
487,268
333,247,826

25,953
183,230

Redeemed

during the year

(81,444)
(207,000)
(188,978)
(596,117
(137,689
(476,033
(116,849

(69,621
(120,482
(30,788
(32,051
(153,858
(416,320
(97,636
(63,588
(362,604)
(1,183,946)
(6,109,679)
(322,612)
(1,425,359)
(505,793)
)

)

)

)

)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

(39,467,534
(25,405
(252,313
(1,173,752
(270,643

Balance at
31 May 2022
831,024
1,407,822
1,324,359
302,558
2,914,762
337,890
933,923
3,154,045
760,034
1,399,860
2,752,323
1,740,238

464,135
1,369,773
225,970
823,400
475,428
3,142,816
91,994,244
5,425,271
5,732,199
983,864
511,132,373
640,424
245,602
4,062,573
2,823,155
125,695



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

Class Aaccumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2022
34,965
280,000
175,131
113,122
210,634
18,175
163,900
96,160,802
1,033,733
240,697
470,607,253
469,812
1,667,069
42,331

Issued during
theyear

50,000

123,952
27,880
803,844
45,791

42,760,866

12,461
42,790

Redeemed
during the year
(200,000)

(17,280)
(365)
(75,742)
(10,488,712)
(88,841)
(188,679)
(57,506,118)
(37,859)
(235,502)
(20,651)

113

Balance at
31May 2023
34,965
130,000
175,131
113,122
317,306
45,690
88,158
86,475,934
990,683
52,018
455,862,001
431,953
1,444,028
64,470

Balance at
1June 2021
34,965
230,000
175,131
113,122
129,131
67,335
2,143,974
100,812,323
1,536,279
240,697
398,551
398,094,392
474915
2,080,754
51,478

Issued during
theyear

50,000

124,705
8,539
3,842,301
244,281

116,548,375

24,704

Redeemed
during the year

(43,202)
(57,699)
(1,980,074)
(8,493,822)
(746,827)
(398,551)
(44,035,514)
(5,103)
(438,389)
(9,147)

Balance at
31 May 2022
34,965
280,000
175,131
113,122
210,634
18,175
163,900
96,160,802
1,033,733
240,697
470,607,253
469,812
1,667,069
42,331



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class Adistributing EUR shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class I accumulating USD shares
Classlaccumulating EUR shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class Mdistributing EUR shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2022
59,173
298,237
60,048
21,834
1,159,622
1,368
103,462
55,107
49,438
126,686
47,265,874
1,005,668
169,324
288,901
225,489,903
61,643
565,107
53,502

865

Issued during
theyear

14,114
17,140
1,767,236

46,525
23,299,153

2,501
8,532

Redeemed

during the year

(2,980)
(8,652)
(2,541)
(126,686)
(3,378,444)
(92,766)
(37,053)
(35,060,468)
(100,734)

114

Balance at
31 May 2023
59,173
298,237
60,048
21,834
1,159,622
1,368
100,482
60,569
64,037
45,654,666
912,902
169,324
298,373
213,728,588
61,643
466,874
62,034

865

Balance at
1June 2021
59,173
298,237
30,048
21,834
1,159,622
9,058
108,722
51,570
76,944
421,008
49,064,116
1,045,439
169,324
557,412
224,503,684
70,349
788,771
51,179
865

Issued during
theyear

33,690
5,586
969,337

96,123
31,857,936

2,464
2,323

Redeemed

during the year

(7,690)
(5,260)
(30,153)
(33,092)
(294,322)
(2,767,579)
(39,771)
(364,634
(30,871,717
(8,706
(226,128

)
)
)
)

Balance at
31 May 2022
59,173
298,237
60,048
21,834
1,159,622
1,368
103,462
55,107
49,438
126,686
47,265,874
1,005,668
169,324
288,901
225,489,903
61,643
565,107
53,502
865



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2022
8,342
1,360,000
68,631

47

95,179
247,992
47,676,411
224,593
181,022
254,183
1,228,339
96,869
961,937

Issued during
theyear

323,000

2,035,577

Redeemed
during the year
(580,000)

(94,552)
(8,484,125)
(1)
(67,032)
(479,840)
(30,089)
(77,642)

115

Balance at
31 May 2023
8,342
780,000
68,631
43,856
95,179
153,440
39,515,286
224,592
181,022
187,151
2,784,076
66,780
884,295

Balance at
1June 2021
8,342
1,660,000
68,631
4,657
95,179
1,241,422
57,241,291
224,594
808,901
5,121,182
2,789,606
102,464
1,153,138

Issued during
theyear

600,000

2,172,000

330,019

Redeemed
during the year

(900,000)

(4,610)
(993,430)
(11,736,880)
(1)

(627,879)
(4,866,999)
(1,891,286)
(5,595)
(191,201)

Balance at
31 May 2022
8,342
1,360,000
68,631

47

95,179
247,992
47,676,411
224,593
181,022
254,183
1,228,339
96,869
961,937



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares
Class Aaccumulating GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2022

297,200
233,395
725,500
154,500
65,274
132,365
48,087
2,209,608
23,177,185
85,791
3,175,636
3,208,783
605,128
1,302,625

Issued during
theyear

149,984

8,532
1,302

Redeemed
during the year
(10,111)
(149,296)

)
(1, 915)
(151,423)
(1,961,180)
(1)
566,251)
525,791)
112,564)
)

(
(
(
(143,329

116

Balance at
31 May 2023
287,089
234,083
725,500
154,500
65,274
128,488
46,883
2,058,185
21,216,005
85,790
2,706,802
2,682,992
501,096
1,160,598

Balance at
1June 2021
318,428
232,463
755,500
154,500
65,274
123,523
47,431
5,789,120
26,740,962
279,162
3,416,291
3,385,536
601,367
1,378,663

Issued during
theyear

60

1,542

8,842
656
82,782
28,616
11,050
443,755
444,686
76,347
20,871

Redeemed
during the year
(21,288)

(610)

(30,000)

(3,662,294)
(3,592,393)
(204,421)
(684,410)
(621,439)
(72,586)
(96,909)

Balance at
31 May 2022
297,200
233,395
725,500
154,500
65,274
132,365
48,087
2,209,608
23,177,185
85,791
3,175,636
3,208,783
605,128
1,302,625



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares

Class Aaccumulating GBP shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares

Class I accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class | distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class Mdistributing USD shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class Mdistributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2022
33,675
17,726
1,281
42,000
17,596
8,362
4,753
1,439
6,250
5,209,940
4,014
66,067
11,901
124,658
37,797
288,930

Issued during
theyear

244,500
8,750

58,744

2,411

Redeemed
during the year
(9,395)

(2,593)

(2,000)

117

Balance at
31 May 2023
24,280
15,133
1,281
40,000
17,596
8,581
10,229
1,544
6,174
4,537,216
4,013
50,721
4,513
148,748
31,978
248,768

Balanceat Issuedduring Redeemed Balanceat
1June 2021 theyear duringtheyear 31May2022
37,092 - (3,417) 33,675
19,576 - (1,850) 17,726
1,281 - - 1,281
52,000 - (10,000) 42,000
17,596 - - 17,596
7,005 1,374 (17) 8,362

76 6,482 (1,805) 4,753

810 709 (80) 1,429
278,472 - (272,222) 6,250
6,194,035 126,657 (1,110,752) 5,209,940
22,113 591 (18,690) 4,014
70,263 20,358 (24,554) 66,067
15,192 1,220 (4,511) 11,901
56,144 95,201 (26,687) 124,658
43,768 2,502 (8,473) 37,797
388,738 4,692 (104,500) 288,930



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund

Class Aaccumulating USD shares
Class Adistributing USD shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class Adistributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class B distributing USD shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares

Class | distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)

Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class Mdistributing EUR shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating USD shares
Class Z distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2022

72,028
892,259
556,493

93,384

1,958,771
272,058
748,024
147,331
191,242
541,184

89,285

8,008

21,445
253,566

59,676

19,711

13,314,512
1,506,375
3,811,258

175,610

6,427,758

56,344
103,812

1,191,491

65,020
331,193

Issued during
the year

930
62,624

314,706

73,183

8,937

Redeemed
during the year
(167,706)
(29,266)
(9,175)
(367,960)

(200,000)

(147,331)
(89,285)
(6,630)
(4,084)
(28,423)

(1,630,008)

(652,538)

(1,161,106)

(66,547)
(233,840)

(11,845)

118

Balance at
31 May 2023
72,028
724,553
527,227
84,209
1,590,811
72,058
748,024
191,242
541,184
8,008
15,440
250,412
93,877
19,711
11,999,210
1,506,375
3,231,903
175,610
5,275,589
56,344
37,265
961,753
65,020
319,348

Balance at
1June 2021
73,006
1,047,259
556,493
93,384
2,298,354
131,931
592,112
994,514
147,331
191,242
541,184
89,285
24,024
21,884
230,633
2,129
59,134
17,642,650
783,919
4,072,532
175,610
7,304,401
56,344
93,952
1,563,134
65,020
337,882

Issued during
theyear

5,240
22,976
61,830

333,729
722,456
19,189

159,625
9,860
22,072

Redeemed
during the year
(978)

(155,000)

339,583
131,931
320,054

(
(
(
(246,490

)
)
)
)

(280,463)

(1,036,268)

(393,715)

(6,689)

Balance at
31 May 2022
72,028
892,259
556,493
93,384
1,958,771
272,058
748,024
147,331
191,242
541,184
89,285
8,008
21,445
253,566
59,676
19,711
13,314,512
1,506,375
3,811,258
175,610
6,427,758
56,344
103,812
1,191,491
65,020
331,193



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund

Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class | distributing USD shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing USD shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2022
750,000
40,605

447,950,513

998,221

Issued during
the year
60,000
12,503

38,425,399

Redeemed

during the year

(1,004)

(53,328,229)

(535,903)

119

Balance at
31 May 2023
810,000
52,104

433,047,683

462,318

Balance at Issued during Redeemed Balance at
1June 2021 theyear duringtheyear 31May2022
1,050,000 - (300,000) 750,000
66,224 6,934 (32,553) 40,605
7,658 17,401 (25,059) -
1,816,034 - (1,816,034) -
640,803,321 70,801,666 (263,654,474) 447,950,513
85,617 - (85,617) -
1,898,952 - (900,731) 998,221



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

Balanceat

1 June 2022

Class A accumulating EUR shares 1,442,018
Class A accumulating GBP shares 206,013
Class Aaccumulating USD shares 195,266
Class B accumulating EUR shares 66,846
Class B accumulating GBP shares 450,931
Class B accumulating USD shares -
Class | accumulating EUR shares 45,435
Class I accumulating GBP shares 45514
Class laccumulating GBP shares (Unhedged) 23,778
Class I accumulating USD shares 20,312
Class | distributing GBP shares 48,135
Class M accumulating EUR shares 655,309
Class M distributing EUR shares 27,174,613
Class M accumulating GBP shares 736,733
Class M accumulating USD shares 102,627
Class Mdistributing GBP shares 181,932
Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged) 706,621
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 5,783,479

Issued during
theyear

7,521
40,804

1,191

414,245

70,192
354,557
45,463

Redeemed
during the year
(255,833)
(7,434)
(20,000)

(3,214)
(6,330)
(6,541)
(5,000)
(4,631)
(393,848)
)

)

)

)

)

)

=

(4,657,244
(223,257
(3,326
(31,819
(198,870
(979,235

120

Balance at
31May 2023
1,186,187
206,013
187,832
46,846
450,931

42,221
46,705
58,041
15,312
44,695
261,461
22,931,614
513,476
99,301
220,305
862,308
4,849,707

Balance at
1June 2021
1,500,911
204,408
195,266
66,846
450,931
360,544
45,640
38,217
2,411
20,312
40,950
4,680,822
28,472,135
786,694
187,302
181,932
325,210
6,891,763

Issued during
theyear

3

1,605

7,297
27,303

10,522
85,215
1,829,339
6,921

564,718
67,093

Redeemed
during the year
(58,896)

(360,544)
(205)

(5,936)
(3,337)
(4,110,728)
(3,126,861)
(56,882)
(84,675)
(183,307)
(1,175,377)

Balance at
31 May 2022
1,442,018
206,013
195,266
66,846
450,931

45,435
45,514
23,778
20,312
48,135
655,309
27,174,613
736,733
102,627
181,932
706,621
5,783,479



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

11. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class Aaccumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating JPY shares
Class Mdistributing JPY shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating JPY shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2022
46,838
160,000
47,013
20,622
8,070
162,670
166,457,489
168,136
196,077
210,881
25,087
5,000
788,914

Issued during
theyear

15,541
18,141
9,226
37,005
22,899,722

Redeemed

during the year

(2,944)

(21,721,729
(35,291
(10,787
(25,087)

(2,307)
(101,320)

121

Balance at
31 May 2023
43,894
160,000
53,294
31,051
17,084
199,673
167,635,482
132,845
185,290
210,881

2,693
688,685

Balance at
1June 2021
55,542
5,981
160,000
41,067
4,121
11,128
2,077,990
135,611,033
173,738
196,077
210,881
30,463
5,000
977,942

Issued during
theyear

7,661
36,743
5,699
42,821,990

9,273

7,848

Redeemed

during the year

(8,704)
(5,981)
(1,715)
(20,242)
(8,757)
(1,915,320)
(11,975,534)
(5,602)

(14,649)

(196,876)

Balance at
31 May 2022
46,838
160,000
47,013
20,622
8,070
162,670
166,457,489
168,136
196,077
210,881
25,087
5,000
788,914
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12. Netasset value

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Class Aaccumulating GBP shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class Mdistributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Asat31May2023

Net asset value

£213,212
€124,309
£434,239
£305,805
£1,446,717
$117,212
£9,456,269
£311,608,383
€130,078
$476,937
£87,468
£€905,166

Net asset value
per share
£3.8685
€4.1985
£4.5709
£4.0536
£3.3157
$7.3965
£4.3027
£3.3137
€4.5678
$7.4404
£7.3816
€4.2313
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
£200,527
€142,175
£407,385
£266,619
£280,339

€844
$108,208
£9,952,978
£292,991,083
€140,437
$439,429
£104,413
€1,095,620

Net asset value
per share
£3.6384
€4.0247
£4.2883
£3.7897
£3.1870
€4.3981
$6.8284
£4.0145
£3.1850
€4.3437
$6.8553
£6.9772
€4.0755

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
£284,631
€187,804
£415,934
£227,503
£134,023

€826
$104,491
£18,961,713
£403,322,767
€1,134,586
$644,532
£144,883
€1,362,908

Net asset value
per share
£3.5528
€3.9607
£4.1769
£3.6782
£3.1575
€4.3005
$6.5938
£3.8886
£3.1551
€4.2396
$6.6062
£6.8477
€4.0310
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Asat31May 2023

Net asset value

Class A accumulating EUR shares €46,735
Class B distributing USD shares $549,484
Class | accumulating USD shares $6,767
Class | accumulating GBP shares £41,808
Class I distributing GBP shares £11,924
Class M accumulating USD shares $1,727,961
Class Mdistributing USD shares $77,018,145
Class M accumulating EUR shares €163,395
Class M accumulating GBP shares -
Class M distributing GBP shares £2,951,570
Class Z accumulating USD shares $668,509
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,810,491

Net asset value
per share
€0.8945
$1.1845
$1.2250
£0.7231
£0.6972
$1.4078
$1.1981
€0.8399

£0.7414

$1.1602
€0.7186
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
£€482,969
$560,479

$6,878
£31,865
£33,168
$1,890,022
$89,513,553
€819,116

£2,651,567
$697,194
€2,143,638

Net asset value
per share
€0.9403
$1.2082
$1.2451
£0.7438
£0.7183
$1.4288
$1.2203
€0.8762

£0.7635
$1.1858
€0.7548

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
$610,702
$81,244
£61,096
£53,485
$4,513,406
$106,517,149
€915,224
£115,476
£4,482,006
$761,201
€2,849,416

Net asset value
per share
$1.3165
$1.3519
£0.8091
£0.7827
$1.5490
$1.3286
€0.9586
£0.8226
£0.8317
$1.2946
€0.8318
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

Class Aaccumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class I accumulating GBP shares

Class I accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class | distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class Mdistributing USD shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class Mdistributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Asat31May2023

Net asset value
$118,974
$313,993
£110,867
£122,625

£18,993
$1,620,644
$62,285,924
€293,650
£3,031,303
£926,480
£706,671
$1,859
€112,851

Net asset value
per share
$3.9463
$4.4856
£2.2775
£2.7143
£2.0401
$1.9712
$3.6555
€2.7138
£2.4692
£2.0462
£2.2632
$3.7107
€2.3784
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
$128,064
$337,139
£143,088

£90,452
£23,544
$1,891,827
$74,383,262
€323,971
£3,979,956
£1,311,271
£365,737
$9,905
€213,802

Net asset value
per share
$4.2478
$4.8163
£2.4726
£2.8560
£2.2475
$2.1060
$3.9685
€2.9941
£2.6769
£2.2542
£2.4166
$4.0137
€2.6572

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
$153,612
$403,380
£210,357

£27,896
£11,748
$4,861,481
$90,141,993
€513,023
£4,694,674
£1,229,105
£421,779
$11,941
€452,061

Net asset value
per share
$5.0952
$5.7626
£2.9719
£3.0189
£2.7285
$2.5072
$4.7839
€3.6107
£3.2125
£2.7387
£2.5829
$4.8386
€3.2452
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares

Class Adistributing EUR shares

Class Adistributing GBP shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating USD shares

Class | accumulating EUR shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class | distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class M distributing USD shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class Mdistributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Asat31May 2023

Net asset value
$435,680
€315,849

€44,556
£45,423
$856,515
€83,154
£55,748
$173,027
£€8,131
£182,079
£183,685
£103,470
$2,514,502
$470,614,724
€571,653
£10,280,137
£3,693,665
£3,575,526
$54,098
€4,396,906

Net assetvalue
per share
$1.2024
€0.7225
€0.6983
£0.6005
$1.1047
€0.7582
£0.6537
$1.2201
€0.7640
£0.6704
£0.7948
£0.5958
$1.2012
$1.0755
€0.7876
£0.7144
£0.5930
£0.6562
$1.1355
€0.6548
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Asat31 May 2022

Net asset value
$931,439
€382,410

€55,360
£49,778
$907,262
€90,789
£59,894
$215,852
€12,472
£162,934
£159,249
£74,429
$2,662,912
$534,229,914
€732,813
£12,313,855
£4,768,430
£3,255,624
$59,095
£€5,719,628

Net asset value
per share
$1.2769
€0.7908
€0.7775
£0.6581
$1.1702
€0.8278
£0.7023
$1.2905
€0.8328
£0.7194
£0.8267
£0.6530
$1.2686
$1.1611
€0.8573
£0.7652
£0.6497
£0.6967
$1.2119
€0.7204

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
$1,299,671
€537,307
€70,243
£62,820
$1,293,796
€144,877
£75,018
$140,420
€17,022
£178,389
£10,850
£233,390
$7,671,305
$661,213,042
€1,973,164
£19,579,071
£5,682,203
£1,135,760
$79,310
€9,590,522

Net assetvalue
per share
$1.5889
€0.9973
€0.9865
£0.8305
$1.4524
€1.0413
£0.8796
$1.5994
€1.0460
£0.8996
£0.9083
£0.8261
$1.5698
$1.4564
€1.0753
£0.9555
£0.8219
£0.7747
$1.5157
€0.9131
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund

Asat31May 2023

Net asset value

Class A accumulating USD shares $159,115
Class A distributing USD shares $1,440,977
Class A accumulating EUR shares €1,296,159
Class A accumulating GBP shares £264,101
Class A distributing EUR shares €1,662,278
Class A distributing GBP shares £198,726
Class B accumulating USD shares $1,821,460
Class B distributing USD shares $2,900,042
Class B accumulating EUR shares €387,000
Class B accumulating GBP shares £1,587,277
Class B distributing EUR shares €1,708,212
Class B distributing GBP shares £942,093
Class | accumulating USD shares -
Class | distributing USD shares $480,610
Class | accumulating EUR shares €1,401,686
Class | accumulating GBP shares £276,717
Class | distributing EUR shares €552,360
Class | distributing GBP shares £109,053
Class M accumulating USD shares $7,548,874
Class Mdistributing USD shares $84,655,319
Class M accumulating EUR shares €4,282,056
Class M accumulating GBP shares £6,683,122
Class Mdistributing EUR shares €650,178
Class Mdistributing GBP shares £297,530,964
Class Z accumulating USD shares $1,053,229
Class Z distributing USD shares $254,554
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €3,312,286
Class Z distributing EUR shares €1,750,825
Class Z distributing GBP shares £77,470

Net asset value
per share
$1.8942
$1.0236
€1.1496
£1.0397
€0.6561
£0.5881
$2.0870
$1.0382
€1.2903
£1.2243
€0.6640
£0.6314
$1.0355
€1.1863
£1.0005
€0.6708
£0.6047
$2.6802
$1.0252
€1.3496
£1.2827
€0.6568
£0.5924
$1.9921
$1.0365
€1.1696
€0.6720
£0.6163
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
$1,587,620
$1,530,543
€1,581,849

£322,212
€2,092,105
£214,390
$1,961,820
$3,478,108
€1,017,445
£1,752,061
€1,999,226
£1,185,444
$510,491
€1,680,809
£230,525
€604,315
£310,224
$8,449,867
$100,177,889
€7,565,890
£7,490,043
€707,217
£326,882,539
$1,291,906
$270,373
€4,957,473
€2,075,394
£83,573

Net asset value
per share
$1.9104
$1.0872
€1.1944
£1.0650
€0.7178
£0.6345
$2.1006
$1.1027
€1.3387
£1.2516
€0.7264
£0.6812
$1.0999
€1.2271
£1.0202
€0.7339
£0.6525
$2.6883
$1.0890
€1.3946
£1.3067
€0.7186
£0.6393
$2.0173
$1.1009
€1.2201
€0.7351
£0.6649

Asat31May2021

Net asset value
$1,822,066
$1,914,482
€1,907,265

£337,636
€2,776,285
£328,238
$3,089,703
$3,933,229
€1,169,446
£1,990,700
€2,227,223
£1,321,001
$293,063
$1,056,006
€1,891,051
£296,821
€665,817
£597,375
$12,090,829
$77,341,442
€8,409,856
£9,673,676
€793,785
£152,021,495
$1,409,598
$597,726
£€6,735,670
€2,357,056
£91,441

Net asset value
per share
$1.9969
$1.1856
€1.2603
£1.1159
€0.7908
£0.6943
$2.1913
$1.2025
€1.4096
£1.3094
€0.8003
£0.7454
$1.9048
$1.1994
€1.2887
£1.0646
€0.8086
£0.7141
$2.7944
$1.1875
€1.4631
£1.3621
€0.7919
£0.6994
$2.1171
$1.2005
€1.2927
€0.8098
£0.7275
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

Asat31May2023

Net assetvalue

Class A accumulating USD shares $46,581
Class B accumulating USD shares $162,163
Class B distributing USD shares $186,647
Class B distributing EUR shares €80,584
Class | accumulating GBP shares £244,533
Class | distributing GBP shares £27,714
Class M accumulating USD shares $150,358
Class Mdistributing USD shares $91,113,967
Class M accumulating EUR shares €958,493
Class M accumulating GBP shares £41,308

Class Mdistributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares

£299,265,642

Class Z accumulating USD shares $559,313
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,241,735
Class Z accumulating GBP shares £47,002

Net asset value
per share
$1.3322
$1.2474
$1.0658
€0.7124
£0.7707
£0.6066
$1.7056
$1.0536
€0.9675
£0.7941

£0.6565
$1.2948
€0.8599
£0.7291
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Asat31May2022

Net asset value
$47.837
$357,968
$195,000
£€86,648
£168,223
£11,644
$285,354
$105,856,508
€1,051,172
£197,773

£327,059,336
$627,865
€1,523,842
£32,284

Net asset value
per share
$1.3681
$1.2785
$1.1135
€0.7660
£0.7987
£0.6407
$1.7410
$1.1008
€1.0169
£0.8217

£0.6949
$1.3364
€0.9141
£0.7626

Asat31May2021

Net asset value
$53,514
$328,264
$220,668
£€98,883
£115,017
£48,865
$4,150,619
$125,585,440
€1,752,063
£220,223
£€388,912
£313,406,654
$713,587
€2,157,550
£44,210

Net asset value
per share
$1.5305
$1.4272
$1.2600
€0.8741
£0.8907
£0.7257
$1.9359
$1.2457
€1.1405
£0.9149
€0.9758
£0.7873
$1.5026
€1.0369
£0.8588
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund

Asat31May2023

Net asset value

Class A accumulating EUR shares €53,414
Class Adistributing EUR shares €206,858
Class B accumulating USD shares $107,260
Class B accumulating EUR shares €21,646
Class B accumulating GBP shares £1,073,244
Class I accumulating USD shares $1,907
Class I accumulating EUR shares £€86,644
Class I accumulating GBP shares £50,156
Class | distributing GBP shares £34,723
Class M accumulating USD shares -
Class M distributing USD shares $43,523,184
Class M accumulating EUR shares €1,009,567
Class M accumulating GBP shares £166,134
Class M distributing EUR shares £€190,069
Class Mdistributing GBP shares £116,924,627
Class Z accumulating USD shares $99,127
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €421,452
Class Z distributing EUR shares €38,332
Class Z distributing GBP shares £507

Net asset value
per share
€0.9027
€0.6936
$1.7862
€0.9914
£0.9255
$1.3942
€0.8623
£0.8281
£0.5422

$0.9533
€1.1059
£0.9812
€0.6370
£0.5471
$1.6081
€0.9027
€0.6179
£0.5862
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
€57,439
€230,528
$111,726
€23,230
£1,134,223
$1,979
£€95,406
£48,056
£29,401
$253,938
$48,748,256
€1,188,132
£174,784
€205,101
£135,340,396
$103,771
€550,217
€36,841
£556

Net asset value
per share
€0.9707
€0.7730
$1.8606
€1.0639
£0.9781
$1.4468
€0.9221
£0.8721
£0.5947
$2.0045
$1.0314
€1.1814
£1.0322
€0.7099
£0.6002
$1.6834
€0.9737
€0.6886
£0.6433

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
€70,033
€289,476
$67,222
£€28,266
£1,369,881
$15,701
€121,552
£54,109
£57,017
$1,010,056
$62,806,441
€1,495,939
£210,130
€496,999
£168,038,040
$143,107
€939,328
€44,251
£694

Net asset value
per share
€1.1835
€0.9706
$2.2372
€1.2946
£1.1813
$1.7333
€1.1180
£1.0492
£0.7410
$2.3991
$1.2801
€1.4309
£1.2410
€0.8916
£0.7480
$2.0342
€1.1909
€0.8646
£0.8021
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund

Asat31May 2023

Net asset value

Class A accumulating USD shares $15,619
Class B accumulating USD shares $1,486,231
Class B accumulating GBP shares £78,046
Class | accumulating GBP shares £50,718
Class I distributing GBP shares £88,369
Class M accumulating USD shares $305,886
Class M distributing USD shares $63,394,935
Class M accumulating EUR shares €268,705
Class M accumulating GBP shares £206,815
Class M distributing EUR shares €189,154
Class Mdistributing GBP shares £2,634,759
Class Z accumulating USD shares $124,104
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,088,479

Net asset value
per share
$1.8722
$1.9054
£1.1372
£1.1565
£0.9284
$1.9935
$1.6043
€1.1964
£1.1425
€1.0107
£0.9465
$1.8584
€1.2309
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Asat31May 2022

Net assetvalue
$15,745
$2,608,191
£79,393
£55
£91,438
$497,087
$78,365,731
€277,498
£210,174
€270,251
£1,202,990
$181,465
€1,225,867

Net asset value
per share
$1.8873
$1.9178
£1.1568
£1.1700
£0.9607
$2.0044
$1.6437
€1.2356
£1.1610
€1.0632
£0.9794
$1.8733
€1.2744

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
$16,324
$3,295,494
£82,403
£5,585
£96,980
$2,572,964
$99,534,139
€289,841
£973,595
€5,819,347
£2,895,764
$198,989
€1,539,047

Net asset value
per share
$1.9568
$1.9852
£1.2007
£1.1993
£1.0189
$2.0726
$1.7389
€1.2905
£1.2036
€1.1363
£1.0381
$1.9420
€1.3347
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund

Asat31May2023

Net asset value

Class A accumulating USD shares $727,430
Class A accumulating GBP shares £332,331
Class B accumulating USD shares $1,895,335
Class B distributing USD shares $403,144
Class B accumulating EUR shares €69,124
Class I accumulating GBP shares £186,195
Class | distributing GBP shares £67,940
Class M accumulating USD shares $5,576,429
Class Mdistributing USD shares $57,467,630
Class M accumulating EUR shares €132,237
Class M accumulating GBP shares £3,903,699
Class M distributing GBP shares £3,921,510
Class Z accumulating USD shares $1,210,504
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,794,786

Net asset value
per share
$2.5338
£1.4197
$2.6125
$2.6093
€1.0590
£1.4491
£1.4492
$2.7094
$2.7087
€1.5414
£1.4422
£1.4616
$2.4157
€1.5464

130

Asat31May2022

Net asset value
$788,720
£353,971

$1,980,161
$421,186
€74,717
£203,967
£74,100
$6,232,768
$65,360,305
€142,439
£4,863,047
£4,979,598
$1,538,745
€2,193,817

Net asset value
per share
$2.6538
£1.5166
$2.7294
$2.7261
€1.1447
£1.5409
£1.5410
$2.8208
$2.8200
€1.6603
£1.5314
£1.5519
$2.5428
€1.6842

Asat31May2021

Net asset value
$922,761
£388,604

$2,245,984
$458,757
£€82,569
£208,850
£80,192
$17,724,038
$81,847,938
€510,445
£5,731,644
£5,757,265
$1,678,251
€2,585,377

Net asset value
per share
$2.8979
£1.6717
$2.9728
$2.9693
€1.2650
£1.6908
£1.6907
$3.0616
$3.0608
€1.8285
£1.6777
£1.7006
$2.7907
€1.8753
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Class A accumulating USD shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares

Class Aaccumulating GBP shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class I distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class M distributing USD shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class Mdistributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating USD shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Asat31May2023

Net asset value
$1,020,637
€426,414
£30,887
$1,884,198
£435,668
£224,001
£286,166
£38,283
$288,637
$213,442,487
€120,263
£1,359,601
£112,400
£4,116,639
$1,263,187
€6,387,836

Net asset value
per share
$42.0378
€28.1768
£24.1189
$47.1049
£24.7590
£26.1043
£27.9756
£24.7892
$46.7511
$47.0426
€29.9712
£26.8052
£24.9063
£27.6752
$39.5021
€25.6779

131

Asat31May 2022
Net asset value
Net asset value per share
$1,416,412 $42.0621
€517,995 €29.2219
£31,561 £24.6452
$1,974,560 $47.0133
£444,073 £25.2367
£221,277 £26.4618
£129,787 £27.3075
£36,205 £25.1557
$289,434 $46.3115
$243,625,634 $46.7617
€123,523 £€30.7702
£1,791,610 £27.1181
£300,781 £25.2741
£3,366,420 £27.0536
$1,501,397 $39.7222
€7,731,525 €26.7591

Asat31May2021
Net asset value
Netasset value per share
$1,668,182 $44.9746
€620,035 €31.6733
£34,019 £26.5645
$2,607,381 $50.1419
£477,434 £27.1326
£198,197 £28.2922
£1,946 £25.6742
£21,793 £26.8956
$13,651,275 $49.0221
$307,170,680 $49.5914
£€730,288 £€33.0247
£2,033,063 £28.9352
£410,260 £27.0043
£1,428,154 £25.4374
$1,868,355 $42.6873
€11,332,355 €29.1517
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund

Asat31May2023

Net assetvalue

Class A accumulating USD shares $216,940
Class A distributing USD shares $1,557,844
Class A accumulating EUR shares €981,554
Class A accumulating GBP shares £144,092
Class Adistributing EUR shares €2,102,294
Class Adistributing GBP shares -
Class B accumulating USD shares $223,833
Class B distributing USD shares $1,653,974
Class B accumulating EUR shares -
Class B accumulating GBP shares £336,388
Class B distributing EUR shares €775,600
Class B distributing GBP shares -
Class | accumulating USD shares $25,002
Class I accumulating GBP shares £26,310
Class I distributing GBP shares £321,633
Class | distributing GBP shares (Unhedged) £140,299
Class M accumulating USD shares $63,047
Class M distributing USD shares $28,167,699
Class M accumulating EUR shares €2,212,967
Class M accumulating GBP shares £6,050,143
Class Mdistributing EUR shares €265,431
Class M distributing GBP shares £7,027,053
Class Z accumulating USD shares $156,747
Class Z distributing USD shares $77,182
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,777,757
Class Z accumulating GBP shares £99,164
Class Z distributing EUR shares €421,044

Net asset value
per share
$3.0119
$2.1501
€1.8617
£1.7111
€1.3215

$3.1063
$2.2111

£1.7590
€1.4332
$3.1221
£1.7041
£1.2844
£1.4945
$3.1985
$2.3475
€1.4691
£1.8720
€1.5115
£1.3320
$2.7820
$2.0712
€1.8485
£1.5251
€1.3184
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
$224,868
$2,050,429
€1,113,453
£169,191
€2,869,210

$873,790
$1,763,349
£€313,373
£355,286
€857,536
£122,118
$25,760
£38,464
£353,596
£93,177
$64,856
$33,155,271
£€2,360,506
£7,498,029
€292,000
£9,281,458
$163,290
$230,974
€2,378,867
£105,526
£€486,439

Net asset value
per share
$3.1220
$2.2980
€2.0008
£1.8118
€1.4648

$3.2118
$2.3573
€2.1270
£1.8578
€1.5846
£1.3677
$3.2168
£1.7936
£1.3945
£1.5614
$3.2906
$2.4902
€1.5670
£1.9673
€1.6628
£1.4440
$2.8981
$2.2249
€1.9965
£1.6230
€1.4688

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
$241,315
$2,614,097
€1,195,428
£180,518
€3,709,756
£191,205
$2,008,373
$2,540,164
£€335,600
£378,119
€942,484
£133,379
$81,330
£41,626
£350,017
£3,182
$204,469
$47,360,088
£€1,308,929
£8,483,628
€319,300
£11,461,966
$173,758
$228,211
£€3,367,790
£113,161
£€549,597

Net asset value
per share
$3.3054
$2.4961
€2.1481
£1.9331
€1.6141
£1.4493
$3.3919
$2.5542
€2.2779
£1.9772
€1.7415
£1.4938
$3.3853
£1.9022
£1.5176
£1.4945
$3.4577
$2.6844
€1.6697
£2.0831
€1.8182
£1.5692
$3.0839
$2.4290
€2.1545
£1.7404
£€1.6266
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund

Asat31May 2023

Netasset value
Class B accumulating USD shares $652,204
Class | distributing GBP shares £15,217
Class I distributing USD shares -
Class M accumulating USD shares -
Class Mdistributing USD shares $221,184,000
Class M accumulating EUR shares -
Class Mdistributing GBP shares £146,080

Net assetvalue
per share

$0.8052
£0.2920

$0.5108

£0.3160
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Asat31May 2022

Net assetvalue
$574,790
£12,012

$228,414,171

£319,638

Net asset value
per share
$0.7664
£0.2958

$0.5099

£0.3202

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
$946,740
£24,187
$4,829
$1,406,831
$401,034,583
€48,094
£749,989

Net asset value
per share
$0.9017
£0.3652
$0.6305
$0.7747
$0.6258
€0.5617
£0.3949
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares

Class A accumulating GBP shares

Class A accumulating USD shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares

Class B accumulating USD shares

Class I accumulating EUR shares

Class I accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class | accumulating USD shares

Class | distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Class Mdistributing EUR shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares

Class M accumulating USD shares

Class M distributing GBP shares

Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Asat31May2023

Net asset value
€3,556,978
£543,407
$944,063
€151,633
£904,552
€132,983
£123,447
£142,211
$73,991
£101,110
€583,159
€61,376,638
£1,348,014
$489,408
£520,695
£2,018,505
€13,505,852

Net asset value
per share
€2.9987
£2.6377
$5.0261
€3.2368
£2.0060
€3.1497
£2.6431
£2.4502
$4.8323
£2.2622
€2.2304
€2.6765
£2.6253
$4.9285
£2.3635
£2.3410
€2.7849
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Asat31May 2022

Net asset value
€4,101,140
£508,149
$900,442
€204,689
£843,751
€134912
£111,822
£54,275
$89,508
£102,625
€1,375,837
€69,573,342
£1,795,198
$460,520
£405,307
£1,563,835
€15,351,953

Net asset value
per share
€2.8440
£2.4666
$4.6114
€3.0621
£1.8711
€2.9693
£2.4568
£2.2826
$4.4067
£2.1321
€2.0995
€2.5602
£2.4367
$4.4872
£2.2278
£2.2131
€2.6545

Asat31May 2021

Net asset value
€4,438,755
£521,709
$924,439
€212,310
£870,866
$1,077,337
€140,070
£96,570
£5,753
$91,340
£90,732
€10,142,244
€76,135,629
£1,968,560
$856,334
£421,045
£760,674
€19,119,314

Net asset value
per share
€2.9574
£2.5523
$4.7343
€3.1761
£1.9313
$2.9881
€3.0690
£2.5269
£2.3866
$4.4969
£2.2157
€2.1668
€2.6740
£2.5023
$4.5719
£2.3143
£2.3390
€2.7742
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12. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares (Unhedged)

Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating JPY shares
Class M distributing JPY shares
Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating JPY shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Asat31May2023
Net asset value
Netassetvalue per share
€75,219 €1.7137
$328,854 $2.0553
£93,080 £1.7465
£33,479 £1.0782
£27,848 £1.6301
¥46,533,844 ¥233.0504
¥36,392,235,366 ¥217.0915
€244,153 €1.8379
£257,875 £1.3917
$461,194 $2.1870
¥553,124 ¥205.3559
€1,112,571 €1.6155
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Asat31May2022
Net asset value
Net asset value per share
€72,322 €1.5441
$287,533 $1.7971
£72,410 £1.5402
£21,466 £1.0409
£11,690 £1.4485
¥34,234,243 ¥210.4526
¥32 960,573,248 ¥198.0120
€276,533 €1.6447
£240,397 £1.2260
$401,439 $1.9036
£36,399 £1.4509
¥938,414 ¥187.6828
€1,154,110 €1.4629

Asat31May2021
Net asset value
Net asset value per share
€89,237 €1.6067
$13,412 $2.2425
$294,386 $1.8399
£64,921 £1.5809
£4,619 £1.1210
£16,611 £1.4927
¥451,290,810 ¥217.1766
¥27,888,148,159 ¥205.6455
€295,209 €1.6992
£246,475 £1.2570
$409,156 $1.9402
£45,478 £1.4929
¥980,200 ¥196.0400
€1,496,052 €1.5298
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13. Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares

Class I distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

Class Adistributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class I distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Class Z distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan)

Fund Bond Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
GBP GBP usD usbD usD usbD
(12,286) (2,597) (47) (128) (7,721) (303)
(8,558,908) (8,407,887) (301,116) (470,963) (1,107,221) (1,110,652)
88,497 105,388 401 2,176 8,280 11,190
(189,273) (449,687) (2,147) (1,627) (30,184) (4,233)
(8,671,970) (8,754,783) (302,909) (470,542) (1,136,846) (1,103,998)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Fund Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD usbD
(1,793) (889) (186,474) (213,852) - -
- - (342,345) (356,687) (5,198) (4,453)
(2,205) (2,074) (76,137) (100,104) (425) (689)
(11,258,360) (8,794,262) (26,336,020) (13,805,424) (10,653,971) (9,751,251)
- - (113,193) (123,940) - -
128,737 226,723 423,857 958,745 112,370 168,496
(152,002) (169,719) (532,773) (274,426) (165,927) (112,819)
(11,285,623) (8,740,221) (27,163,085) (13,915,688) (10,713,151) (9,700,716)
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13. Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Class Adistributing shares
Class I distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Class Z distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

Class Adistributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class | distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Class Z distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022 31May 2023 31May 2022
usD usD usD usD uUsD usD
(7,989) (9,373) - - - -
(1,369) (1,898) (1,827) (2,759) - -
(8,222,008) (10,084,094) (1,260,065) (2,311,055) - -
(1,290) (1,349) - - - -
105,771 152,589 (13,771) 8,355 - -
(137,327) (142,637) - (51,296) - -
(8,264,212 (10,086,762) (1,275,663) (2,356,755) - =

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financialyear

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financialyear

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financialyear

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD UsbD uUsbD uUsbD

- - (135,895) (173,135) - -

- - (81,517) (89,190) - -

(45) - (16,192) (13,476) (760) (1,128)
(770,016) (550,862) (1,267,038) (1,524,954) (11,373,111) (14,962,263)
- - (19,689) (22,354) - -

8,350 3,203 2,880 3,263 103,820 228,014
(26,557) (15,670) (30,624) (47,867) (146,266) (957,415)
(788,268) (563,329) (1,548,075) (1,867,713) (11,416,317) (15,692,792)
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GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund Fund Aggregated totalin GBP
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2022
JPY JPY EUR EUR GBP GBP
Class Adistributing shares - - - - (276,425) (295,303)
Class B distributing shares - - - - (357,075) (334,762)
Class | distributing shares (15,030) (10,827) (1,677) (1,112) (102,657) (94,716)
Class Mdistributing shares (338,193,415) (183,123,535) (1,123,622) (934,026) (71,973,592) (57,484,730)
Class Z distributing shares - - - - (111,661) (109,754)
Equalisation Income 11,263,302 33,923,631 162,796 291,634 1,031,610 1,881,656
Equalisation Expense (12,100,861) (4,040,655) (174,509) (285,927) (1,433,220) (2,039,459)
(339,046,004) (153,251,386) (1,137,012) (929,431) (73,223,020) (58,477,068)

Distributions per share class have not been disclosed as due to the number of classes and currencies involved it would not be practicable to present this information within these financial
statements. Itis not considered that this information is material to readers of the financial statements.
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14. Significant shareholders

Asat31May 2023 Total % of shares held by funds

managed by Barclays Investment Number ofinvestors holding 20% or Total % of shares held by shareholders
Solutions Limited or held by affiliates = more of the voting shareswhoare not holding 20% or more of the voting shares

of Barclays Investment Solutions affiliates of Barclays Investment inissue who are not affiliates of Barclays

Fund Limited Solutions Limited Investment Solutions Limited

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund Nil 1 90.00%

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund Nil 1 87.60%

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund Nil 2 97.38%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund Nil 2 95.04%

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund Nil 1 82.25%

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund Nil 1 82.08%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund Nil 1 80.76%

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund Nil 1 86.37%

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund Nil 2 89.71%

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund Nil 1 88.09%

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund Nil 2 80.89%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund Nil 1 78.75%

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Nil 1 68.76%

GlobalAccess Japan Fund Nil 1 84.54%
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14. Significant shareholders (continued)

Asat31May 2022 Total % of shares held by funds

managed by Barclays Investment Number of investors holding 20% or Total % of shares held by shareholders
Solutions Limited or held by affiliates = more of the voting shareswhoarenot holding 20% or more of the voting shares

of Barclays Investment Solutions affiliates of Barclays Investment inissue who are not affiliates of Barclays

Fund Limited Solutions Limited Investment Solutions Limited

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund Nil 1 90.13%

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund Nil 1 87.76%

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund Nil 1 77.25%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund Nil 2 94.62%

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund Nil 1 77.73%

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund Nil 1 82.31%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund Nil 1 79.19%

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund Nil 1 88.90%

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund Nil 2 86.40%

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund Nil 1 88.66%

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund Nil 2 67.32%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund Nil 2 99.32%

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Nil 1 69.20%

GlobalAccess Japan Fund Nil 1 84.85%
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15. Financial risk management

Fair value hierarchy disclosure

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Funds to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements for assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position.

The disclosures are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measure fair value. The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
traded in an active market (such as trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the year end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Funds is the closing mid-market price as at the Valuation Point on the year end date or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is available. The fair value of the
currency contracts held by the Funds is arrived at using a pricing model.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if the quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Funds use a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end date. The Funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

(i) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

(i) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

(iff) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently. Level 3 investments include bonds and equities for the financial year ended 31 May
2023 and 31 May 2022. As observable prices are not available for these securities, the Fund has used valuation techniques to derive the fair value. The level 3 bonds and equities amounts

consist of securities with stale and/or suspended prices.

The total market value of level 3 securities are deemed immaterial for the purposes of presenting a level 3 roll forward table and is also deemed immaterial for a sensitivity analysis to be
included.

The tables on the following pages show a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs as at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2022 in valuing the portfolios assets and liabilities.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Assets
Equity securities 319,645,370 - - 294,502,442 - -
Derivatives - 5,342 - 432,960 64 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4,686,017 - - 9,403,516 - -
Margin cash due from broker 1,621,038 - - 1,157,716 - -
Otherreceivables - 1,946,027 - - 1,993,082 -
Totalassets 325,952,425 1,951,369 - 305,496,634 1,993,146 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (22,570) (12,765) - - (24,459) -
Bank overdraft (3,179) - - (1,141) - -
Other payables - (2,836,386) - - (1,654,097) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (325,028,894) - - (305,810,083) -
Totalliabilities (25,749) (327,878,045) - (1,141) (307,488,639) -

142



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund Asat31May 2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1l Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD

Assets
Debt securities - 98,387,823 - - 105,387,844 210,266
Investment funds 737,434 - - 1,832,260 - -
Derivatives 358,725 2,888,326 - 1,094,680 1,181,366 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,105,864 - - 1,977,137 - -
Cash held as collateral - - - 140,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 209,215 - - 4,172 - -
Otherreceivables - 33,443 836 - - 8,802,884 -
Totalassets 3,411,238 134,719,985 - 5,048,249 115,372,094 210,266
Liabilities
Derivatives (464,162) (468,922) - (839,425) (757,122) -
Bank overdraft (5,911,772) - - (1,022) - -
Cash pledged as collateral (2,010,000) - - (60,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker (48,982) - - (397,437) - -
Other payables - (43,377,563) - - (18,792,519) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (85,849,822) - - (99,783,084) -
Totalliabilities (8,434,916) (129,696,307) - (1,297,884) (119,332,725) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund Asat31May 2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD

Assets
Equity securities 67,626,600 - - 80,558,995 - 86,195
Investment funds - 1,195,462 - - 1,389,040 -
Derivatives - 366 - - 235,061 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,049,341 - - 2,496,389 - -
Margin cash due from broker 221,993 - - 138,955 - -
Otherreceivables - 373,160 - - 459,362 -
Totalassets 69,897,934 1,568,988 - 83,194,339 2,083,463 86,195
Liabilities
Derivatives (14,750) (71,122) - (2,400) (21) -
Other payables - (512,243) - - (581,825) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (70,868,807) - - (84,779,751) -
Totalliabilities (14,750) (71,452,172) - (2,400) (85,361,597) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsD

Assets
Equity securities 475,006,461 - 791,396 547,768,246 - 1,096,969
Investment funds - 7,631,029 - - 8,595,547 -
Derivatives 23,400 2,172 - 12,243 893,977 -
Cash and cash equivalents 20,778,742 - - 14,639,304 - -
Margin cash due from broker 1,324,358 - - 572,930 - -
Otherreceivables - 3,869,919 - - 6,107,226 -
Totalassets 497,132,961 11,503,120 791,396 562,992,723 15,596,750 1,096,969
Liabilities
Derivatives (82,605) (352,143) - - (1,109) -
Bank overdraft (854,339) - - (2,277) - -
Otherpayables - (5,253,721) - - (6,914,890) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (502,884,669) - - (572,768,166) -
Totalliabilities (936,944) (508,490,533) - (2,277) (579,684,165) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD

Assets
Equity securities 400,059 - 2,463,811 710,689 - 2,182,971
Debt securities - 469,074,020 511,583 - 540,134,550 786,774
Investment funds 18,262,169 - - 6,967,929 - -
Rights - 166 - - - -
Warrants - 494 683,868 - 3,661 765,770
Derivatives - 272,945 - - 15,072,279 -
Cash and cash equivalents 16,320,504 - - 8,633,113 - -
Otherreceivables - 1,755,829 - - 877,039 -
Totalassets 34,982,732 471,103,454 3,659,262 16,311,731 556,087,529 3,735,515
Liabilities
Derivatives - (4,638,055) - - (451,966) -
Bank overdraft (7,120) - - (1,401) - -
Other payables - (5,333,533) - - (3,828,374) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (499,766,740) - - (571,853,034) -
Totalliabilities (7,120) (509,738,328) - (1,401) (576,133,374) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund Asat31May 2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1l Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

usb uUsb usb usb uUsb usb

Assets
Equity securities - - 9,723 - - 9,723
Debt securities - 460,777,368 229,692 - 501,604,774 430,163
Investment funds 13,730,165 - - 6,994,650 - -
Derivatives 500,644 5,323,049 - 819,410 15,272,961 -
Cash and cash equivalents 13,527,532 - - 5,340,936 - -
Cash held as collateral - - - 340,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 2,259,083 - - 1,023,687 - -
Otherreceivables - 9,918,199 - - 427,905 -
Totalassets 30,017,424 476,018,616 239,415 14,518,683 517,305,640 439,886
Liabilities
Derivatives (379,866) (4,905,043) - (587,830) (1,526,754) -
Cash pledged as collateral (1,580,000) - - (80,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker (442,266) - - (597,787) - -
Other payables - (32,960,957) - - (6,563,102) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (466,007,323) - - (522,908,736) -
Totalliabilities (2,402,132) (503,873,323) - (1,265,617) (530,998,592) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund As at 31 May 2023 As at 31 May 2022

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Level1 Level 2 Level 3

usD usD usD usD usD uUsD

Assets
Debt securities - 174,470,490 1,489,133 - 199,140,217 1,087,335
Investment funds 8,201,363 - - 3,075,130 - -
Derivatives 161,889 138,725 - 1,265,427 6,960,955 -
Cash and cash equivalents 10,565,727 - - 14,380,624 - -
Cash held as collateral 10,000 - - 70,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 724,967 - - 672,973 - -
Other receivables - 813,750 - - 1,083,785 -
Total assets 19,663,946 175,422,965 1,489,133 19,464,154 207,184,957 1,087,335
Liabilities
Derivatives (139,105) (1,753,681) - (170,088) (310,003) -
Bank overdraft (198,982) - - (1,438) - -
Margin cash due to broker - - - (1,005,669) - -
Other payables - (2,032,467) - - (2,155,031) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (192,451,809) - - (224,094,217) -
Totalliabilities (338,087) (196,237,957) - (1,177,195) (226,559,251) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund Asat31May 2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD

Assets
Debt securities - 69,153,342 - - 86,524,012 -
Investment funds 1,606,122 - - - - -
Derivatives 11,754 1,002,101 - 330,213 599,959 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,639,909 - - 5,686,813 - -
Cashheld as collateral 260,000 - - 50,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 1,472,557 - - 1,007,396 - -
Otherreceivables - 1,417,673 - - 2,013,671 -
Totalassets 4,990,342 71,573,116 - 7,074,422 89,137,642 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (225,854) (303,860) - (145,451) (607,534) -
Bank overdraft (6,303) - - (1,442) - -
Cash pledged as collateral (320,000) - - (25,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker (621,895) - - (1,193,228) - -
Otherpayables - (4,319,257) - = (8,674,825) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (70,766,289) - - (85,564,584) -
Totalliabilities (1,174,052) (75,389,406) - (1,365,121) (94,846,943) -
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD

Assets
Equity securities 77,005,517 - - 89,310,675 - -
Derivatives - 4,187 - - 524,437 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,049,710 - - 2,375,073 - -
Margin cash due from broker 273,621 - - 328,197 - -
Otherreceivables - 178,671 - - 143,993 -
Totalassets 80,328,848 182,858 - 92,013,945 668,430 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (1,687) (173,081) - (38,456) (29,186) -
Bank overdraft (4,127) - - (1,438) - -
Otherpayables - (498,817) - - (507,411) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (79,833,994) - - (92,105,884) -
Totalliabilities (5,814) (80,505,892) - (39,894) (92,642,481) -
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD

Assets
Equity securities 225,027,864 - - 250,684,243 - -
Derivatives 60,362 5,495 - 140,813 348,860 -
Cash and cash equivalents 9,307,770 - - 13,459,975 - -
Margin cash due from broker 563,417 - - 1,028,549 - -
Otherreceivables - 1,115,146 - - 733,619 -
Totalassets 234,959,413 1,120,641 - 265,313,580 1,082,479 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (213,482) - (19,560) (8,209) -
Bank overdraft (4,127) - - (1,438) - -
Other payables - (2,385,858) - - (614,952) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (233,476,587) - - (265,751,900) -
Totalliabilities (4,127) (236,075,927) - (20,998) (266,375,061) -
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD

Assets
Equity securities 56,536,735 - - 70,497,230 - 1,673
Derivatives - 44,527 - 34,913 1,069,718 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,813,566 - - 1,457,829 - -
Margin cash due from broker 133,673 - - 153,635 - -
Otherreceivables - 486,368 - - 330,110 -
Totalassets 59,483,974 530,895 - 72,143,607 1,399,828 1,673
Liabilities
Derivatives (6,225) (439,633) - (1,900) (9,725) -
Bank overdraft (2,499) - - (1,438) - -
Otherpayables - (791,912) - - (841,098) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (58,774,600) - - (72,690,947) -
Totalliabilities (8,724) (60,006,145) - (3,338) (73,541,770) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

uUsD uUsbD uUsbD uUsbD uUsD uUsbD

Assets
Debt securities - 214,013,410 324,597 - 210,549,782 1,577,492
Investment funds 3,773,547 - - 3,940,507 - -
Derivatives - 2,642,623 - 216,853 2,445,953 -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,019,337 - - 15,006,454 - -
Cash held as collateral 420,060 - - 610,060 - -
Margin cash due from broker 2 - - - - -
Otherreceivables - 931,605 - - 2,884,396 -
Totalassets 10,212,946 217,587,638 324,597 19,773,874 215,880,131 1,577,492
Liabilities
Derivatives - (3,538,074) - - (2,891,836) -
Cash pledged as collateral (330,000) - - (150,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker - - - (146,042) - -
Otherpayables - (2,220,991) - - (4,649,362) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (222,036,116) - - (229,394,257) -
Totalliabilities (330,000) (227,795,181) - (296,042) (236,935,455) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2023 or as at 31 May 2022.
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15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Asat31May 2023 Asat31May 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Assets
Equity securities 84,437,867 - - 93,479,349 - -
Investment funds 769,954 771,874 - 4,329,573 - -
Derivatives - 91,333 - - 35,650 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,524,769 - - 1,180,242 - -
Margin cash due from broker 929 - - 929 - -
Otherreceivables - 359,289 - - 420,600 -
Totalassets 86,733,519 1,222,496 - 98,990,093 456,250 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (7,849) - - (40,003) -
Bank overdraft (6,257) - - - - -
Otherpayables - (591,675) - - (975,299) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (87,350,234) - - (98,431,041) -
Totalliabilities (6,257) (87,949,758) - - (99,446,343) -

154



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited

Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

15. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)

GlobalAccess Japan Fund Asat31May2023 Asat31May2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3

JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY

Assets
Equity securities 34,870,576,915 - - 31,876,543,155 - -
Derivatives 56,100,000 9,382,503 - 22,237,098 7,118,902 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,477,194,052 - - 894,012,478 - -
Margin cash due from broker 260,029,493 - - 407,867,551 - -
Otherreceivables - 589,036,734 - - 487,769,662 -
Totalassets 36,663,900,460 598,419,237 - 33,200,660,282 494,888,564 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (57,094) - - (164,959) -
Bank overdraft (550,449) - - (185,016) - -
Other payables - (427,328,170) - - (341,702,426) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares - (36,834,383,984) - - (33,353,496,445) -
Totalliabilities (550,449) (37,261,769,248) - (185,016) (33,695,363,830) -

The primary objective of the Funds is to invest in transferable securities. The Funds also invest in financial derivative instruments, such as futures and forwards, for the purposes of
efficient portfolio management. As at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2022, some of these derivative transactions were subject to master netting arrangements. All financial derivative
transactions are disclosed in the Schedule of Investments. Margin balances are maintained by the Funds for the purposes of providing collateral on futures.

The fair value of the majority of the financial derivative instruments is less than 1% of the net asset value of the Funds and is therefore considered insignificant. On the grounds of
materiality, the Company has chosen not to present any details of the derivative offsetting arrangements within the financial statements. Where the fair value of the financial derivative
instruments exceeds 1% of the net asset value of the Funds at either an individual or at a counterparty aggregate level, the offsetting agreement in place for these positions is disclosed

by way a footnote in each respective schedule of investments.

155



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023 (continued)

16. Fees

a) Investment management fees

The investment manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 0.90% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class
M Shares of each Fund apart from the GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund where the Investment manager is entitled
tochargeafeeupto 1.10%.

The investment manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 1.15% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class |
Shares of each Fund apart from the GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund. The Investment manager is entitled to
charge a fee of up to 1.25% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class | Shares of the GlobalAccess Emerging
Market Equity Fund.

The investment manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 2.00% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class
A Shares of each Fund.

The investment manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 1.50% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class
B Shares of each Fund.

The investment manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 2.50% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class
Z Shares and Class Y Shares of each Fund.

The currentinvestment management fees in respect of the Class B Shares of each Fund are as follows:

Fund Class
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund 0.95%
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund 1.05%
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund 0.95%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 1.15%
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund 0.65%
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund 1.15%
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Japan Fund 1.25%

The investment manager fee entitlements for all Shares Classes of all Funds are unchanged since the prior financial year.

The investment management fee is accrued on a daily basis and determined on the last Dealing Day of each month based on
the average Net Asset Value for the Fund during the relevant month.

When the assets under management fail to reach their optimum levels, a portion of the management charge is waived by the
Investment manager. There were no fee waivers of such charges during the financial year.

b) Administration and Depositary fees
The administrator and the Depositary shall be entitled to an aggregate annual fee not to exceed 0.20% of the net asset value

of each Fund, billed and payable monthly. The fees of the administrator are charged based on an accumulation of assets held
in Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management Division. There is a rate agreement between
Barclays and Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited where the fees charged are
determined by the rate card.
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16. Fees (continued)

b) Administration and Depositary fees (continued)

The fees are calculated by accumulating all Barclays assets under Administration with Northern Trust International Fund
Administration Services (Ireland) Limited and applying the rate card. The administrator will be entitled to certain out of pocket
expenses, transfer agency fees, financial statements preparation charges and registrar fees at normal commercial rates. The
Depositary shall also be entitled to recover from the Company transaction charges and out-of-pocket expenses at normal
commercial rates.

The fees of the administrator and Depositary shall be accrued daily based on the daily Net Asset Value of each Fund and will
be paid monthly in arrears out of the assets of each Fund.

c) Directors’fees

The Directors shall be entitled to a fee and remuneration for their services at a rate to be determined from time to time by the
Directors provided that no Director may be paid in excess of EUR 40,000 in any one financial year without the approval of the
Board. The total of the Directors' fees for the financial year are GBP 84,283 (31 May 2022: GBP 61,602). Please refer to note
18 inrelation to Directors who did not earn fees during the financial year.

d) Management Company fees

The manager shall be paid a fee out of the assets of each Fund, calculated and accrued on each Dealing Day and payable
monthly in arrears, of an amount up to 0.015% of the Net Asset Value of each Fund (plus VAT, if any), subject to a monthly
minimum fee up to €2,250 (plus VAT, if any). The manager is also entitled to receive out of the assets of each Fund reasonable
and properly vouched expenses.

17. Auditors’ remuneration
The remuneration for all work carried out by the statutory audit firm in respect of the financial year is as follows (all amounts
are exclusive of VAT):

Financial year Financial year

ended ended

31 May 2023 31 May 2022

EUR EUR

Statutory audit of financial statements 191,600 180,700
Tax advisory services 132,000 133,900
323,600 314,600

18. Related party transactions
The following parties are considered to be related parties to the Company as at 31 May 202 3:

Directors of the Company David Kingston'*
Hugh Paul Shovlint***
Kishor Mandalia®
Damian Neylint**
Eimear Cowhey**

Investment manager & promoter Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through it Wealth
Management Division

Distributor Barclays Investment Solutions Limited

Counterparty to future contracts Barclays Bank UK plc

Manager Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited

lindependent non-executive Directors
2Non-executive Directors

*Resigned 22 September 2022
**Appointed 22 September 2022
***Resigned 16 February 2023
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18. Related party transactions (continued)
The margin cash for futures contracts on each Fund held with Barclays Bank UK PLC is shown in notes 6 and 8. In its capacity
as counterparty to future contracts, the margin cash due from/(to) broker are disclosed within notes 6 and 8.

Carne Global Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, as manager is considered a related party to the Company as it is considered to
have significant influence over the Company in its role as manager. During the financial year ended 31 May 2023, the manager
received fees of GBP 262,163 (31 May 2022: GBP 86,757), of which GBP 29,849 (31 May 2022: GBP 22,120) was payable at
year end. Carne Global Financial Services Limited, the parent Company of the manager, received fees amounting to GBP
11,107 (31 May 2022: 48,123) during the financial year ended 31 May 2023 in respect of fund governance services provided to
the Company, of which GBP Nil (31 May 2022: GBP Nil) was payable at year end.

Fees paid during the financial year to the Investment manager totalled GBP 19,911,394 (31 May 2022: GBP 22,002,450) and
are shown in note 5. Balances outstanding to the Investment manager at 31 May 2023 totalled GBP 4,924,076 (31 May 2022:
GBP 5,105,323) and are disclosed in note 9. Amounts receivable from the Investment manager at 31 May 2023 totalled GBP
Nil (31 May 2022: GBP Nil).

Details the significant shareholdings in the Funds, including those who are a related party to Barclays Investment Solutions
Limited, acting through its Wealth Management Division are disclosed in note 14.

Directors' Fees paid during the financial year totalled GBP 84,283 (31 May 2022: GBP 61,602). Balances outstanding to the
Directors at 31 May 2023 totalled GBP 20,517 (31 May 2022: GBP 8,127).

None of the Directors who are employees of Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management
Division earned Directors' fees during the financial year.

The amounts charged and accrued by Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, pursuant to the Management Support Services
agreement are disclosed in notes 5and 9.

Barclays Bank UK PLC act as counterparty to forward contracts and futures, these positions are disclosed in the Schedule of
Investments, on pages 162 to 409, where applicable.

The GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund has a holding in a related party of Barclays Bank UK PLC and this position is
disclosed in the Schedule of Investments on page 162.

The GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund has holdings in a related party of Barclays Bank UK PLC and these positions are
disclosed in the Schedule of Investments on page 216.

The GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund has a holding in a related party of Barclays Bank UK PLC and this position
is disclosed in the Schedule of Investments on page 325.

19. Taxation
Under current Irish law and practice the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the

Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (the "TCA"), as amended. On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains
so long as the Company is resident for tax purposes in Ireland. The Company shall be regarded as resident for tax purposes in
Ireland if it is centrally managed and controlled in Ireland.

However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a "chargeable event". A chargeable event includes any distribution payments
to Shareholders, any encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of shares and the holding of shares at the end of each
eight year period beginning with the acquisition of such shares or the appropriation or cancellation of shares of a shareholder
by the Company for the purposes of meeting the amount of tax payable on a gain arising on a transfer.
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19. Taxation (continued)
A chargeable event does not include:

(i) Any transaction in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Revenue
Commissioners of Ireland; or
(i) An exchange of shares effected by way of arm's length bargain where no payment is made to the shareholder
representing one sub-fund for another sub-fund of the investment undertaking; or
(iif) An exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the investment undertaking with
another fund, subject to certain conditions; or
(iv) Certain exchanges of shares between spouses and former spouses.

No Irish tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

a) a Shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at the time of the chargeable
event, provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with Schedule 2b of the TCA, are held by the Company or the
Company has been authorised by the Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the absence of appropriate declarations; and
b) certain exempted Irish tax resident shareholders (as defined by Section 739D TCA), who have provided the

Company with the necessary signed statutory declarations.

Any dividends, interest and capital gains received by the Company from securities issued in countries other than Ireland may
be subject to taxes, included withholding tax, imposed by the country from which the investment income/gain arises. The
Company may not be able to benefit from the reduced rates of withholding tax by virtue of the double taxation treaties in
operation between Ireland and other countries and such taxes may be not recoverable by the Company or its shareholders.

20. Segregated liability

The Company is structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between its Funds. As a matter of Irish law, the assets
of one Fund will not be available to meet the liabilities of another. However, the Company is a single legal entity that may
operate or have assets held on its behalf or be subject to claims in other jurisdictions that may not necessarily recognise such
segregation.

21. Significant events during the financial year
A number of share class terminations occurred within the Funds during the financial year. Please refer to 'Funds at a glance
section within 'Background to the Company' on pages 5 to 13 for details.

On 1June 2022, 1 September 2022, 1 December 2022 and 1 March 2023, the following dividends were declared by each Fund
on the new income available for distribution:

Fund Currency Amounts paid Amounts paid

1June 2022 1 September 2022
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 3,893,657 1,843,218
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund usb 61,523 53913
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usD 350,736 512,900
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usD 4,192,020 5,330,785
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usD 6,579,586 6,637,799
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund usD 2,380,228 2,473,196
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund ush 2,273,800 1,747,179
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund NI 112,220 326,399
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usD - -
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usb 116,811 145,474
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund usb 653,356 313,924
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usD 3,324,508 2,228,283
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR 1,041,547 67,974
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY 190,285,703 -
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21. Significant events during the financial year (continued)

Fund Currency Amounts paid Amounts paid

1 December 2022 1March 2023
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usD 215,794 35,513
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usD 1,134,865 604,688
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usb 7,310,775 6,526,009
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund UsD 2,714,448 3,091,723
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund usD 2,057,650 2,154,026
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund usD 349,286 473,987
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usD - -
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usD 234,346 273,430
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund usb 316,448 236,603
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usD 3,033,426 2,787,653
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR - 15,777
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY 147,922,742 -
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 2,317,543 516,776
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund ush 87,750 97,977

For further details on distributions during the financial year and prior financial year please refer to note 13.

On 22 September 2022 David Kingston resigned as Director of the Company and Damian Neylin and Eimear Cowhey were
appointed as Directors.

Eimear Cowhey was appointed as Chairperson of the Company on 1 January 2023.
Hugh Paul Shovlin resigned as Director of the Company on 16 February 2023.

An updated prospectus was issued on 18 November 2022. The main changes were to revise the SFDR provisions for nine of
the sub-funds of the Company, which were reclassified as Article 8 of the SFDR, and to update the investment objective/
investment policy of the GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund and the GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund
following the successful passing of the shareholder resolutions mentioned above. A general update to the prospectus was
also performed, including clarifications to the investment objectives and policies of certain relevant sub-funds of the
Company. There were also changes to the Directors of the Company.

The First Addendum to the Prospectus was issued on 1 December 2022. The addendum was for the inclusion of the SFDR
Annex Il disclosures.

The Second Addendum to the Prospectus was issued on 23 February 2023. This addendum was for change in the SFDR
Annex to the Prospectus in respect of the asset allocation planned for the GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (Ex-Japan) Fund.

Events arising in Ukraine, as a result of military action being undertaken by Russia in Ukraine, may impact on securities related
to companies domiciled in Russia and/or listed on exchanges located in Russia, including the Moscow Exchange ("Russian
Securities"). The Directors are monitoring developments related to this military action, including current and potential future
interventions of foreign governments and economic sanctions against Russia, in order to assess their

impact on any Russian Securities held by the Sub-Funds, including their potential impact on the liquidity of Russian Securities.

As at 31 May 2023, the below Funds had the following exposure to securities of companies domiciled in Russia:

Fund Name % of NAV
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 0.16%
GlobalAccess Corporate Bond Fund 0.01%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 0.51%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund 0.15%
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21. Significant events during the financial year (continued)

As at 31 May 2022, the below Funds had the following exposure to securities of companies domiciled in Russia:

Fund Name % of NAV
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 0.19%
GlobalAccess Corporate Bond Fund 0.01%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 0.28%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund 0.69%

Other than noted above, there have been no significant events during the financial year, which, in the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 May 2023.

22. Significant events since the financial year end
On 1 June 2023, the following dividends were declared by each Fund based on the net income available for distribution as at
the year-end date. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Fund Currency Amounts paid
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 3,761,937
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund usDh 157,891
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usb 417,915
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usbh 3,200,012
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usb 7,625,859
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund usbh 3,501,076
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund usD 2,385,128
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund usD 471,040
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usD -
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usD 233,663
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund UsD 516,018
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usb 3,445,420
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR 1,093,222
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY 217,815,285

For distributions payable at the prior financial year end please see note 20.

The Barclays Wealth Strategic Asset Allocation ("SAA") forms the basis for the portfolios of two Barclays Wealth investment
propositions and the two propositions combined, invest heavily into the Barclays Multi-Manager Funds PLC Funds. The SAA is
reviewed on a regular basis and changes are implemented every 2-3 years. A 2023 SAA refresh cycle went live from 10 July
2023 and consequently impacted the Assets Under Management ("AUM") of several Barclays Multi-Manager Funds PLC
Funds. There were a number of significant decreases in AUM as well as a number of significant increases. The impact for
Barclays Multi-Manager Funds PLC Funds as a whole was positive, with a large inflow of AUM into the company. At an
individual Fund level the largest inflow of AUM was estimated to be approximately 164% and the largest outflow 64%.

There have been no other significant events since the financial year end through to 18 September 2023, which, in the opinion
of the Directors of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the financial year

ended 31 May 2023.

23. Approval of the financial statements
The Board of Directors of the Company approved the financial statements on 18 September 2023.
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

145,500

9,471

1,131,966

313,000

59,000

189,910

406,500

596,998

3,207,527
983,124

629,746
695,927
258,000
336,000
10,000
27,460

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equities: 98.34% (31 May 2022: 96.31%)
Cayman Islands: 0.70% (31 May 2022: 0.52%)

Entertainment: 0.70% (31 May 2022: 0.36%)
Manchester United PLC Class A Com USD0.0005

Retail: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.16%)
Cazoo Group Ltd Class A Com USD0.002

Total Cayman Islands

Jersey: 5.70% (31 May 2022: 4.35%)

Advertising: 2.97% (31 May 2022: 2.77%)
WPP PLC Com GBPO0.10

Commercial services: 2.73% (31 May 2022: 1.58%)
Experian PLC Com USDO0.10

Total Jersey
Netherlands: 1.24% (31 May 2022: 1.21%)

Beverages: 1.24% (31 May 2022: 1.21%)
Heineken Holding NV Com EUR1.60

Total Netherlands
United Kingdom: 88.64% (31 May 2022: 88.33%)

Aerospace/defense: 0.54% (31 May 2022: 1.46%)
BAE Systems PLC Com GBP0.03

Agriculture: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 4.71%)

Apparel: 2.69% (31 May 2022: 2.02%)
Burberry Group PLC Com GBP0.0005

Auto manufacturers: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.15%)

Auto parts & equipment: 0.24% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)

Dowlais Group PLC Com GBP0.01

Banks: 3.28% (31 May 2022: 2.70%)
Barclays PLC Com GBP0.25%
HSBC Holdings PLC Com USD0.50

Beverages: 7.03% (31 May 2022: 4.95%)

A.G. Barr PLC Com GBP0.04

Britvic PLC Com GBPO0.20

Diageo Com GBP28.93518

Fevertree Drinks PLC Com GBP0.0025

Young & Co's Brewery PLC Class A Com GBPO0.13
Young & Co's Brewery PLC Com GBPO0.13
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Currency

ush

usDh

GBP

GBP

EUR

GBP

GBP

GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP

Fair value % of net
GBP assets
2,268,668 0.70
10,202 -
2,278,870 0.70
9,665,857 2.97
8,861,030 2.73
18,526,887 5.70
4035916 1.24
4,035,916 1.24
1,762,934 0.54
8,753,977 2.69
780,575 0.24
4,854,592 1.49
5,806,330 1.79
3,177,069 0.98
6,153,734 1.89
8,636,550 2.66
4,551,120 1.40
118,250 0.03
221,328 0.07
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

1,606,946
818,930
93,745

5512,110
618,627
1,345,400
614,858
382,000
598,137

554,742

3,307,966
339,018

138,330
625,667
706,306

449,403
472,500
842,427
121,500
1,079,937
495,349
2,473,455

205,549
447,940

339,078

280,589
2,997,109

4,747,326

2,389,445

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Equities: 98.34% (31 May 2022: 96.31%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 88.64% (31 May 2022: 88.33%)
(continued)

Chemicals: 1.49% (31 May 2022: 1.72%)
Elementis PLC Com GBP5.00

Essentra PLC Com GBPO0.25

Johnson Matthey PLC Com GBP1.11

Commercial services: 9.39% (31 May 2022: 8.65%)
Hays PLC Com GBP0.01

Mears Group PLC Com GBP0.01

Pagegroup PLC Com GBP0.01

QinetiQ Group PLC Com GBP0.01

RELX PLC Com GBPO.14

Savills PLC Com GBP0.03

Computers: 0.16% (31 May 2022: 0.04%)
NCC Group PLC Com GBP0.01

Cosmetics/personal care: 6.07% (31 May 2022: 6.03%)
PZ Cussons PLC Com GBP1.00
Unilever PLC Com GBP0.0311

Distribution/wholesale: 3.70% (31 May 2022: 2.91%)
Bunzl PLC Com GBP0.32

Headlam Group Com GBP5.00

Travis Perkins PLC Com GBP0.11

Diversified financial services: 13.14% (31 May 2022:
13.34%)

Close Brothers Group PLC Com GBPO0.25

Hargreaves Lansdown PLC Com GBP0.004

Jupiter Fund Management PLC Com GBP0.02
London Stock Exchange Group PLC Com GBP0.07
Man Group PLC Com USD0.03

Rathbone Brothers Com GBP5.00

Schroders PLC GBPO.2

Electronics: 0.73% (31 May 2022: 1.34%)
Electrocomponents PLC Com GBP0.10
TT Electronics Com GBP25.00

Engineering & construction: 0.58% (31 May 2022: 0.37%)
Ricardo PLC Com GBPO0.25

Food: 3.98% (31 May 2022: 2.27%)
Associated British Foods PLC Com GBP0.06
Tesco PLC Com GBP0.06

Gas: 1.72% (31 May 2022:0.73%)
Centrica PLC Com GBP0.06

Healthcare-products: 1.49% (31 May 2022: 1.70%)
ConvaTec Group PLC Com GBPO0.10
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Currency

GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP

Fair value
GBP

1,724,253
1,496,185
1,621,554

5,933,787
1,490,891
5,853,835
2,209,185
9,586,290
5,444,542

505,093

6,083,349
13,658,188

4,348,404
1,520,371
6,168,170

4,077,209
3,789,922
923,300
10,387,035
2,372,082
9,882,213
11,267,824

1,637,609
723,423

1,902,228

5,124,256
7,817,959

5,579,295

4,843,405

% of net
assets

0.53
0.46
0.50

1.83
0.46
1.80
0.68
2.95
1.67

0.16

1.87
4.20

1.34
0.47
1.89

1.25
1.17
0.28
3.20
0.73
3.04
3.47

0.51
0.22

0.58

1.58
2.40

1.72

1.49
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

7,631,921

693,703
275,539

126,420

1,308,607

1,206,667
344,115
711,703

4,155,028

178,099

3,345,052
505,917

151,863
13,515

522,066
2,319,915
159,704

1,003,730
426,424
113,654

397,033

398,662

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Equities: 98.34% (31 May 2022: 96.31%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 88.64% (31 May 2022: 88.33%)
(continued)

Holding companies-diversified: 2.09% (31 May 2022:
1.41%)
Mitie Group PLC Com GBP0.03

Home builders: 1.54% (31 May 2022: 0.50%)
Crest Nicholson Holdings PLC Com GBP0.03428571
Persimmon PLC Com GBPO0.10

Household products/wares: 2.43% (31 May 2022: 1.91%)
Reckitt Benckiser Group PLC Com GBPO0.10

Industrial products: 0.58% (31 May 2022: 0.23%)
Rolls-Royce Holdings PLC Com GBPO0.20

Insurance: 2.47% (31 May 2022: 2.61%)

Aviva PLC Com GBP0.3289

Beazley PLC Com GBP0.05

Direct Line Insurance Group PLC Com GBPO.11

Internet: 3.21% (31 May 2022: 2.13%)
Moneysupermarket.com Group PLC Com GBP0.0002

Investment companies: 0.26% (31 May 2022: 0.58%)
Melrose Industries PLC Com GBP0.228

Media: 1.96% (31 May 2022: 5.01%)
ITVPLC Com GBPO0.10
Pearson PLC Com GBP0.25

Mining: 1.24% (31 May 2022: 2.45%)
Anglo American PLC Com USDO0.54945
Rio Tinto PLC Com GBP0.10

Miscellaneous manufacturing: 4.54% (31 May 2022:
4.50%)

IMI PLC Com GBPO0.29

Senior PLC Com GBP10.00

Smiths Group PLC Com GBP0.38

Oil & gas: 2.36% (31 May 2022: 3.00%)
BP PLC Com USDO0.25

John Wood Group PLC Com GBP0.04
Shell PLC Com EUR0.07

Pharmaceuticals: 1.64% (31 May 2022: 1.44%)
GlaxoSmithKline PLC Com GBP0.31

Private equity: 2.40% (31 May 2022: 1.56%)
3i Group PLC Com GBP0.74
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Currency

GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP

Fair value
GBP

6,780,962

1,680,843
3,309,912

7,892,401

1,875,561

4,757,285
2,082,756
1,180,893

10,433,275

839,826

2,335,515
4,037,724

3,376,294
646,254

8,319,122
3,881,218
2,565,245

4,551,163
599,339
2,523,971

5,346,843

7,796,832

% of net
assets

2.09

0.52
1.02

2.43

0.58

1.47
0.64
0.36

3.21

0.26

0.72
1.24

1.04
0.20

2.56
1.19
0.79

1.40
0.18
0.78

1.64

2.40
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

1,749,088

650,590

627,825

53,955
811,500

5,157,629

113,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Equities: 98.34% (31 May 2022: 96.31%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 88.64% (31 May 2022: 88.33%)
(continued)

Real estate: 0.64% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)
Capital & Counties Properties PLC GBPO0.3

Real estate investment trusts: 1.20% (31 May 2022:

1.47%)
Land Securities Group PLC Com GBPO0.11

Retail: 0.24% (31 May 2022: 0.13%)
Wickes Group PLC Com GBP0.10

Software: 2.40% (31 May 2022: 2.49%)
EMIS Group PLC Com GBP0.01
Sage Group PLC Com GBPO0.01

Telecommunications: 1.21% (31 May 2022: 1.82%)
Vodafone Group PLC Com USDO0.21

Total United Kingdom
United States: 2.06% (31 May 2022: 1.90%)

Food: 2.06% (31 May 2022: 1.90%)
Mondelez International Inc Class A Com NPV

Total United States

Total equities

No. of contracts Futures contracts: (0.01%) (31 May 2022: 0.14%)

37

Counterparty

UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS

FTSE 100 Index Futures June 2023

Total futures contracts

Forward currency contracts: 0.00% (31 May 2022: (0.01%))

Cncy Buys Cncy Sells
usD 492,241 GBP 392,780
uUsD 121,001 GBP 96,552
GBP 1,612 EUR 1,854
GBP 222 EUR 255

Total fair value gains on forward currency contracts
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Fairvalue % ofnet
Currency GBP assets
GBP 2,096,282 0.64
GBP 3,917,202 1.20
GBP 766,260 0.24
GBP 719,220 0.22
GBP 7,066,542 2.18
GBP 3,940,429 1.21
288,107,485 88.64
usD 6,696,212 2.06
6,696,212 2.06
319,645,370 98.34
Unrealised % of net
Counterparty loss assets
GBP
Goldman Sachs (22,570) (0.01)
(22,570) (0.01)
Maturity Unrealised % of net
date gain assets
GBP
16/06/2023 4,273 -
16/06/2023 1,051 -
16/06/2023 16 -
16/06/2023 2 -
5,342 -
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Counterparty

UBS
UBS
UBS

Forward currency contracts: 0.00% (31 May 2022: (0.01%)) (continued)

Analysis of total assets (unaudited)

listing or traded on a regulated market.
OTC financial derivative instruments.

Other assets.

Maturity Unrealised % ofnet
Cncy Buys Cncy Sells date loss assets
GBP
EUR 130,629 GBP 113,798 16/06/2023 (1,385) -
EUR 134,629 GBP 117,283 16/06/2023 (1,428) -
EUR 938,592 GBP 817,662  16/06/2023 (9,952) -
Total fair value losses on forward currency contracts (12,765) -
Total forward currency contracts (7,423) -
Fairvalue % ofnet
GBP assets
Total value of investments 319,615,377 98.33
Cash & cash equivalents and Cash Collateral* 4,682,838 1.44
Other net assets** 730,679 0.23
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 325,028,894 100.00
% of total
assets
Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to official stock exchange
97.48
2.52
100.00

*All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company.
**Including GBP 1,621,038 held with Goldman Sachs as security by the counterparty to derivatives contracts.

"Related party.

The Industry Classification Benchmark ("ICB") is jointly owned by FTSE and Dow Jones and has been licensed for use. FTSE and
Dow Jones do not accept liability to any person for any loss or damage arising out of any error or omission in ICB.
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

200,000
300,000
200,000
50,000
600,000
900,000
200,000
500,000
300,000
100,000
1,200,000
100,000

300,000
200,000

200,000

200,000
200,000
200,000

400,000

300,000
1,200,000

800,000
500,000
390,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%)
Australia: 3.02% (31 May 2022: 3.04%)

Government bonds: 3.02% (31 May 2022: 3.04%)
Australia Government Bond Series 140 4.5% 21/04/2033
Australia Government Bond Series 158 1.25% 21/05/2032
Australia Government Bond Series 160 1% 21/12/2030
Australia Government Bond Series 162 1.75% 21/06/2051
Australia Government Bond Series 164 0.5% 21/09/2026
New South Wales Treasury Corp 2% 08/03/2033

Northern Territory Treasury Corp 2.5% 21/05/2032
Northern Territory Treasury Corp 3.75% 21/04/2033
Queensland Treasury Corporation 1.5% 20/08/2032
Queensland Treasury Corporation 4.5% 22/08/2035
Treasury Corp of Victoria 2.25% 15/09/2033

Treasury Corp of Victoria 4.25% 20/12/2032

Total Australia

Belgium: 0.66% (31 May 2022: 0.72%)

Government bonds: 0.66% (31 May 2022: 0.72%)
Belgium Government Bond Series 78 1.6% 22/06/2047
Communaute Francaise de Belgique Series EMTN 2.75%
22/06/2033

Ministeries Van de Vlaamse Gemeenschap Series EMTN
0.875% 21/03/2046

Total Belgium
Canada: 3.97% (31 May 2022: 3.32%)

Corporate bonds: 2.23% (31 May 2022: 0.66%)

Bank of Nova Scotia 0.01% 14/09/2029

Bank of Nova Scotia Series EMTN 0.375% 26/03/2030
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce Series EMTN 3.25%
31/03/2027

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce/Sydney FRN
14/09/2026

HSBC Bank Canada Series EMTN 3.625% 07/03/2028
Toronto-Dominion Bank 4.5% 16/03/2026

Government bonds: 1.66% (31 May 2022: 2.07%)
Canadian Government Bond 1.25% 01/06/2030
Canadian Government Bond 1.5% 01/06/2031
Canadian Government Bond 1.75% 01/12/2053
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Currency

AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD

EUR
EUR

EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR

AUD

EUR
AUD

CAD
CAD
CAD

Fair value % of net
uUsD assets
139,012 0.16
159,517 0.19
107,905 0.13
19,714 0.02
353,738 0.41
474,079 0.55
111,735 0.13
304,889 0.36
154,637 0.18
64,984 0.08
636,815 0.74
64,286 0.07
2,591,311 3.02
227,018 0.26
220,111 0.26
123,356 0.14
570,485 0.66
173,545 0.20
175,522 0.20
211,849 0.25
255,062 0.30
324,052 0.38
776,153 0.90
516,513 0.60
323,707 0.38
208,879 0.24
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

600,000

100,000

200,000

300,000

1
1
4,809,827
1
1
1
1

246,638

1
1
1
1
4

4,669,29

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Canada: 3.97% (31 May 2022: 3.32%) (continued)

Government bonds: 1.66% (31 May 2022: 2.07 %)

Province of Alberta Canada Series MTN 3.6% 11/04/2028

Government sponsored agencies: 0.08% (31 May 2022:

0.59%)
Ontario Teachers' Finance Trust Series EMTN 0.9%
20/05/2041

Total Canada
Cayman Islands: 0.58% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)

Corporate bonds: 0.24% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)
KSA Sukuk Ltd Series REGS 5.268% 25/10/2028

Government sponsored agency bonds: 0.34% (31 May

2022:0.00%)
GaciFirst Investment Co 4.875% 14/02/2035

Total Cayman Islands

Chile: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.19%)

Government bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.19%)

Czech Republic: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.16%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.16%)

Denmark: 3.32% (31 May 2022: 4.35%)

Corporate bonds: 2.61% (31 May 2022: 4.35%)
Jyske Realkredit A/S Series 111E 1.5% 01/07/2050
Jyske Realkredit A/S Series 111E 2% 01/10/2047
Jyske Realkredit A/S Series CCE 1% 01/10/2050
Jyske Realkredit A/S Series CCE 2% 01/10/2053
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab Series CC2 2%
01/10/2047

Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab Series CC2 2%
01/10/2050

Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab Series CC2 2.5%
01/10/2047

Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab Series CC2 1%
01/10/2050

Nykredit Realkredit A/S Series 01/E 1.5% 01/10/2050
Nykredit Realkredit A/S Series 01E 2% 01/10/2047
Nykredit Realkredit A/S Series 01E 2% 01/10/2053
Nykredit Realkredit A/S Series 01E 2.5% 01/10/2047
Nykredit Realkredit A/S Series 01EE 1.5% 01/10/2053
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Fairvalue % ofnet

Currency usbD assets
AUD 373,289 0.44
EUR 69,430 0.08
3,408,001 3.97

usD 207,381 0.24
uUsD 291,556 0.34
498,937 0.58

DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK 471,370 0.55
DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK 24,245 0.03
DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK - -
DKK 479,627 0.56
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Fairvalue % ofnet
Holdings Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency usbD assets
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Denmark: 3.32% (31 May 2022: 4.35%) (continued)
Corporate bonds: 2.61% (31 May 2022: 4.35%)
949,827 Nykredit Realkredit A/S Series O1EE 1% 01/10/2050 DKK 99,150 0.12
2 Realkredit Danmark A/S 1% 01/10/2053 DKK - -
695,877 Realkredit Danmark A/S Series 23S 1.5% 01/10/2053 DKK 71,411 0.08
1 Realkredit Danmark A/S Series 275 2% 01/10/2050 DKK - -
10,529,324 Realkredit Danmark A/S Series CCS 1% 01/10/2050 DKK 1,094,958 1.27
Government sponsored agencies: 0.00% (31 May 2022:
0.00%)
1 Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab Series CC2 3% DKK - -
01/10/2047
1 Realkredit Danmark A/S Series 23S 2% 01/10/2047 DKK - -
1 Realkredit Danmark A/S Series 23S 2.5% 01/04/2047 DKK - -
Government sponsored agency bonds: 0.71% (31 May
2022: 0.00%)
600,000 Kommunekredit Series EMTN 2.375% 15/09/2032 EUR 607,035 0.71
Total Denmark 2,847,796 3.32
France: 12.49% (31 May 2022: 19.08%)
Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.34%)
Government bonds: 11.98% (31 May 2022: 18.22%)
2,400,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 21/06/2023 EUR 2,554,716 2.98
1,400,000 France Treasury BillBTF 0% 05/07/2023 EUR 1,488,542 1.73
1,900,000 France Treasury BillBTF 0% 19/07/2023 EUR 2,017,687 2.35
300,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 02/08/2023 EUR 318,175 0.37
1,100,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 16/08/2023 EUR 1,165,137 1.36
1,100,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 0% 25/11/2030 EUR 963,470 1.12
400,000  French Republic Government Bond OAT 0.75% 25/05/2052 EUR 228,632 0.27
175,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 1.5% 25/05/2050 EUR 128,121 0.15
1,100,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 2% 25/05/2048 EUR 921,680 1.07
500,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 3% 25/05/2054 EUR 496,204 0.58
Government sponsored agencies: 0.27% (31 May 2022:
0.52%)
100,000 Action Logement Services Series EMTN 0.75% 19/07/2041 EUR 66,117 0.08
200,000 Caisse Francaise de Financement Local Series EMTN EUR 168,236 0.19
0.375% 20/01/2032
Government sponsored agency bonds: 0.24% (31 May
2022:0.00%)
200,000 Societe Du Grand Paris EPIC Series EMTN 3.7% 25/05/2053 EUR 210,636 0.24
Total France 10,727,353 12.49
Germany: 1.46% (31 May 2022: 5.42%)
Corporate bonds: 0.32% (31 May 2022: 1.60%)
200,000 Deutsche Bank AG FRN 17/02/2032 EUR 159,011 0.18
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brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

150,000

700,000
300,000

200,000

74,000,000

74,000,000

200,000

500,000
1,400,000
2,100,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Germany: 1.46% (31 May 2022: 5.42%) (continued)

Corporate bonds: 0.32% (31 May 2022: 1.60%)
Deutsche Bank AG/New York NY FRN 28/05/2032

Government bonds: 1.14% (31 May 2022: 3.82%)
Bundesobligation Series 181 0% 11/04/2025
Bundesrepublik Deutschland Bundesanleihe Series G 0%
15/08/2031

Total Germany

Hungary: 0.73% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)

Government bonds: 0.48% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)

Hungary Government International Bond Series REGS 6.25%
22/09/2032

National Bank of Hungary Bill Series 7D 0% 08/06/2023

Government sponsored agency bonds: 0.25% (31 May
2022:0.00%)
National Bank of Hungary Bill Series 7D 0% 01/06/2023

Total Hungary
Ireland: 0.22% (31 May 2022: 0.19%)

Corporate bonds: 0.22% (31 May 2022: 0.19%)
AerCap Ireland Capital DAC 1.65% 29/10/2024

Total Ireland

Israel: 1.22% (31 May 2022: 2.85%)

Government bonds: 1.22% (31 May 2022: 2.85%)

Bank of Israel Bill - Makam Series 713 0% 05/07/2023
Israel Government Bond - Fixed Series 327 2% 31/03/2027
Israel Government Bond - Fixed Series 723 0.15%
31/07/2023

Total Israel
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Fairvalue % ofnet

Currency usbD assets
usD 119,136 0.14
EUR 710,295 0.83
EUR 268,022 0.31
1,256,464 1.46

usD 203,933 0.24
HUF 212,316 0.24
HUF 212,774 0.25
629,023 0.73

usDh 187,854 0.22
187,854 0.22

ILS 133,389 0.16
ILS 351,504 0.41
ILS 559,051 0.65
1,043,944 1.22
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

300,000

300,000

200,000

200,000

300,000

200,000
60,000,000
569,000,000
1,140,000,000
275,000,000
15,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
230,000,000

320,000,000
120,000,000
270,000,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Italy: 1.21% (31 May 2022: 1.11%)

Corporate bonds: 0.34% (31 May 2022: 0.49%)
Banca Monte dei Paschidi Siena SpA 0.875% 08/10/2027

Government bonds: 0.43% (31 May 2022: 0.43%)
Republic of Italy Government International Bond Series
EMTN 6% 04/08/2028

Government sponsored agencies: 0.21% (31 May 2022:
0.19%)

AMCO - Asset Management Co SpA Series EMTN 0.75%
20/04/2028

Government sponsored agency bonds: 0.23% (31 May
2022: 0.00%)

Cassa Depositi e Prestiti SpA Series REGS 5.75%
05/05/2026

Total Italy
Japan: 26.43% (31 May 2022: 23.46%)

Corporate bonds: 0.31% (31 May 2022: 0.76%)
Central Nippon Expressway Co Ltd 0.894% 10/12/2025

Government bonds: 25.47% (31 May 2022: 22.11%)
Japan Finance Organization for Municipalities Series GMTN
0.1% 03/09/2031

Japan Government Five Year Bond Series 151 0.005%
20/03/2027

Japan Government Five Year Bond Series 153 0.005%
20/06/2027

Japan Government Ten Year Bond Series 357 0.1%
20/12/2029

Japan Government Thirty Year Bond Series 62 0.5%
20/03/2049

Japan Government Thirty Year Bond Series 73 0.7%
20/12/2051

Japan Government Thirty Year Bond Series 74 1%
20/03/2052

Japan Government Thirty Year Bond Series 75 1.2%
20/06/2052

Japan Government Two Year Bond Series 441 0.005%
01/10/2024

Japan Treasury Discount Bill Series 1150 0% 18/07/2023
Japan Treasury Discount Bill Series 1142 0% 12/06/2023
Japan Treasury Discount Bill Series 1146 0% 26/06/2023
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Fairvalue % ofnet

Currency usbD assets
EUR 288,098 0.34
GBP 371,024 0.43
EUR 177,835 0.21
usD 199,929 0.23
1,036,886 1.21

usD 269,741 0.31
EUR 161,814 0.19
JPY 429,682 0.50
JPY 4,072,302 474
JPY 8,116,749 9.45
JPY 1,661,651 1.94
JPY 92,890 0.11
JPY 133,897 0.16
JPY 144,140 0.17
JPY 1,648,442 1.92
JPY 2,290,899 2.67
JPY 858,922 1.00
JPY 1,932,725 2.25
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

40,000,000

300,000
300,000

6,500,000
800,000

800,000
300,000
400,000
100,000
2,200,000
500,000

300,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Japan: 26.43% (31 May 2022: 23.46%) (continued)

Government bonds: 25.47% (31 May 2022: 22.11%)
Japanese Government CPI Linked Bond Series 23
0.105515% 10/03/2028%

Government sponsored agencies: 0.65% (31 May 2022:
0.59%)

Central Nippon Expressway Co Ltd 1.352% 28/04/2026
Japan Bank for International Cooperation 1.5% 01/06/2029

Total Japan
Jersey: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.25%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.25%)

Luxembourg: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.20%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.20%)

Malaysia: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.16%)

Government sponsored agencies: 0.00% (31 May 2022:
0.16%)

Multinational: 6.10% (31 May 2022: 1.89%)

Government sponsored agencies: 0.97% (31 May 2022:
1.89%)

Asian Development Bank Series GMTN 4.7% 12/03/2024
EUROFIMA Series MTN 3.35% 21/05/2029

Government sponsored agency bonds: 5.13% (31 May
2022: 0.00%)

European Financial Stability Facility Series EMTN 1.25%
24/05/2033

European Financial Stability Facility Series EMTN 2.875%
16/02/2033

European Investment Bank Series EARN 2.875%
12/01/2033

European Stability Mechanism 3% 23/08/2033

European Union Series NGEU 1% 06/07/2032

International Bank for Reconstruction & Development Series
EMTN 2.9% 19/01/2033

International Bank for Reconstruction & Development Series
GMTN 3.1% 14/04/2038

Total Multinational
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Currency

JPY

usD
EUR

MXN
AUD

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR

Fair value % of net
uUsD assets
317,940 0.37
271,002 0.31
290,582 0.34
22,693,378 26.43
344573 0.40
487,793 0.57
725,953 0.85
317,152 0.37
423,826 0.49
106,866 0.12
1,986,045 2.31
527,801 0.62
316,395 0.37
5,236,404 6.10
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

700,000

400,000

200,000
1,100,000

200,000

600,000

200,000
700,000

10,670,000
2,800,000

5,200,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Netherlands: 1.01% (31 May 2022: 1.16%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.67 %)

Government sponsored agencies: 0.51% (31 May 2022:

0.49%)
BNG Bank NV Series MTN 3.25% 24/08/2026

Government sponsored agency bonds: 0.50% (31 May

2022:0.00%)
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 3% 20/04/2033

Total Netherlands
New Zealand: 1.09% (31 May 2022: 0.11%)

Government bonds: 1.09% (31 May 2022: 0.11%)
Auckland Council Series EMTN 0.125% 26/09/2029
New Zealand Government Bond Series 427 4.5%
15/04/2027

New Zealand Government Bond Series 531 1.5%
15/05/2031

Total New Zealand

Norway: 0.72% (31 May 2022: 0.70%)

Government bonds: 0.05% (31 May 2022: 0.05%)
Norway Government Bond Series 483 1.25% 17/09/2031

Government sponsored agencies: 0.67% (31 May 2022:

0.65%)
Kommunalbanken AS Series MTN 1.9% 19/01/2027
Kommunalbanken AS Series MTN 4.25% 16/07/2025

Total Norway
People's Republic of China: 2.21% (31 May 2022: 2.87%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.29%)

Government bonds: 2.21% (31 May 2022: 2.58%)
China Government Bond Series INBK 2.44% 15/10/2027
China Government Bond Series INBK 3.02% 22/10/2025

Total People's Republic of China
Peru: 1.75% (31 May 2022: 1.70%)

Government bonds: 1.75% (31 May 2022: 1.70%)
Peruvian Government International Bond Series REGs 8.2%
12/08/2026

Total Peru
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Currency

AUD

EUR

EUR
NzZD

NzD

NOK

AUD
AUD

CNH
CNH

PEN

Fair value % of net
uUsD assets
441,023 0.51
425637 0.50
866,660 1.01
176,577 0.21
664,384 0.77
97,883 0.11
938,844 1.09
45,948 0.05
119,668 0.14
453,619 0.53
619,235 0.72
1,494,491 1.74
399,855 0.47
1,894,346 2.21
1,503,939 1.75
1,503,939 1.75
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

100,000

100,000

2,758,200,000
1,800,000,000
1,007,000,000

100,000
200,000
100,000

100,000

500,000

1,350,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Poland: 0.23% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)

Government bonds: 0.23% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)
Republic of Poland Government International Bond 4.875%

04/10/2033
Republic of Poland Government International Bond 5.5%

04/04/2053
Total Poland
Republic of South Korea: 4.90% (31 May 2022: 1.80%)

Government bonds: 4.90% (31 May 2022: 1.80%)
Korea Treasury Bond Series 2709 3.125% 10/09/2027
Korea Treasury Bond Series 3112 4% 10/12/2031
Korea Treasury Bond Series 3206 3.375% 10/06/2032

Total Republic of South Korea
Romania: 0.43% (31 May 2022: 0.49%)

Government bonds: 0.43% (31 May 2022: 0.49%)
Romanian Government International Bond Series REGS

1.75% 13/07/2030
Romanian Government International Bond Series REGS 2%

14/04/2033

Romanian Government International Bond Series REGS
2.124% 16/07/2031

Romanian Government International Bond Series REGS
2.875% 13/04/2042

Total Romania

Saudi Arabia: 0.59% (31 May 2022: 0.18%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.18%)

Government bonds: 0.59% (31 May 2022: 0.00%)
Saudi Government International Bond Series REGS 4.875%
18/07/2033

Total Saudi Arabia
Singapore: 1.06% (31 May 2022: 1.57%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.19%)

Government bonds: 1.06% (31 May 2022: 1.38%)
Singapore Government Bond 1.625% 01/07/2031

Total Singapore
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Currency

ush

usDh

KRW
KRW
KRW

EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR

usD

SGD

Fair value % of net
uUsD assets
99,891 0.11
100,800 0.12
200,691 0.23
2,049,469 2.39
1,404,345 1.64
749,861 0.87
4,203,675 4.90
80,240 0.09
147,977 0.17
79,620 0.09
63,552 0.08
371,389 0.43
504,581 0.59
504,581 0.59
907,739 1.06
907,739 1.06




Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2023

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

400,000
200,000

300,000
153,000
150,000
100,000
450,000

100,000

1,500,000

200,000
400,000
250,000
250,000

800,000

200,000
200,000
300,000

2,750,000
350,000
850,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)
Spain: 2.13% (31 May 2022: 3.81%)

Corporate bonds: 0.73% (31 May 2022: 0.40%)
Banco Santander SA 3.25% 14/02/2028
CaixaBank SA Series 144A FRN 18/01/2029

Government bonds: 1.31% (31 May 2022: 3.32%)
Spain Government Bond 0.8% 30/07/2027

Spain Government Bond 1.45% 30/04/2029

Spain Government Bond 2.55% 31/10/2032

Spain Government Bond 3.15% 30/04/2033

Spain Government Bond 3.45% 30/07/2066

Government sponsored agencies: 0.09% (31 May 2022:
0.09%)
Adif Alta Velocidad Series EMTN 0.55% 31/10/2031

Total Spain
Sweden: 0.15% (31 May 2022: 0.15%)

Government bonds: 0.15% (31 May 2022: 0.15%)
Sweden Government Bond Series 1061 0.75% 12/11/2029

Total Sweden

Switzerland: 2.18% (31 May 2022: 1.99%)

Corporate bonds: 1.15% (31 May 2022: 1.27%)
Credit Suisse Group AG FRN 02/04/2032

Credit Suisse Group AG Series 144A FRN 14/05/2032
Credit Suisse Group AG Series 144AFRN 01/04/2031
Credit Suisse Group AG Series 144A FRN 12/08/2033

Government bonds: 1.03% (31 May 2022: 0.72%)
Swiss Confederation Government Bond 1.25% 28/05/2026

Total Switzerland

Thailand: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.29%)

Government bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2022: 0.29%)

United Kingdom: 8.22% (31 May 2022: 4.36%)

Corporate bonds: 0.73% (31 May 2022: 1.08%)
HSBC Holdings PLC FRN 10/03/2026

HSBC Holdings PLC FRN 09/06/2028

Standard Chartered PLC Series REGS FRN 29/06/2032

Government bonds: 7.49% (31 May 2022: 3.28%)
United Kingdom Gilt 0.625% 31/07/2035

United Kingdom Gilt 0.625% 22/10/2050 S&P
United Kingdom Gilt 1.25% 31/07/2051 S&P
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Currency

EUR
usD

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR

SEK

EUR
usD
ush
usDh

CHF

usDh
ush
usD

GBP
GBP
GBP

Fair value % of net
uUsD assets
425153 0.50
200,250 0.23
293,346 0.34
149,742 0.17
150,771 0.18
105,059 0.12
425,810 0.50
83,163 0.09
1,833,294 2.13
124,979 0.15
124,979 0.15
184,208 0.21
322,546 0.38
220,347 0.26
255,768 0.30
886,921 1.03
1,869,790 2.18
190,035 0.22
194,058 0.23
237,763 0.28
2,234,855 2.60
173,126 0.20
514,208 0.60
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

100,000
900,000
1,900,000

200,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000

1,000,000
600,000
600,000

1,000,000

700,000
800,000
300,000
550,000
1,370,000
100,000
200,000

5,250,000
4,700,000
4,500,000
600,000
283,582

127,490
46,193
1

N

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 8.22% (31 May 2022: 4.36%) (continued)

Government bonds: 7.49% (31 May 2022: 3.28%)
United Kingdom Gilt 1.5% 31/07/2053 S&P

United Kingdom Treasury Bill 0% 03/07/2023
United Kingdom Treasury Bill 0% 07/08/2023

Total United Kingdom
United States: 26.13% (31 May 2022: 17.87%)

Corporate bonds: 0.70% (31 May 2022: 1.73%)
Goldman Sachs Group Inc FRN 24/01/2025

Pacific Gas & Electric Co 3.5% 15/06/2025

Pfizer Investment Enterprises Pte Ltd 4.65% 19/05/2030
Pfizer Investment Enterprises Pte Ltd 5.3% 19/05/2053
Providence St Joseph Health Obligated Group 5.403%
01/10/2033

Government bonds: 7.56% (31 May 2022: 6.44%)

United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 0.136108%
15/01/2032

United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 0.146068%
15/04/2025

United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 0.318588%
15/01/2025

United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 1.139951%
15/01/2033

United States Treasury Note/Bond 0.625% 30/11/2027
United States Treasury Note/Bond 0.75% 31/01/2028
United States Treasury Note/Bond 1.375% 15/11/2040
United States Treasury Note/Bond 1.625% 15/11/2050
United States Treasury Note/Bond 1.875% 15/02/2041
United States Treasury Note/Bond 2% 15/11/2041

United States Treasury Note/Bond 4% 15/11/2052

Government mortgage backed securities: 17.23% (31
May 2022: 0.27%)

Fannie Mae 4% 31/12/2049

Fannie Mae 4.5% 31/12/2049

Fannie Mae 5% 31/12/2049

Fannie Mae 6% 31/12/2049

Freddie Mac Pool 2% 01/02/2052

Government sponsored agencies: 0.19% (31 May 2022:
8.97%)

Fannie Mae Pool 3.5% 01/08/2058

Fannie Mae Pool 3.5% 01/01/2059

Fannie Mae Pool 5.5% 01/10/2035

Fannie Mae Pool 5.5% 01/03/2038

Fannie Mae Pool 5.5% 01/05/2038

Fannie Mae Pool 6% 01/10/2037

Fannie Mae Pool 6% 01/03/2038
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Fair value % of net

Currency uUsD assets
GBP 63,457 0.07
GBP 1,111,139 1.30
GBP 2,334,926 2.72
7,053,567 8.22

usD 199,368 0.23
usD 95,965 0.11
usbD 100,172 0.12
usD 103,025 0.12
usD 99,063 0.12
usD 971,699 1.13
UsbhD 671,471 0.78
UusD 736,592 0.86
usD 983,397 1.15
Uusb 607,811 0.71
UusD 695,969 0.81
UsD 201,375 0.23
usD 340,957 0.40
usD 999,377 1.16
usD 73,561 0.09
UsD 205,656 0.24
UsD 4,963,711 578
usD 4,554,869 5.31
UsD 4,433,818 5.16
UsD 607,078 0.71
usD 233,946 0.27
UusbD 117,290 0.14
UsD 42,497 0.05
UsD - -
usD - -
UusbD - -
usD - -
UusD - -
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GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

Holdings

4,795

449,050

59,881

No. of contracts

23

(2)
14
11
(8)
11
17

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds: 114.21% (31 May 2022: 105.44%) (continued)

Currency

United States: 26.13% (31 May 2022: 17.87%) (continued)

Government sponsored agencies: 0.19% (31 May 2022:

8.97%)

Ginnie Mae Series 2017-121 Class PE 3% 20/07/2046

usDh

Mortgage backed securities: 0.45% (31 May 2022: 0.46%)

Freddie Mac Pool 2.5% 01/01/2051
Total United States
Total bonds

Accrued income on financial assets at fair value

through profit orloss: 0.39% (31 May 2022: 0.38%)

Investment funds: 0.86% (31 May 2022: 1.84%)

Luxembourg: 0.86% (31 May 2022: 1.84%)

DB X-Trackers Il Global Government Bond UCITSETF

Total Luxembourg

Total investment funds

Futures contracts: (0.12%) (31 May 2022: 0.26%)

Euro-BTP EUX Future June 2023

US Ultra Bond CBT Future September 2023
Euro-Bund EURX Future June 2023

Long Gilt ICF Future September 2023

SFE 10 Year Future June 2023

Euro-BOBL EURX Future June 2023

CME Future June 2024

US 10 Year Note CBT Future September 2023
CME Future September 2024

CME Future December 2024

CME Future March 2025

ME 10 Year CDN Bond Future September 2023
Euro-Schatz EURX Future June 2023

Total fair value gains on open futures contracts***

Euro-Bund EUX Future June 2023

OSE 10 Year Future June 2023

US 5 Year Note CBT Future September 2023
3M CORRA Future March 2025

US Long Bond CBT Future September 2023
3M CORRA Future December 2024

US 2 Year Note CBT Future September 2023

177

usD

usD

Counterparty

Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”

Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”

Fair value % of net
uUsD assets
4,567 -
386,177 0.45
22,429,411 26.13
98,049,976 114.21
337,847 0.39
737,434 0.86
737,434 0.86
737,434 0.86
Unrealised % of net
gain/(loss) assets
UsD
118,785 0.14
61,338 0.07
58,998 0.07
34,021 0.04
22,219 0.03
17,345 0.02
9,600 0.01
9,008 0.01
8,100 0.01
6,400 0.01
5,100 0.01
4,149 -
3,662 -
358,725 0.42
(832) -
(1,074) -
(2,060) -
(6,980) (0.01)
(7,875) (0.01)
(8,193) (0.01)
(8,205) (0.01)
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GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2023 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2022.

No. of contracts

26
32

Counterparty

ANZ

ANZ

Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”
Barclays”

BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas
BNP Paribas

Futures contracts: (0.12%) (31 May 2022: 0.26%)

Euro-Schatz EURX Future June 2023

Euro-BOBL EUX Future June 2023

3M CORRA Future September 2024

3M CORRA Future June 2024

SFE 3 Year T-Bond Future June 2023

US 10 Year Note Ultra CBT Future September 2023
EUX Short-Term Euro-BTP EUX Future June 2023
Euro-BUXL Bond Future June 2023

Euro-OAT Future June 2023

Total fair value losses on open futures contracts***

Total futures contracts

Forward currency contracts: 2.82% (31 May 2022: 0.42%)

Cncy Buys Cncy Sells
usD 364,859 NZD 595,460
usD 212,440 AUD 324,611
usD 853,701 NzZD 1,384,889
usD 2,306,019 DKK 15,969,249
usD 859,099 AUD 1,315,711
usD 276,940 NzZD 456,465
IDR 1,202,472,000 usD 79,110
usb 151,290 TWD 4,621,907
usD 264,340 AUD 407,487
ush 34,000 KRW 44,706,940
uUsD 167,291 TWD 5,087,988
KRW 55,645,380 usD 42,000
uUsD 2,474,061 JPY 320,000,000
usD 890,579 JPY 120,000,000
usD 36,000 TWD 1,086,408
usD 19,959 HUF 6,967,170
usD 22,967,702 EUR 20,758,218
usD 889,579 CHF 791,229
usD 589,462 CNH 4,073,123
usD 715,641 KRW 929,317,090
usD 391,257 EUR 355,000
UsD 75,284 ILS 240,000
ushD 420,224 EUR 384,000
usD 201,533 NZD 320,000
ushD 204,000 CNH 1,4